A meeting of the DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL will be held in THE
CIVIC SUITE, PATHFINDER HOUSE, ST MARY'S STREET, HUNTINGDON,
PE29 3TN on MONDAY, 18 APRIL 2016 at 7:00 PM and you are requested to
attend for the transaction of the following business:-

APOLOGIES
MINUTES (Pages 5 - 8)

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the
Panel held on 14th March 2016.

MEMBERS' INTERESTS

To receive from Members declarations as to disclosable pecuniary or
other interests in relation to any item. Please see Notes below.

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT - OTHER APPLICATIONS

To consider reports by the Planning Services Manager (Development
Management).

(a) Hail Weston (Pages 9 - 66)

The use of land as a private gypsy and traveller caravan site
consisting of 4 pitches each of which would comprise of 1 No.
Mobile home, 1 No. Touring caravan, one small amenity building,
hardstandings, foul drainage; creation of new access and track
way - Kym Stables, Kimbolton Road, Hail Weston.

(b) Buckden (Pages 67 - 86)

Proposed Amendment to the Scheme of Delegation in relation to
the making and confirming Tree Preservation Orders.

Objection to Tree Preservation Order L/TPO/381 - 15 Hunts End,
Buckden.

APPLICATIONS REQUIRING REFERENCE TO DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT PANEL

(a) Stlves (Pages 87 - 138)

Change of use to A4 public house, together with internal and
external alterations and extension — 8 Market Hill, St lves.

(b) St Neots (Pages 139 - 152)
The proposed development is to divide the existing dwelling into

two separate dwellings consisting of a one bedroom apartment
and a two bedroom apartment. It also includes a first floor



extension over an existing ground floor extension - 210 Great
North Road, Eaton Socon.

(c) St Neots (Pages 153 - 164)

Rear single storey extension to create 1no. additional bedroom
to be used for Home of Multiple Occupancy (HMO) purposes.
Consent already granted for 5 bedrooms as HMO - 1 Princes
Drive, St Neots.

(d) Yaxley (Pages 165 -176)

Proposed erection of detached home with independent access -
May Cottage, Holme Road, Yaxley.

(e) Catworth (Pages 177 - 188)

Detached eco constructed lodge to create three bed detached
dwelling - Land at 34 Church End, Catworth.

(f) Conington (Pages 189 - 200)

Change of use of land from agriculture to residential curtilage,
erection of stable building and additional workshop units (part
retrospective) - Gault Hill Farm, Cooks Lane, Sawtry.

(g) Houghton and Wyton (Pages 201 - 214)

Change of use from vacant offices used as store to veterinary
surgery — Huntingdon Wyevale Garden Centre, Banks End,
Wyton.

(h) Huntingdon (Pages 215 - 224)

New dwelling and demolition of single storey side lean to
adjacent dwelling - 2 West Street, Huntingdon.

5. APPEAL DECISIONS (Pages 225 - 228)

To consider a report by the Planning Service Manager (Development
Management).

LATE REPRESENTATIONS

Dated this 6 day of April 2016

Head of Paid Service
Notes

1. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

(1) Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests and unless you
have obtained dispensation, cannot discuss or vote on the matter at the meeting and
must also leave the room whilst the matter is being debated or voted on.



@)

®)

A Member has a disclosable pecuniary interest if it -

(a) relates to you, or
(b) is an interest of -

(i) your spouse or civil partner; or
(ii) a person with whom you are living as husband and wife; or
(i) a person with whom you are living as if you were civil partners

and you are aware that the other person has the interest.
Disclosable pecuniary interests includes -

(a) any employment or profession carried out for profit or gain;

(b) any financial benefit received by the Member in respect of expenses incurred carrying
out his or her duties as a Member (except from the Council);

(c) any current contracts with the Council,

(d) any beneficial interest in land/property within the Council's area;

(e) any licence for a month or longer to occupy land in the Council's area;

(f) any tenancy where the Council is landlord and the Member (or person in (2)(b) above)
has a beneficial interest; or

(9) a beneficial interest (above the specified level) in the shares of any body which has a
place of business or land in the Council's area.

Non-Statutory Disclosable Interests

(4)

®)

If a Member has a non-statutory disclosable interest then you are required to declare that
interest, but may remain to discuss and vote providing you do not breach the overall
Nolan principles.

A Member has a non-statutory disclosable interest where -

(a) a decision in relation to the business being considered might reasonably be regarded
as affecting the well-being or financial standing of you or a member of your family or a
person with whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect
the majority of the council tax payers, rate payers or inhabitants of the ward or
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the authority's
administrative area, or

(b)it relates to or is likely to affect a disclosable pecuniary interest, but in respect of a
member of your family (other than specified in (2)(b) above) or a person with whom
you have a close association, or

(c) it relates to or is likely to affect any body —

(i) exercising functions of a public nature; or

(i) directed to charitable purposes; or

(i) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy
(including any political party or trade union) of which you are a Member or in a
position of control or management.

and that interest is not a disclosable pecuniary interest.

Filming, Photography and Recording at Council Meetings

The District Council supports the principles of openness and transparency in its decision
making and permits filming, recording and the taking of photographs at its meetings that are
open to the public. It also welcomes the use of social networking and micro-blogging
websites (such as Twitter and Facebook) to communicate with people about what is
happening at meetings. Arrangements for these activities should operate in accordance with
guidelines agreed by the Council and available via the following link filming,photography-and-
recording-at-council-meetings.pdf or on request from the Democratic Services Team. The

Council understands that some members of the public attending its meetings may not wish to


http://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/SiteCollectionDocuments/HDCCMS/Documents/Democratic%20Services%20documents/filming,photography-and-recording-at-council-meetings.pdf
http://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/SiteCollectionDocuments/HDCCMS/Documents/Democratic%20Services%20documents/filming,photography-and-recording-at-council-meetings.pdf

be filmed. The Chairman of the meeting will facilitate this preference by ensuring that any
such request not to be recorded is respected.

Please contact Anthony Roberts, Democratic Services Team, Tel No. 01480 388015/e-
mail: Anthony.Roberts@huntingdonshire.gov.uk if you have a general query on any
Agenda Item, wish to tender your apologies for absence from the meeting, or would
like information on any decision taken by the Committee/Panel.

Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed towards the
Contact Officer.

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except during
consideration of confidential or exempt items of business.

Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’'s website —
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk (under Councils and Democracy).

If you would like a translation of Agenda/Minutes/Reports or
would like a large text version or an audio version please
contact the Elections & Democratic Services Manager and

we will try to accommodate your needs.

Emergency Procedure

In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the Meeting
Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via the closest emergency
exit.




56.

S57.

58.

Agenda ltem 1

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MINUTES of the meeting of the DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
PANEL held in the Civic Suite, Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street,
Huntingdon, PE29 3TN on Monday, 14 March 2016.

PRESENT: Councillor Mrs B E Boddington — Chairman.

Councillors P L E Bucknell, G J Bull,
E R Butler, Mrs S Conboy, Mrs A D Curtis,
D B Dew, Mrs A Dickinson, R S Farrer,
| D Gardener, J M Palmer, P D Reeve,
R G Tuplin and R J West.

APOLOGIES: Apologies for absence from the meeting were
submitted on behalf of Councillors Ms L Kadic
and J P Morris.

MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 15th February 2016
were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

MEMBERS' INTERESTS

Councillor G J Bull declared a non-pecuniary interest in Minute No.
59(c) by virtue of having an association with the applicant.

Councillor P L E Bucknell declared a non-pecuniary interest in Minute
No. 59(b) by virtue of having attended an exhibition on the
application.

Councillor P L E Bucknell also declared a non-pecuniary interest in
Minute No. 59(c) by virtue of having an association with the applicant,
remained in the room but did not vote on the item.

DEFERRED ITEM

(a) Removal of Condition 3 of Planning Permission
15/00417/FUL, variation of Condition 4 for hours of Cafe
opening to be from 7:00 a.m. until 12:00 (midnight),
variation of Condition 5 to allow the bar to be open 11:00
a.m. until 12:00 (midnight) Sunday to Thursday and from
11:00 a.m. to 02:00 a.m. Friday and Saturday, variation of
Condition 6 to allow music to be played during the times
the premises are open and Variation of Condition 7 to
allow storage of refuse and recycling within proposed
compound to rear of premises - The Masonic Hall, 83
High Street, Huntingdon - 15/01838/S73

(Mr S Tindle, Agent, addressed the Panel on the
application).



59.

Pursuant to Minute No. 15/47(i), the Panel gave
consideration to a report by the Planning Service Manager
(Development Management) (a copy of which is appended in
the Minute Book).

RESOLVED

that, the application be approved and the Planning
Service Manager (Development Management) be
authorised to agree the conditions including those
listed in paragraph 3 of the report now submitted
and an additional condition requiring the approval
of a waste recycling and disposal strategy
including detailed times when these activities take
place.

APPLICATIONS REQUIRING REFERENCE TO DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT PANEL

The Planning Service Manager (Development Management)
submitted reports (copies of which are appended in the Minute Book)
on applications for development to be determined by the Panel and
advised Members of further representations (details of which also are
appended in the Minute Book) which had been received in connection
therewith since the reports had been prepared. Whereupon, it was

RESOLVED

(a) Erection of a bungalow (amended scheme) - Land at 16
Manor Drive, Sawtry - 16/00099/FUL

(Councillor S Custance, Sawtry Parish Council, addressed
the Panel on the application).

that the application be approved subject to conditions to be
determined by the Planning Service Manager (Development
Management) to include those listed in paragraph 8 of the
report now submitted together with an additional condition
relating to surface water drainage.

(b) Variation of condition 20 of application reference:
13017900UT to: prior to commencement of development
mitigation measures shall be carried out in accordance
with the details in planning application reference:
15/01816/FUL, unless minor variations are otherwise
agreed in writing with the local planning authority - land
between OIld Mill Avenue and Station Road and 43
Station Road, Warboys - 15/01817/REM, 15/01816FUL
and 15/02021/S73

(Mr K Armstrong, on behalf of the Applicant, addressed the
Panel on the application).

that, subject to the prior completion of a S106 obligation

relating to affordable housing, open space, transportation
and residential wheeled bins, the application be approved

6



(c)

subject to conditions to be determined by the Planning
Service Manager (Development Management) to include
those listed in paragraph 8 of the report now submitted, or
refused in the event that the applicant is unwilling to
complete the obligation necessary to make the development
acceptable in planning terms.

(In accordance with paragraph 14.5 of the Council
Procedure Rules, Councillor P D Reeve requested that his
vote against the Motion be recorded in the Minutes).

Development of paddock land with 2 detached dwellings,
1 chalet bungalow, all with double garages, 1 terraced
building of 3 cottage dwellings for private/social
housing, all accessed from existing modified vehicle
Paddock Road access - Land West of Ashmead House,
South Street, Woodhurst - 16/00080/0OUT

that the application be refused for the following reasons:

(i) the site is located in the open countryside where
residential development in the countryside will be
restricted to that which has an essential need to be in a
rural location. The applicant has not demonstrated a
need for the development to be in this location and has
failed to put forward a convincing case as to why an
exception to the policies of the Local Planning
Authority should be made. The proposal would
therefore be contrary to the provisions of policies CS1
and CS3 of the Local Development Framework Core
Strategy 2009, policies Enl7 and H23 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995, policy HL5 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alteration 2002 and
policies LP1, LP11 and LP26 of the Draft
Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 (2013);

(i)  this site is located in the open countryside for the
purposes of the development plan. The applicant has
failed to demonstrate that the proposals meet the tests
of planning policy in terms of the delivery of affordable
housing on rural exception sites. In the absence of any
convincing arguments to the contrary, it is considered
that the proposal is contrary to policy CS5 of the
Adopted Core Strategy 2009; and LP25 & LP26 of the
Draft Local Plan to 2036, and paragraph 54 of the
NPPF, and

(i)  the development in depth within this open green space
at the edge of the village, by reason of the location of
the access way, and layout of the scheme would form
an incoherent pattern of development, and a hard edge
to the village which would result in serious harm to
significance of the adjacent the conservation area, and
the rural character of the village as a whole. The harm
caused by the proposed development is not
considered to be outweighed by public benefits. As
such the proposal is considered to be contrary to

7



60.

(d)

Policies En5, En9, and En25 of the Local Plan, and

Policies LP13, LP30 and LP31, and paras 132 and 134
of the NPPF.

Removal of condition 1 of Planning Permission
1201691S73 to allow retention of the marquee -
Kingspan Timber Solutions Ltd, Eltisley Road, Great
Gransden - 15/02381/S73

(Ms S Beaumont, Great Gransden Parish Council, and Mr S
Tindle, Agent, addressed the Panel on the application).

that the application be approved subject to conditions to be
determined by the Planning Service Manager (Development
Management) to include those listed in paragraph 8 of the
report now submitted.

APPEAL DECISIONS

The Panel received and noted a report by the Planning Service
Manager (Development Management), which contained details of four
recent decisions by the Planning Inspectorate.

RESOLVED

that the contents of the report be noted.

Chairman



Agenda Iltem 3a

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 18 APRIL 2016
Case No: 1401104FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)
Proposal: THE USE OF LAND AS A PRIVATE GYPSY AND

TRAVELLER CARAVAN SITE CONSISTING OF 4
PITCHES EACH OF WHICH WOULD COMPRISE OF 1 NO.
MOBILE HOME, 1 NO. TOURING CARAVAN, ONE SMALL
AMENITY BUILDING, HARDSTANDINGS, FOUL
DRAINAGE; CREATION OF NEW ACCESS AND TRACK

WAY
Location: KYM STABLES KIMBOLTON ROAD HAIL WESTON
Applicant: MR AND MRS M CASH
Grid Ref: 515351 263513

Date of Registration: 15.09.2014

Parish: HAIL WESTON

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE

This report is to be read in conjunction with a previous report to DMP (dated
December 2014).

On the 15™ December 2014 the Committee (Panel as it was then) resolved
that the application be approved subject to conditions to be determined by the
Head of Development to include those listed in paragraph 8 of the report now
submitted.

The recommendation remains one of approval subject to conditions but to
include a condition limiting occupation of the site by Gypsies and Travellers as
defined in the Planning Policy for Traveller Sites (PPTS) 2012 rather than the
revised definition in the 2015 version.

1. DESCRIPTION

1.1 The location of the site and the description of the development remain
the same since the report first presented to members in December
2014. However, during winter 2015 the applicant proceeded to
construct the access and erect some fencing.

1.2 On the 21% of January 2016 a further public consultation was
undertaken, as the access has been constructed further west than that
shown on the original plans. These are included in this updated report.

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE

2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development - an economic role, a social
role and an environmental role - and outlines the presumption in favour
of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government's

9



2.2

planning policies for : building a strong, competitive economy; ensuring
the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural economy;
promoting  sustainable  transport;  supporting  high  quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high quality
homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy communities;
protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of climate change,
flooding and coastal change; conserving and enhancing the natural
environment; conserving and enhancing the historic environment; and
facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

PPTS (revised August 2015) which should be read in conjunction with
the National Planning Policy Framework sets out the Government's
planning policy for traveller sites. The Governments overarching aim is
to ensure fair and equal treatment for travellers, in a way that facilitates
the traditional and nomadic life of travellers while respecting the
interests of the settled community.

For full details visit the government website
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-

and-local-government

3.

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

PLANNING POLICIES

Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995)
e No changes.

Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002)
e No changes.

Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework Core
Strategy (2009)
e No changes.

Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 (2013)
¢ No changes

Local policies are viewable at https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk

4,

4.1

5.1

PLANNING HISTORY

As per the previous report

CONSULTATIONS
Consultation responses to the amendments in January 2016:

e Great Staughton Parish Council: Approve [COMMENTS
ATTACHED]

e The Environment Agency: Confirm that the site is outside FZ3 and
their previous comments remain the same.

e Cambridgeshire County Council (CCC) Highways: The change in
location has not changed the size or altered any of the
requirements from the last consultation, | therefore have no
objections on highway safety grounds to the relocation of the
access.

10


https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government
https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/

6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

REPRESENTATIONS

Responses to the amendments in January 2016:
e None.

ASSESSMENT
The key issues that require further consideration are:

e Highway Matters
e Updated Guidance for considering Gypsy and Traveller sites
contained in PPTS 2015.

Highway Matters:

As highlighted in the introduction, the location of the access has been
established through the commencement of laying the access, and the
erection of fencing. Works have now ceased, the amended plans have
been submitted and there is no objection from CCC Highways to the
revised location given it is further from the bend in the road. The
construction details of the highway crossover will need to be approved
by CCC Highways under the relevant highways legislation.

There is no objection to the revised location of the access.
Weight to be afforded to policies and guidance

A revised PPTS was issued last month (August 2015). PPTS is
intended to be read in conjunction with the NPPF. It is considered that
the same approach to the weight which should be given to local
policies applies to their relationship with the government policy as set
out in PPTS.

PPTS 2012 defined gypsies and travellers for the purposes of planning
policy as: “Persons of nomadic habit of life whatever their race or
origin, including such persons who on grounds only of their own or their
family’s or dependants’ educational or health needs or old age have
ceased to travel temporarily or permanently, but excluding members of
an organised group of travelling showpeople or circus people travelling
together as such.”

In August 2015 the definition was changed to remove the words “or
permanently”. In its response to the consultation issued at the same
time as the revised PPTS, the Government has said that it believes it is
fair that if someone has given up travelling permanently, applications
for planning permission should be considered as they are for the
settled community within national planning policy rather than PPTS.

PPTS 2015 now advises that in determining whether persons are
gypsies and travellers, consideration should be given to the following
issues amongst other relevant matters:

a) whether they previously led a nomadic habit of life

b) the reasons for ceasing their nomadic habit of life

11



7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

¢) whether there is an intention of living a nomadic habit of life in the
future, and if so, how soon and in what circumstances.

Policies in the Core Strategy 2009 are also part of the development
plan and so can be accorded weight according to their degree of
consistency with the NPPF and PPTS. Policy CS6 - ‘Gypsies,
Travellers and Travelling Showpeople’ was written in the context of a
government circular issued in 2006 (Circular 01/2006) which
considered rural sites to be acceptable in principle. The Circular was
superseded by PPTS. The March 2012 PPTS version said that new
traveller site development in open countryside should be “strictly
limited”. The 2015 PPTS version says that it should be “very strictly
limited”. As such, it is considered that policy CS6 can be accorded
moderate weight.

The Draft Local Plan to 2036 is an emerging plan. Due weight can be
given to relevant policies in emerging plans according to: their stage of
preparation; the extent of unresolved objections to relevant policies
and the degree of consistency of relevant policies with the NPPF and
PPTS. The Draft Plan Stage 3 Consultation was prepared after the
original 2012 version of PPTS but before the revision. It is the planning
authority's view that moderate weight can be given to the draft Local
Plan policies. It is noted that with the exception of draft Policy LP12
(Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople), which sets out a
criteria based approach to new proposals, the relevant policies in this
case relate mainly to 'detailed’ matters as opposed to the principle of
the development.

Updated Guidance for considering Gypsy and Traveller sites
contained in PPTS 2015.

It is considered that the applicants comply with the PPTS 2012 and
2015, for the reasons set out in the December 2014 report. For the
avoidance of doubt each policy within the PPTS will be addressed

Policy A: Using evidence to plan positively and manage
development

The wording remains unchanged and is discussed within the
December 2014 report.

Policy B: Planning for traveller sites.

The key changes relate to paragraph 10 (a) and (b) ( Paragraph 9 of
the PPTS 2012)

10(a): In a July 2015 appeal decision (for 6 permanent pitches at the
former Megatron site at Alconbury, application 1300666FUL, appeal ref
APP/H0520/A/13/2203277) the Inspector accepted that the Council
had a five year supply. Taking that Inspector’s approach, the Council
can now demonstrate a supply of 30 deliverable pitches set against an
identified need for 22.5 by August 2020. In addition, the GTANA target
of 24 pitches for the first ten years of the plan period to April 2021 has
also been met.

12



7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

7.23

10(b): Policy B sets out the actions which local planning authorities
should take over a series of short, medium and longer time plan
periods as well as a rolling requirement for a five year supply.

A new Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Needs Assessment
(GTANA) is due to be produced in 2016 and this will inform the
preparation of forthcoming stages of the Draft Plan. However the
Stage 3 Consultation Draft Plan 2013 and the 2011 GTANA on which
it is based remain the only evidence based information currently
available. The 2011 GTANA is discussed in more detail within the
report to members in December 2014.

Policy C: Sites in rural areas and the countryside:

No change.

Policy D: Rural Exception Sites

No change.

Policy E: Traveller Sites in Green Belt

Not applicable insofar as it relates to this site.

Policy F: Mixed planning use traveller sites.

No change.

Policy G: Major development projects.

No change.

Policy H: Determining planning applications for traveller sites.

In maintaining a recommendation of approval, regard is had to the
revised wording to ‘strictly limit new traveller site development in the
open countryside’. The application has been carefully considered and
significant weight given to the lawful use of the site as set out in the
previous report. Furthermore, the site is well screened from the public
highway. In addition, there continues to be no publically available
sites within the district.

Policy I: Implementation

As Read.

Other material considerations

At the same time the Department for Communities and Local
Government published the revised PPTS, the Government issued a
planning policy statement about unauthorised development. It
provides that as from 31st August 2015 intentional unauthorised
development is a material consideration to be weighed in the
determination of planning applications and appeals. This policy only
applies to all new planning applications and appeals received from 31

August 2015. It does not therefore apply to this application which was
validated in September 2014.

13



7.24

7.25

7.26

7.27

Justification for the application of limiting occupation in accordance
with PPTS 2012:

The application was received on the 15" September 2014, reported
to DMP on the 15™ December 2014. Following an e-mail exchange
regarding wording of the S106 an amended version was received on
the 11™ June 2015. It would therefore have been reasonable for the
applicant to expect a decision prior to the implementation of PPTS
2015 (which came into effect in August 2015). However, ongoing
discussions relating to the S106 delayed issuing the decision.

Conclusion:

The applicants continue to meet the definition of ‘gypsies and
travellers’ as defined in PPTS 2012 and PPTS 2015. However, due
regard is had to the time taken to resolve S106 matters and it is
reasonable to condition the occupancy of the site to accord with
PPTS 2012.

The revised location of the access has been regularised by way of an
amendment that is to the satisfaction of the LHA, and those plans are
now attached.

RECOMMENDATION

The recommendation remains one of approval subject to conditions
set out in section 8 of the December 2014 report but the condition
limiting occupation of the site by Gypsies and Travellers is as defined
in PPTS 2012, rather than the revised definition in the 2015 version.

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Clara Kerr Development Management Team
Leader 01480 388434

14



HAIL WESTON PARISH COUNCIL

1" February 2016

APPLICATION NUMBER: 1401104FUL

LOCATION: Kym'’s stables Hail Weston

PROPOSAL; Amended access details.

APPROVED -The PC support re submitted plans for access which involve moving the main
gateway back onto the site.

This was one of several ‘Highways’ points Hail Weston Parish Council and other residents
objected to when this application was first considered.

One resident observation (supporting new access) made to PC.

Jenwnifer Abells
Clerk to Hail Weston Parish Council

15



Development Management Panel " e
Huntingdonshire

N Scale =1:2,500 Application Ref: 14/01104/FUL DisTRIZT COURELL
<I> Date Created: 23/03/2016 Location: Hail Weston

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016
Ordnance Survey HDC 100022322

B Tt 1 =Ty
égsbtéughtonb | fl AQ;L‘?‘#H }:‘C

Py Green . A
E) STy . \ d[
L

—_

Midloe !
|
Grange |
|

et
....... - Y,
Beacon e
{QF'“ !
S
[Stannhton

Key

"] The Site
I Listed Building
@ Conservation Area

16




01278/10

DRG.No.

A1
y
y
y
y
y
y
7
/ 1)
y
y
A <
P
\\
A
>

OS X (Eastings) 515324

OS Y (Northings) 263560

Nearest Post Code PE19 5LB

Lat (WGS84) N52:15:29 (52.258130)
Long (WGS84) W0:18:42
(-0.311804) LR TL153635

mX -34709

mY 6813122

Ordnance Survey <(c) Crown Copyright 2014. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

0 mebes 10 20

TITLE CLIENT

S.A.B.DRAWING & DESIGN RELOCATION OF ONE GYPSY AND TRAVELLER PITCH AND
Mrs CASH

THREE ADDITIONAL PITCHES ON LAND AT
ﬁzl-IMEgRﬁ?NEGRDITOEM ROEAX[;s“g-IE-[';TON DEVON KYM STABLES, KIMBOLTON ROAD, HAIL WESTON, ST.NEOTS,
PE19 5LB.

TEL: +44 (0) 1884 254004
E—-MAIL: steve@sabdrawings.com SITE LOCATION PLAN

DRN. SAB

DRG. No.

DATE 01.05.14

SCALE A4 1:2500

01278/10

Rev:

4 (10.01.16)

17




8T

1 = X20.05 )
|‘ %, o Y\@
QAl i TE -
1 @
Ny \ \ﬂz A
w Spread15.0 1 et
\ ' &
'\ 1 Lo
1
Al )
1 o
~— ' o5
d p b CONTROL BOX P e
Q PASTURE
=z <& . p .
[©] ° e . <1975
D: HORSE EXERCISER - “
[m)] .
/ / o
,‘.y %
/ ;1 19.80
:"é_’_(& . Extent of Flood Zone 3a °
(including an allowance for ®
climate change) taken from the .
vLoN Huntingdonshire Strategic Flood
| Risk Assessment Tile TL16SE. o
‘ PASTURE R
|
¢ 1972
o &
| (
| 1
\ 1
1
‘ NEW TREE H
1
Y . 1 p
3z 1
N R 1 NEW. TREE x19.85 3
e ) 1 o
BB o f2078 o
| R ' .
By ARES 1 p
\ o \ |\ \ ,
1 |
» 1 ‘ \ | INEW TREE o
< 7 B 1 || \ p
- [ | | \ ]
y Play Area ) 0
1 x20.64
‘ PAS‘ RE 2 \%’ ol
NEW TREE \ ‘?/P O
% P ”
N \ I S .
o~ ‘\ Y ‘ ‘ o Ny o
Extent of Flood Zone 2 taken * | \ 2.0m high Close_ p AN p
from the Huntingdonshire AN ‘ Eg:;‘;e(‘:‘;"’g’;{ N s
S Strategic Flood Risk s climbable) all © N s
Assessment Tile TL16SE. N Lt:)usn(g stauncion & %, y )
‘ x20.71 ‘GRAVEL O‘P K )
PASTURE 7/ o
NEV TREE x19.64
Spread:1l.0
SRgS
oW
VISIBILITY
East (to Bend) = 157m , J5ePost
West = 215m Estsaanroo 7 TROUGH
Z20.090
x19.68
|

0 metres 10 20

30 40 50

S.A.B.DRAWING & DESIGN

UNITED KINGDOM EX16 6TD
TEL: +44 (0) 1884 254004

26 MARGUERITE ROAD TIVERTON DEVON

THIS DRAWING IS SUBJECT TO COPYRIGHT AND MUST NOT BE COPIED
OR REPRODUCED WITHOUT THE PERMISSION OF SAB DRAWING & DESIGN
THIS DRAWING HAS BEEN PRODUCED FOR PLANNING/BUILDING

o0 Tinber Fenco
oo Tt Fene

Physical Barrier to
prevent the traffic
travelling to/from
the pitches from

lising the
xisting access

o5 Boars

Ol

e

. o

REGULATION APPROVAL ONLY AND DOES NOT GUARANTEE THAT ALL
WORKS HAVE BEEN DESIGNED OR INCLUDED. ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE

CHECKED BY THE CONTRACTOR BEFORE COMMENCEMENT OF
CONSTRUCTION.

B\ HIGH

' CLIENT

N

E—MAIL: steve@sabdrawings.com

PROVISION OF FOUR PITCHES ON LAND AT

NO RESPONSIBILITY OR LIABILITY FOR NONCOMPLIANCE OR LACK OF
INFORMATION WILL BE ACCEPTED.

KYM STABLES, KIMBOLTON ROAD, HAIL WESTON,

NO RESPONSIBILITY OR LIABILITY FOR CHANGES MADE BY THE CLIENT

ST.NEOTS, PE19 5LB.

OR CONTRACTOR EITHER PRIOR OR DURING CONSTRUCTION WILL BE
ACCEPTED. SCALE AS SHOWN IS SUBJECT TO CORRECT PRINTING.

Rev

Date

Revision

BLOCK PLAN / PROPOSED LAYOUT

Mrs CASH

DRN. SAB DRG. No.

DATE 01.05.14

01278/2

SCALE A3 1:500

Rev: 10 (10.01.16)




6T

DRGNo. 01278/6

The access centre line to be 9 metres from the
boundary. The access width shall be a minimum
of 5.5 metres and a maximum of 6 metres for
the first 15 metres back from the edge of the
carriageway. 6 metre radius kerb lines provided
both sides of the access with battered kerbs on
the end of the western radius adjacent the field
access.

The gates shall be set back 15 metres from the
carriageway edge and opening inwards.

Gates and flank fencing as shown on drawing

GRAVEL

PASTURE

An application to Cambridgeshire County
Council for approval to carry out works within
the highway under the Highways Act 1980
and/or the New Roads and Street Works Act
1991 shall be made.

Work within the highway ( carriageway and the
roadside verge) shall only be carried out with
the highway authority's written approval;

Work within the highway will only be carried
out to the highway authority's specifications and
existing work will be removed.

Work within the highway shall be carried out
by a contractors with authorisation to work
within the highway and with the necessary
insurance cover.

'Road Space' will be booked so that the main
road can be reduced to a single carriageway
with traffic light control for the safety of
workers and highway users at a time agreed by
the highway authority.

The new access will be constructed with
drainage which prevents surface water
running-off onto the adjacent public highway.
Public utilities (gas, water, telephone,
electricity) shall be located to avoid damage by
any of the work. If utilities are within the area
of the works the service provider shall be
contacted to reach an agreement on any
necessary alterations or protection measures.

01278/5.
The tarmac shall be laid with a gradiant of .
minimum 1:60 away from the highway to o
ensure any surface water does not run onto the ~ ~_
highway. o
0 1 2 3 o
METRES o
S.A.B.DRAWING & DESIGN [ r REPRODCED WTHOUT THE PERWISSION OF SAB DRAWNG & DESIGN. TITLE CLIENT DRN SAB DRG. No.
THIS DRAWING HAS BEEN PRODUCED FOR PLANNING/BUILDING M
Mrs CASH

REGULATION APPROVAL ONLY AND DOES NOT GUARANTEE THAT ALL
26 MARGUERITE ROAD TIVERTON DEVON WORKS HAVE BEEN DESIGNED OR INCLUDED. ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE

UNITED KINGDOM EX16 6TD CHECKED BY THE CONTRACTOR BEFORE COMMENCEMENT OF
CONSTRUCTION.
TEL: +44 (0) 1884 254004 NO RESPONSIBILITY OR LIABILITY FOR NONCOMPLIANCE OR LACK OF
_ . i INFORMATION WILL BE ACCEPTED.
E-MAIL: steve@sabdrawings.com NO RESPONSIBILITY OR LIABILITY FOR CHANGES MADE BY THE CLIENT

OR CONTRACTOR EITHER PRIOR OR DURING CONSTRUCTION WILL BE
ACCEPTED. SCALE AS SHOWN IS SUBJECT TO CORRECT PRINTING. Rev| Date Revision

NEW ACCESS

DATE 20.1215 01278/6

SCALE AT A3 1100 [Rew 2 (100170




GREEN PAPERS FOLLOW

20



DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 15"December 2014

Case No: 1401104FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)

Proposal: THE USE OF LAND AS A PRIVATE GYPSY AND

TRAVELLER CARAVAN SITE CONSISTING OF 4
PITCHES EACH OF WHICH WOULD COMPRISE OF 1 NO.
MOBILE HOME, 1 NO. TOURING CARAVAN, ONE SMALL
AMENITY BUILDING, HARDSTANDINGS, FOUL
DRAINAGE; CREATION OF NEW ACCESS AND TRACK

WAY
Location: KYM STABLES KIMBOLTON ROAD
Applicant: MR AND MRS M CASH
Grid Ref: 515351 263513

Date of Registration: 15.09.2014

Parish:

HAIL WESTON

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE

This application is reported to the Development Management Panel as
the Parish Council’'s recommendation is contrary to the officer's
recommendation.

1.

11

1.2

1.3

DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

The recommendation is one of APPROVAL subject to completion of a
S106 agreement to remove the existing mobile home and the existing
lawful residential land use.

This proposal relates to Kym Stables approximately east 2.2km east
of the settlement of Great Staughton and approximately 1.5km west
of the settlement of Hail Weston. The site comprises stables, a
manege and a horse exerciser. On the 19th October 2012 a
certificate of lawful existing use and development was granted for the
siting of one residential mobile home to the south west of the stables.
The mobile home is occupied by the applicant and their 7 children.
The stables, mobile home and surrounding land are accessed from
the south east of the site, directly from the B645.

This proposal relates to approximately 0.5ha of land inclusive of the
existing manege. The proposal is provide a total of 4 residential
pitches for Gypsies and Travellers. Each pitch will comprise 1 mobile
home, 1 touring caravan and 1 single storey amenity block to provide
cooking and washing facilities. The existing residential mobile home
on site will be removed via a S106 agreement. All four pitches will be
accessed via a new access to be sited to the south west of the site.
The existing access will be retained but for access to the grazing land
only. It is also proposed to carry out additional landscaping within the
site.

21



The site area within the red line lies within Strategic Flood Risk
Assessment Flood Zones 2 and 3a. The residential pitches are
proposed in SFRA zone 2 and partially in 3a but with no habitable
accommodation in 3a. The grazing land to the north east is in Flood
Zone 3a.

NATIONAL GUIDANCE

The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development - an economic role, a social
role and an environmental role, and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government's
planning policies for : building a strong, competitive economy;
ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural
economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high
quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of
climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and
enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

Planning Policy for Traveller Sites (March 2012) which came into
force alongside the NPPF sets out the Government’s planning policy
for traveller sites. The Governments overarching aim is to ensure fair
and equal treatment for travellers, in a way that facilitates the
traditional and nomadic of life of travellers while respecting the
interests of the settled community.

For full details visit the government website
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-
communities-and-local-government

PLANNING POLICIES

Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995)
e H23: "Outside Settlements"

¢ H31: “Residential privacy and amenity standards

e H37: “Environmental Pollution”

e T18: “Access requirements for new development”

e T19: “Pedestrian Routes and Footpath”

¢ EN17: "Development in the Countryside"

o En25: "General Design Criteria"

o (CS8: “Water” CS9: “Flood water management”

Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002)

22


https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

¢ None relevant.

Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework Core
Strategy (2009)

e (CS1:. “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” — all
developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and
economic issues. All aspects will be considered including design,
implementation and function of development. Including reducing
water consumption and wastage, minimising impact on water
resources and water quality and managing flood risk.

e (CS3: “The Settlement Hierarchy”

o CS6: “Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople”

Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 (2013)

e PolicyLP 1

Strategy and principles for development

e a mix of employment

e Policy LP 6 - Flood Risk and Water Management

o Policy LP 11 - The Relationship Between the Built-up Area and the
Countryside

e Policy LP 12

o Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople

e Policy LP 13 - Quality of Design

e Policy LP 15 - Ensuring a High Standard of Amenity

e Policy LP 29 - Trees, Woodland and Related Features
Other HDC Planning Documents:

e Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA) 2010
(Part C)

o Officer Response to SHLAA Part C — June/July 2012

e Local Plan to 2036 - Gypsy and Traveller Pitch Targets —
September 2013

e Huntingdonshire Landscape and Townscape Assessment SPD
2007

Local policies are viewable at https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk

23


https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

6.1

PLANNING HISTORY
9701241FUL — Erection of stables — permission granted.

1201347CLED - Certificate of lawful existing use for changing use of
the land for siting of a caravan for residential use — consent granted.

CONSULTATIONS

Hail Weston Parish Council — Recommend refusal [COMMENTS
ATTACHED] on the grounds of:

e No Need
e Countryside location
e This is significant development

e The CLED was not tested through the vigour of the planning
system.

e The existing site does not meets the needs of the applicant and
those needs should be met elsewhere in the County ( schooling
etc.)

¢ Flooding Matters

e Disagreement with the speed survey

¢ Highway Safety

Great Staughton Parish Council - Recommend refusal
[COMMENTS ATTACHED] on the grounds of:

e Highway Safety

¢ Flooding matters including foul drainage

e Queries if the family do live on site.

The Environment Agency — No objection subject to a condition to
control minimum floor levels. They defer to the LPA regarding the
sequential and exceptions test.

Cambridgeshire County Council — The existing access is not
suitable for an intensification of use. However no objection to the new

access subject to conditions.

HDC Environmental Health — No objection subject to adequate
drainage.

REPRESENTATIONS

18 contributors made up of 17 objections and 1 representation on the
grounds of:

24



7.1

o Highway Safety including death of livestock on the B645 and a
fatal accident.

e An application from the settled community would be unacceptable.
e Foul drainage vulnerable to flooding
e The River Kym is prone to flooding

e Speed survey done outside of summer months when B645 is used
by motorcyclists.

¢ No indicators that the applicants are integrated into the local
community.

e This proposal is contrary to policy.
e The site is remote from services.
e Contamination

e Soil type and many houses in Hail Weston are served by an
aquifer

¢ Industrial activities in the open countryside.

¢ Why not consider industrial estates.

¢ No Facilities in Hail Weston

ASSESSMENT OF ISSUES

The following matters are relevant to the determination of this case:
o Weight to be applied to policy and guidance

e Principle of the development, including the need for traveller
pitches

e Access to services and amenities for future occupiers
¢ Visual amenity

¢ Highway matters

¢ Flooding matters

o Drainage

e Other matters

e The planning balance

25



Weight to be afforded to policies and guidance

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

Having regard to paragraph 215 of the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) due weight can be given to development plan
policies adopted before the NPPF according to their degree of
consistency with it. National policy for gypsy and traveller sites is set
out in a separate document ‘Planning Policy for Traveller Sites’
(PPTS) published by the Government at the same time as the NPPF
and intended to be read in conjunction with it. It is considered that
the same approach to the weight which should be given to local
policies applies to their relationship with the Government policy as set
out in PPTS.

The saved policies in the Local Plan 1995, which are part of the
development plan can, notwithstanding their age, be accorded due
weight according to their degree of consistency with the NPPF and
PPTS. The saved policies in this case mainly relate to ‘detailed’
matters as opposed to the principle of the development, as such they
are broadly consistent with the NPPF and can be accorded significant
weight.

Policies in the Core Strategy 2009 which is part of the development
plan can also be accorded full weight according to their degree of
consistency with the NPPF and PPTS. Policy CS6 was based on
Circular 01/2006 which considered rural sites to be acceptable in
principle. The Circular has been superseded by PPTS which says
development in the countryside should be strictly limited. PPTS has
also changed the weight which can be given to some of the policy’s
criteria and this is reflected in the emerging criteria in draft Local Plan
policy LP12 which are considered below.

Having regard to the stage of its preparation, the extent of unresolved
objections to relevant policies and the degree of consistency of
relevant policies with the NPPF and PPTS, it is the planning
authority’s view that moderate weight can be given to the draft Local
Plan policies. It is noted that with the exception of draft Policy LP12
(Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople), which sets out a
criteria based approach to new proposals, the relevant policies in this
case relate mainly to ‘detailed’ matters as opposed to the principle of
the development.

2. Principle of the development, including the need for traveller
pitches, access to services and facilities, impact on the settled
community, residential amenity for pitch occupants, drainage, and
landscape and visual impact.

The site is not in the built-up area of a settlement, nor is it considered
to be adjacent or related to either settlement and therefore in
planning policy terms it is in an area which is considered to be in the
countryside in which planning policies for the countryside apply.
Except on statutorily designated Green Belt land (not applicable
anywhere in Huntingdonshire) PPTS is not opposed in principle to
traveller sites in the countryside. The publication of the PPTS in 2012
represented a change to previous Government policy set out in
Circular 01/2006 which said that gypsy and traveller sites were
appropriate in principle in rural settings where not subject to special
planning constraints. PPTS Policy H (paragraph 23) says that local

26



7.8

planning authorities should strictly limit new traveller site development
in open countryside that is away from existing settlements or outside
areas allocated in the development plan. In recent decisions post-
dating PPTS the Council has accepted that planning permission can
be granted on sites in the countryside.

The means by which new traveller development is to be controlled in
line with this approach of being strictly limited are set out in further
policies in PPTS and in local policies and these are considered
below.

PPTS policies and criteria

7.9

7.10

7.11

Policy H (paragraph 23) also says local planning authorities should
ensure that sites in rural areas respect the scale of, and do not
dominate the nearest settled community, and avoid placing an undue
pressure on local infrastructure. The villages of Hail Weston and
Great Staughton have populations of approximately 890 and 600
people respectively. Great Staughton has approximately 370
dwellings and Hail Weston has approximately 240 dwellings. Wood
View is the nearest dwelling, and lies approximately 60m west of the
site and is separated from the site by the B645. The nearest dwelling
to the south east of the site is approximately 410m away and again is
on the opposite side of the road. The site is approximately 2.2km
from Great Staughton and 1.5km from the settlement of Hail Weston.
While Hail Weston has no facilities, Great Staughton has a primary
school, doctor’s surgery, a butchers and public houses.

In respect of numbers and proximity, the development does not
dominate the nearest settled communities. It is considered that the
pressure imposed on local infrastructure by traveller pitches is
broadly comparable to that imposed by the same number of dwellings
for the settled community. For comparison, both Great Staughton
and Hail Weston are designated a Smaller Settlements in the Draft
Local Plan within which new market housing would be permitted on a
scale which takes into account the availability of services and
sustainable modes of transport and makes efficient use of land and
existing infrastructure. It is not considered that 3 additional pitches
would place undue pressure on either village.

Under PPTS Policy B planning authorities should, amongst other
things, set pitch targets for gypsies and travellers which address likely
needs in their area, working collaboratively with neighbouring local
planning authorities. In producing their local plans they should
amongst other things:

a) identify and update annually, a supply of specific deliverable sites
sufficient to provide five years’ worth of sites against their locally set
targets;

b) identify a supply of specific, developable sites or broad locations
for growth, for years six to ten and, where possible, for years 11-15.

d) relate the number of pitches to the circumstances of the specific

size or location of the site and the surrounding population’s size and
density;

27



7.12

7.13

e) protect local amenity and environment

Criteria should be set to guide land supply allocations where there is
identified need and, where there is no identified need, criteria based
policies should be included to provide a basis for the determination of
applications which come forward. These policies should be ‘fair and
should facilitate the traditional and nomadic life of travellers while
respecting the interests of the settled community.’

Policy H, paragraph 22 notes that planning law requires applications
for planning permission to be determined in accordance with the
provisions of the development plan, unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. Applications should also be assessed and
determined in accordance with the presumption in favour of
sustainable development in the NPPF and the PPTS. It says that
local planning authorities should consider the following issues,
amongst other relevant matters, when considering planning
applications:

a) the existing level of local provision and need for sites

b) the availability (or lack) of alternative accommodation for the
applicants

c) other personal circumstances of the applicant

d) that the locally specific criteria used to guide the allocation of sites
in plans or which form the policy where there is no identified need for
pitches should be used to assess applications that may come forward
on unallocated sites

e) that they should determine applications for sites from any travellers
and not just those with local connections.

The need for traveller pitches

7.14

7.15

7.16

Policy H Paragraph 22 (a) - Existing level of local provision and need
for sites

There are no local numeric targets in adopted development plan
policies. Following the abolition of Regional Spatial Strategies (RSS)
which had previously set targets for each district the Government
advised local planning authorities they would be responsible for
determining the right level of local site provision. Gypsy and Traveller
Accommodation Assessments (GTAAs) were advocated as a good,
but not binding, starting point for local authorities to identify their own
levels of provision.

Work to provide an up-to-date GTAA was carried out in 2011 led by
Cambridgeshire County Council’'s research team. The resulting
Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Needs Assessment (GTANA)
concluded that there was a need in Huntingdonshire for an additional
53 pitches between January 2011 and January 2031. It assessed the
‘backlog’ of permanent pitches in Huntingdonshire’s case as 17
pitches primarily as a result of the temporary approvals. A model of
projected population growth based on available figures of children
registered for education indicated that there would be an annual local

28



7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

need from newly forming households of between 3 and 5 pitches per
year, some of which would be met by turnover of existing pitches.

A target of 64 pitches or 2.5 pitches per year was included in the
Stage 2 Consultation Draft Local Plan (2012). This target was based
on the findings of the 2011 GTANA, projected to the timeframe of the
Council's revised Local Plan (April 2011 to April 2036). The
projection to 2036 is made using the GTANA’s assessment of 53
pitches from January 2011 to January 2031 and adding 11 more
pitches for the extra 5 years at the same rate of provision used for the
period 2026 to 2031. This approach (2.5 pitches per year) is followed
in the Stage 3 Consultation Draft Plan, (paragraph 5.59) which
underwent public consultation between May and July 2013. The
District need, as set out in paragraphs 5.59 and 5.60 of the Stage 3
Draft Local Plan is for 64 new pitches by 2036.

In terms of calculating a target, the Council has not received any
significant criticism of its approach to date. One commentator has
raised concerns about paragraph 5.59 of the draft Local Plan to 2036:
Stage 3. The concerns are that the target of 64 pitches should be a
minimum figure and that the figure should be ‘front loaded’ to secure
provision early in the plan period. The response to this concern is
that the 2011 GTANA had identified a ‘backlog’ of 17 pitches in its
total target of 17 pitches for the first five years (2011 to 2016), and a
total of 24 pitches for the first ten years (2011 to 2021). To date a
total of 23 permanent pitches have been granted planning permission
in the first 3.25 years of the plan period and this has front loaded
provision.

PPTS policy B which relates to ‘plan-making’ says that planning
authorities should amongst other things:

a) identify and update annually a supply of specific deliverable sites to
provide five years’ worth of sites against their locally set targets, and

b) identify a supply of specific, developable sites or broad locations
for growth for years 6-10 and, where possible years 11-15. To be
considered developable a site should be in a suitable location and
there should be a reasonable prospect that the site is available and
could be viably developed at the point envisaged.

Policy B therefore sets out the actions which local planning authorities
should take over a series of short, medium and longer time plan
periods as well as a rolling requirement for a five year supply. When
an authority cannot demonstrate an up-to-date five year supply policy
H, which relates to ‘decision-taking’, says this should be a significant
material consideration in any subsequent planning decision when
considering applications for the grant of temporary planning
permission.

The implications for this application are:
e There is a need for further pitches to be provided in the District
over the lifetime of the Draft Local Plan. If the application site is

considered suitable in all other respects for the form and scale of
development proposed a permanent permission for 2 pitches

29



7.22

7.23

7.24

7.25

would contribute to this need and that would be a material
consideration in determining the application.

o If the application site is considered unsuitable for a permanent
planning permission policy H says that the absence of a five years’
supply should be a significant material consideration when
considering applications for the grant of temporary planning
permission. It must be noted however that in addition to the 23
permanent pitches which have been approved since 2011 there is
already a developed site with 10 pitches at Bluntisham which has a
temporary planning permission to April 2015.

In May 2010 Part C of a revised Strategic Housing Land Availability
Assessment (SHLAA) was the subject of public consultation. 22
Potential sites were considered. This site was not considered as part
of the SHLAA

Following the consultation period Part C was not finalised and was
instead put on hold because, in addition to the Coalition
Government’s announcement of the intention to abolish the RSS, it
also announced that it intended to change national planning policy for
gypsy and traveller pitches. It is relevant to note however that the
specific calls for gypsy and traveller sites through the SHLAA and the
Local Plan consultations have yielded few sites.

An officer response summarising the matters raised in comments to
the SHLAA Part C consultation was added to the Council's website in
July 2012. This site was not identified as part of the 2010 SHLAA.
This site is not the site within Hail Weston discounted as part of that
SHLAA.

The assessment concluded that additional information was required
for the LPA to be satisfied that the boundaries of the site are
appropriate having regard to biodiversity and the neighbouring
businesses, but given the small scale of the proposal this could be
possible.

Other PPTS policy criteria

7.26

7.27

7.28

7.29

Policy H Paragraph 22 (c) - Personal circumstances of the applicant.
As above.

Policy H Paragraph 22 (d) Locally specific criteria used to guide the
allocation of sites in plans or which form the policy where there is no
identified need for pitches should be used to assess applications that
may come forward on unallocated sites - These aspects are
considered later in the report in terms of the criteria in Policy CS6 of
the Core Strategy and draft Policy LP12 of the Local Plan to 2036:
Stage 3.

Policy H Paragraph 22 (e) - Determine applications for sites from any
travellers and not just those with local connections — The Cash family
have owned and lived on site since 2009, gaining a certificate of
lawful development for a single mobile home in 2011.

Policy H Paragraph 24 of the PPTS says that local planning
authorities should attach weight to the following matters:

30



a) the effective use of previously developed (brownfield), untidy or
derelict land — The application site has a single mobile home on the
land, a manage, stables and horse exercising equipment. Annex 2 of
the NPPF defines Previously Developed Land. While it excludes
agricultural and forestry buildings, it does not exclude other rural
buildings. While the land is used for grazing animals, planning
permission 9701241FUL granted permission for the permanent siting
of the stables and the manege(also described as a horse exerciser).
For that reason it is considered that the land on which these 4 pitches
will stand is ‘previously developed land’. This would therefore be an
effective use of previously developed land.

b) sites being well planned or soft landscaped in such a way as to
positively enhance the environment and increase its openness — This
site is well screened and is not visible from the public highway.

c) promoting opportunities for healthy lifestyles, such as ensuring
adequate landscaping and play areas for children — For a
development as small as four pitches young children would normally
be expected to play within the pitches rather than on a separate play
area. It is also noted that the landownership extends to open
paddocks for grazing, also allowing for children to play.

d) not enclosing a site with so much hard landscaping, high walls or
fences, that the impression may be given that the site and its
occupants are deliberately isolated from the rest of the community —
The soft landscaping is existing, and provides soft screening. It also
provides separation and noise mitigation from the B645.

Core Strategy policy CS6 criteria

7.30

7.31

7.32

7.33

(i) There would be no significant adverse effect on the amenity of
nearby residents or operations of adjoining land uses — In respect of
numbers and proximity the development does not dominate the
nearest settled community in the village or the outlying group of
dwellings. The proposed development of 4 pitches is acceptable.

(i) The development should not have a significant adverse impact on
the character of the landscape and appropriate landscaping and
boundaries should be provided — This point has been discussed
within this report.

(i) Access to services and facilities. Adequate schools, shops and
other community facilities are within reasonable travelling distance,
and can be reached by foot, cycle or public transport — As highlighted
earlier in this report the site is approximately 2.2km from Great
Staughton and approximately 1.5km from Hail Weston. The B645 is
unlit, has no footways and traffic travels at and above the 60mph
speed limit There is no public transport available. There are roadside
verges which can act as a refuge for pedestrians but they are for
much of the route not suitable as a path.

There has been a subtle shift in emphasis from the Adopted Core
Strategy CS6 approach on this criterion within the PPTS which refers
to promoting opportunities for healthy lifestyles. As such it is
considered that the requirement for adequate facilities to be

31



7.34

7.35

7.36

7.37

reachable by foot, cycle or public transport is not a matter on which a
fundamental objection can be supported. In coming to this conclusion,
regard has been had by officers to other sites and appeal decisions
within the District where Inspectors have concluded that in terms of
the relative distances with services and/or lack of safe pedestrian
routes between Traveller sites and settlements is not unusual within a
rural location. The development will give rise to journeys by motor
vehicle but they should be relatively short.

(iv) The site is served (or can be served) by an adequate water
supply and appropriate means of sewage disposal which meets
national standards — A water supply is available on the site to serve
the existing residential mobile home and the stables. An improved
water supply and sewage disposal can be secured by planning
condition.

(v) The health and safety of occupants are not put at risk including
through unsafe access to sites, poor air quality and unacceptable
noise (as for example close to trunk roads) or unacceptable flood risk
so that the quality of the environment is at the same acceptable
standard as for the settled community — This will be discussed further
under a separate heading below.

(vi) There should be adequate space for operational needs including
the parking, turning and servicing of vehicles — The site is large
enough to provide these facilities.

Draft Local Plan policy LP12 criteria — just say here we give it limited
weight and whether it accords with the PPTS

Flooding Matters

7.38

7.39

The site subject of this application lies in Flood Zone 2, as per the
Councils Strategic Flood Risk Assessment. The detailed submission
included a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA). The EA have reviewed the
FRA and have no objection subject to a condition to ensure minimum
levels for the mobile homes.

Paragraphs 100-104 of the NPPF set out the Government’'s guidance
in relation to development within flood zones and that advice is
reinforced by Planning Practice Guidance (PPG). The PPG identifies
caravans for residential purposes as ‘Highly Vulnerable’ and schemes
for residential caravans in SFRA zone 2 should be subject of a
sequential and exceptions test. Highly vulnerable uses within Zone 3a
should be avoided. While a change in land use does not require a
sequential and exceptions test, this scheme is for additional
residential development, and for that reason the sequential and
exceptions tests do apply.

Sequential Test

7.40

As already identified the nearest Gypsy and Traveller site is the
Cambridge County Council site on Cambridge Road, St. Neots, and
that site is at capacity, with a waiting list. As already identified there
are 23 lawful pitches throughout the district but these are private
pitches and there is no assumption of availability.

32



7.41

7.42

There are no lawful alternative available sites within district upon
which the development under consideration could take place and as
already discussed elsewhere in this report there is an identifiable
need for development of this type to 2036.

Having regard to the approach of Justice Wyn Williams in the case of
Miles O’Connor v Secretary of State for Communities and Local
Government and Epping Forest Council ( Nov 2014), the proposal
passes the Sequential Test.

Exceptions Test

7.43

7.44

Paragraph 2 of the NPPF advises that for the Exceptions Test to be
passed:

e It must be demonstrated that the development provides wider
sustainability benefits to the community that outweigh flood risk
informed by a SFRA, where one has been prepared; and

¢ A site specific FRA must demonstrate that the development will be
safe for its lifetime taking account of the vulnerability of its users
without increasing flood risk elsewhere, and, where possible will
reduce flood risk overall.

Having regard to PTTS which covers these points, and has been
discussed above. This site can be considered ‘previously developed
land’, Advantages are that the scheme would avoid the
disadvantages of an itinerant roadside or other unauthorised camping
for both the family involved and the local communities. Furthermore
the site specific FRA demonstrates that the site will be safe for its
lifetime and will not increase flood risk elsewhere. It is noted that
FZ3a does cut through the eastern corner of plot 3 where no buildings
are proposed. However is also noted that the land levels in this corner
are not very different to the land levels identified in FZ2. This proposal
passes the Exceptions Test This proposal accords with the NPPF
paragraphs 100-104, PPG“Flood Risk”, Policy CS9 of the HLP 1995
and policy LP6 of The Huntingdonshire Draft Local Plan to 2036. For
that reason this proposal is considered to pass the Exceptions Test

Drainage

7.45

The site is served by 1 septic tank to the existing mobile home.
Paragraphs 109-120 of the PPG set out the Government’s advice on
conserving and enhancing the natural environment. That advice is
reinforced by paragraph 20 of the PPG which advises that in the first
instance it should be mains drainage. Where that is not available it
should be a package sewage treatment plant (a package sewage
treatment plant is like a mini-sewage works and produces much
cleaner effluent than septic tanks. Package treatment plants are more
sophisticated than septic tanks and require a source of power as well
as regular maintenance. They also accumulate solid matter (sludge)
that is settled out from the sewage, and require de-sludging.)

33



7.46 HDC Environmental Health has no objections subject to the provision
of efficient drainage. This can be secured by way of a planning
condition.

Highway Matters

7.47 The application includes a new access approximately 94m west of the
existing application. This application is also accompanied by a speed
survey. CCC Highways advise:

¢ Vehicle to vehicle visibility and forward visibility is in accordance
with current guidance associated with the measured oncoming
speed of vehicles.

¢ The measured speed of the vehicles approaching from the south
east which is the direction of most concern regarding the new
access, they also confirm that the speed survey was carried out in
the correct location in order to get a representative 85 percentile
indication of vehicles approaching from this direction.

e Vehicles approaching from the north west given the adopted
highway and land within their control have 2.4m x 215m, therefore
no speed survey for this direction was required.

e The proposed access, given the proposed use, is of a suitable
design with regards to size and geometry to cater for the amount
and type of vehicles associated with such a scheme.

7.48 However, they also advise that an intensification of use of the existing
access is unacceptable. With that in mind it is noted that the applicant
is proposing to erect close boarded fencing to prevent access to the
residential pitches but vehicles could use this access for the
movement of grazing animals onto/from the adjacent grazing land/
open countryside. This is considered reasonable and not materially
more harmful than the existing arrangement, (namely the existing
access serves both the residential mobile home, stables and the
wider countryside), subject to conditions relating to

e Gates to be set back a minimum of 15m

e Access width and distance

¢ Parking and turning in accordance with the approved plan.
o Visibility Splays

e Junction of the access with the highway

Prevention of surface water run-off into the public highway.

7.49 This proposal accords with the NPPF ( Paragraph 17) and policy
LP18 of The Huntingdonshire Draft Local Plan to 2036.

The planning balance

34



7.50

7.51

PPTS, to which full weight can be given, sets out the Government’s
overarching aims which is to ensure fair and equal treatment for
travellers, in a way that facilitates the traditional and nomadic way of
life of travellers while respecting the interests of the settled
community. Its detailed aims (paragraph 4) include:

o that local planning authorities should make their own assessment
of need for the purposes of planning;

e encouraging local planning authorities to plan for sites over a
reasonable timescale;

e to promote more private traveller site provision while recognising
that there will always be those travellers who cannot provide their
own sites;

e to increase the number of traveller sites in appropriate locations
with planning permission, to address under-provision and maintain
an appropriate level of supply;

e to reduce tensions between settled and traveller communities in
plan- making and planning decisions;

e to enable the provision of suitable accommodation from which
travellers can access education, health, welfare and employment
infrastructure;

o for local planning authorities to have due regard to the protection
of local amenity and local environment.

Other than in respect of the design of the access, lighting, a flood
evacuation scheme and the drainage design for which further
information is required, no harm in terms of material planning
considerations has been identified and it is considered that subject to
satisfactory resolution of these matters and the imposition of suitable
planning conditions planning permission can be granted. This
countryside location is appropriate for the scale of development
proposed.

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVAL

The delegated authority is given to the Head of Development on
receipt and completion of a S106 agreement to remove the existing
mobile home and lawful residential land use on which that mobile
home stands, the receipt of satisfactory details of landscaping,
access and drainage design GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION
subject to conditions including the following:

e Time Limit

¢ Occupation to be limited to gypsies and travellers as defined in
PPTS Annex 1

e No more than four pitches and on each pitch not more than two
caravans of which not more than one shall be a residential mobile
home

35



Siting of caravans

Specification of the number of days the site can be occupied by
more than the allowed number of caravans (which permits visitors
and allows attendance at family or community events)

No external storage of materials relating to the business of existing
or future occupiers ( excluding domestic paraphernalia such as,
but not limit to, clothes lines, garden furniture and children’s play
equipment)

Any gates to be set back and to be hung to open inwards

Distance and width of access from the public highway

The existing access shall not serve the residential pitches.

On site turning and parking to be retained for that specific use
Visibility splays

Details of the Junction with access to be agreed

Lighting scheme to be agreed

Details of hard and soft landscaping to be agreed

Details of Boundary treatment to be agreed

Drainage details to be agreed

Minimum floor levels.

Details of a flood evacuation plan to be agreed

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Clara Kerr Development Management Team
Leader 01480 388434

36



Planning Proposal 1401104FUL

The use of land as a private gypsy and traveller caravan
site consisting of 4 pitches each of which would
comprise of 1 No. mobile home, 1 No. touring caravan,
one small amenity building, hard standings, foul
drainage; creation of new access and track way | Kym
Stables Kimbolton Road Hail Weston

Observations of Hail Weston Parish Council (HWPC)
Recommend REFUSAL....

HWPC wish to record that it is not disputed that there is a demonstrable need for
new gypsy and traveller pitches in the district. Also noting that Document LP12
policy provides that existing authorised land for gypsy and traveller sites will be
safeguarded. This farm land located in the country side outside the main village is
considered by HWPC as an inappropriate development. Indeed HWPC view any
residential development at this location of any kind unsuitable. The development
proposal appears to be contrary to PPS7 sustainable development in Rural areas.

HWPC consider the proposal for the planned expansion of the site is ‘significant
development’. The original planning granted in 2012 for certificate of lawful
(existing) use for changing use of land for siting a caravan for residential use was
never tested through the vigour of a planning process. This was granted on the
basis of probabilities of there being continued siting of a caravan for residential use
for at least 10 years prior to the date of the application.

HWPC considered that the current accommodation does not satisfactory meet the
domestic needs of the occupants. These needs could be met elsewhere in the
County allowing for easier access to schooling, integration to the community, safer
location regarding the access on and off the immediate highway, safer in terms of
development on land with a decreased probability of flood (Cambridgeshire’s Local
flood Risk Strategy — 5.1.2 & 5.1.3) & (Local plan 2036 P12(d) and better access to
Great Ormond Street hospital.

HWPC believe the shortcomings of this application outweigh merits of this proposal
on the following grounds:

Highways: Despite the relocation of the proposed entrance/exit this site directly

37



joins a highway whereby the National speed limit (60mph) applies. Further increase
of vehicular access to (by expansion of the site) is considered by HWPC as highly
dangerous and unacceptable.

The road survey captured between March 215 — March 27th 2014 does not reflect
nor record local knowledge that this road is highly dangerous. Please see attached
mapping detailing 5 years’ worth of ‘reported’ serious accidents (3) and accidents
(11). The traffic survey submitted does not capture the number of bikers that use
this road. The one location point (attached) in which data was captured does not
reflect a true reflection of the speed which vehicles travel particularly at the
proposed new entrance. The B645 is a road which is often used as a ‘rat run’ when
the A1 and A14 are congested again this report of a weeks’ worth of data is highly
unlikely to reflect this. There are also no pedestrian footpaths in this area. To
increase volume of vehicles joining this road and pedestrians is irresponsible.

Environment: Policy LP 26 — ‘homes in the countryside’. This proposal is contrary
to policy which outlines development in the countryside, outside the village.

Policy LP 11 provides that new development in the countryside will not be permitted.
The stated objectives of the policy are to protect the countryside and agricultural
land not to encourage residential use and private cars

Flood: HWPC have carefully considered the applicants flood risk survey reports
with regard to this matter and feel that it does not accurately reflect the history of
flooding or the effect of flooding on this site. The development proposal is clearly in
the flood plain of the river Kym, a statutory main river. Significantly this land is
classed as both Level 2 and level 3. Again this is in clear breach of planning policy.
(Cambridgeshire’s Local flood Risk Strategy — 5.1.2 & 5.1.3) & (Local plan 2036
P12(d

The elevation of the static caravan, touring caravan and existing van on hard
standing could create further blockage of the flood plain. The amenity buildings are
not described as being elevated. The amenity buildings are essential for habitation
and could potentially be out of action for some time through flooding leading to
issues with sanitation and water, creating a health risk for the family. The most
significant issue for HWPC within the ‘Flood arena’ is the issue of contamination as
with regard to the cess- tank and the operation of it working in a flood plain.

The open meeting that this planning application was considered by HWPC was very
well supported by residents. Many residents expressed concerns of the

38



development proposal in countryside, away from the village life on land at high risk
of flooding, adjacent to highway which has a national speed limit. HWPC have
received 17 objections to this proposal on these grounds.

Conditions to possible development

HWPC wish to record that the following ‘conditions’ were agreed as necessary to
discuss the proposal further and suggest that if planning is granted these conditions
be meet.

Flood Mitigation:

Condition of River Kym and maintenance reports.
Flood data relating to patterns/times.

Flood response times at that location and risk of constructing permanent
elevated structures reducing the flood plain elsewhere

Analysis report on risk to vicinity of the site and ‘knock’ on effects to entrance
track to neighbouring farm.

Appropriate method of flood warning and evacuation (registration to receive
flood warning not sufficient)

Mobile homes securely anchored to ground at least 600mm above ground
levels

Flood plan

Sequential & Exception tests passed. Applicant to demonstrate no
reasonable sites in areas with a lower flood risk. Safety of people passed
with regard to Sequential

Percolation tests for uncontaminated surface water in accordance with BRE
Digest 365

DETR circular 03/99 requiring applicant to demonstrate that a connection to a
public foul sewer is not available. If not available septic tank management
process to be demonstrated by applicant.

Highway and Environment Issues

Further analysis data and either reduction in speed limit on B645, traffic lights
or roundabout.

Environment report to determine effects of removing long established
hedgerows and wildlife. Ecological status.

39



e No trading from site
e Family claims they need the expansion

e Limited the use of the site to the applicant’s family, whilst defining the exact
definition of family.

¢ One entrance/exit point to site allowing slow moving vehicles such as touring
caravan and refuse collection vehicles turning in area so that they and buses
not obstructing highway.

Mapping taken from CCC website ‘recording’ accidents
reported to the police. NB) a fatal accident was
recorded at this location point prior to these records.

) e https//my uk/myCambridgeshireaspx PWo-e &séh
S Wa il = = -
| /2 Waitrose WebMail | wa Cambridgeshire Maps <] -e . - P p_— P -
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
x Google ~ ™ search ~ | ¥ Share | Mare » Signln 9 +

5% [B yelloh - Google Search ] Suggested Sites » ] Web Slice Gallery =
@ Current address Mobile Home At, Kym Stables, Kimbolton Road, Hail Weston, PE19 5B m

Report a problem ~
D - =
+ Council and Democracy ~ 0/6 [] "
+ Environment and Planning 02 [ % T4
+ Leisure and Cuiture 11 O
+ NHS Choices os [ Q
+ Schools and Leaming o7 O
— Transport and Streets 215 [
HGV Weight Limit O
Accidents i @ 9
e
D,
i Q
o o]
=3 Recident cluster (was blackspol
) River Kym
Traffic Signals O o
Protected Verges [l
Village Maintenance O
County Verges [m] @
Gritting Routes
= v
= (B Hail Weston
—]

250
18/10/2014

40



Location of road survey deemed inappropriate by
HWPC in terms of time frame and location.

41



http://www. pistonheads.com/gassing/topic.asplh=08&4=717306 &d=0&nmi= v 42| x | P totalitics Bo4s

<fip Favorites | 3 8] Web Slice Gallery »

|[E] Unmarked Police Fireblade (Cambs) - PistonHeads |

A993LAD

So unfair.... 'cos black bikes are always faster ()

ate
\Wadnesday 8th July 2009 Edauete  EJ%

I have been know to visit that road from time to time.... What was he wearing - Blue leathers? White helmet? High vis?
On the Northants Police site (not sure how old this is):

Nortl ire Police Website said:

Focus Is On 645
The B645 road from Higham Ferrers to the county boundary has become the latest focus of attention for Operation Roadsafe, the ongoing
campaign aimed at reducing collisions and casualties on Northamptonshire’s roads.

The six-mile stretch of road, which passes through the villages of Chelveston and Hargrave, has seen ten collisions over the past three
years including three involving fatalities and four involving serious injuries.

The road is currently one of the county’s Motorcycle Red Routes, and suffers from excessive speeding by motorcyclists and car drivers.

Latest speed data shows that more 80 per cent of motorcycles and 70 per cent of cars are exceeding the 40mph limit through the
Hargrave section. And on the 60mph national speed limit sections of the road to the east of Chelveston, more than 84 per cent of
motorcyclists are exceeding the limit with more than half riding in excess of 80mph, with speeds over 100mph not uncommon.

The county’s Casualty Reduction Partnership is developing a long-term action plan for the road, but, in the interim, a number of immediate
measures have been put in place. These include:

- Deployment of the Speed Indicator Device which flashes up people’s speeds

- High wisibility police patrols by uniformed officers in cars and on motorbikes to deter potential offenders

+ Existing liaison with representatives from the motorcycling community will continue through formal and informal meetings

- The erection of signs warning motorists of the hazards and the pr nce of speed enforcement

+ Mobile speed enforcement by the Safety Camera Team targeting problem drivers and riders who continue to disregard the speed limit
and create an anti-social environment for local residents

- Working with the neighbouring Police Force (Cambridgeshire) to develop a complete route action plan

Casualty Reduction Officer, PC John Spencer, said: "I am extremely dismayed at the high numbers of vehicles, both cars and motorbikes,
that continue to exceed the limit on this rural road - one that has a history of serious collisions and casualties. We will be working very
hard over the coming weeks and months to try and address this problem.”

[nets] [raport] Advertisement

Wednesday 8th July 2008 Equote

He was in black leathers, no high viz but he was wearing a white helmet.

The bike is a black fireblade with a tank bag containing the video recording equipment. The flashing
blue lights seem to be cleverly hidden in the standard looking indicators.

He told us they have two of these bikes, the other being blue.

To be honest I thought we were in serious trouble so fair play to the fella for letting us off with a
warning. In fact he was incredibly reasoonable under the circumstances.

i

@ Intemet | Protected Mode: Off €2

42



BBC NEWS | England

“

P fatalities BE4S

e £ http://news.bbc.co.uk/1/hifengland/cambridgeshire/3077042 stm - [ 45| X

i Favorites | 5k @ Web Slice Gallery ~

| @ BBC NEWS | England | Cambridgeshire | Motorey. ~ B ~ [ @ v Pagev Safetyv Toolsw

Search Explore the BBC

News services

[ ¥E LIVE BBC NEWS CHANNEL e

News Front Page |23t Undated: Wednesday, 3 September, 2003, D8:53 GMT 09:53 UK

World B3 E-mail this to a friend & Printable version
Uk  Motorcyclist killed in collision
England

Northern Ireland A motorcyclist has died after a collision with a car in
Scotland Cambridgeshire.
Wales
Business The incident took place at about 1920 BST on Tuesday on the
Politics B645 near Great Staughton.
Health
Education A blue Honda motorcycle, which was travelling towards Great
Science & Staughton, collided head on with a silver Peugeot 406 just
Environment after a left hand bend.

JJ BBC Cambridgeshire
! Sport, travel, weather,
things to do, features
{ and much more

BBC
Northamptonshire

% Sport, travel, weather,
¥ tHings to do and more

Technology
. RELATED INTERNET LINKS:
Entertainment  Police said the 36-year-old motorcycle rider, who was from  FCambridgeshire Palice
Also in the news Wellingborough in Northamptonshire, was taken to The BEC is not responsible for the
= = Hinchingbrooke Hespital in Huntingdon but died from his content of external internet sites
Video and Audio  injuries.
o TOP CAMBRIDGESHIRE STORIES
; ¥ Barroso backing for Irish
Have Yeur 53V 1hg driver of the car, a 40-year-old woman from Waltham i
Magazine  aphey in Essex, suffered shock and bruising. e
I Pitires Probe into plastics factory fire
¥ Loughborough voted top
Country Profiles 1y, 15 year-old boys, both from Essex, who were passengsrs o eret,

Special Reports i her vehicle, also escaped serious injury. EY | News feeds
RELATED BBC SITES
sporT Pc Pete Simpson from Cambridgeshire Police said: "The

motorbike was travelling with three others and we would

WEATHER ; . s : &
s R e e
ON THIS DAY FuR .

EDITORS' BLOG z .
The road was closed for almost six hours while the emergency

services dealt with the accident.

B3 E-mail this to = friend & erintable version

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES
E-mail news  Mobiles  Alerts  News feeds Interactive TV  Podcasts

News Front Page | Werld | UK | England | Nerthern Ireland | Scotland | Wales | Politics
Business | Entertainment | Science/Nature | Technolegy | Health | Education
Have Your Say | Magazine | In Pictures | =k at a Glance | Country Profiles | In Depth | Programmes

& Internet | Protected Mode: Off

Fatality not captured on CCC mapping
Ends.

43



To: Kerr, Clara (Planning Serv)[Clara.Kerr@huntingdonshire.gov.uk];

Flag Status: 0x00000000

Subject: Planning application no 1401104FUL
From: Dianne

Sent: Thur 10/16/2014 9:47:40 AM

Dear Ms Kerr

Great Staughton Parish Councillors have asked me to express their grave concern
relating to the above planning application.

You may recall that the original application was granted retrospectively with several
objections being voiced and to now consider increasing the number of vans on site
does not appear to take into consideration the views of local people. In addition it is
on a dangerous stretch of road close to significant bends in the road and the increased
traffic entering and exiting will be a potential danger.

There is regular flooding in the area from the river Kym which runs adjacent to the plot
and concern has been expressed about foul water entering the river. It is understood
that the application states that additional vans are needed for the current family
residing there and the Parish Council would like reassurance that the owners do
actually live on site.

It is felt to be an inappropriate development in a country area away from any major
amenities.

Yours sincerely

Dianne

Dianne Palmer

Clerk - Great Staughton Parish Council
Garden House

Causeway Close

Great Staughton

Cambs PE19 5BG

Phone: 01480 861136

Village website: www.greatstaughton.com

44



Huntingdonshire

ccccccccccccccc

% Scale =1:5,000 Application Ref: 1401104FUL ©Groun copyrightan catabose it 2014

Development Management Panel

Date Created: 02/12/2014 Location: Hail Weston

s “on

"/ /| The Site




01278/10

DRG.No.

OS X (Eastings) 515324

OS Y (Northings) 263560

Nearest Post Code PE19 SLB

Lat (WGS84) N52:15:29 (52.258130)
Long (WGS84) W0:18:42
(-0.311804) LR TL153635

mX -34709

mY 6813122

0 mebres 10 20 b ] L] k]
Ordnance Survey <(c) Crown Copyright 2014. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432
S.A.B.DRAWING & DESIGN | TITLE CLIENT DRN. SAB DRG. No.
Y 26 MARGUERITE ROAD TIVERTON DEVON PR2¥IS£!0250F FggRTgIT%%ESb ON LANEES/;'{) Mrs CASH
\ UNITED KINGDOM EX16 6TD KYM STABLES, KIMBOLTON ROAD, HAIL W N, 01.05.14
\\\ ;%(_ Eg;o(q)z 115:1,;6254004 ST.NEOTS, PE19 5LB. DATE 01.05.14 01 278/ 1 0
| E—MiAIL: steve@sabdrawings.com SITE LOCATION PLAN SCALE —A4 1:2500 Rev: 2 (27.08.14)

46




yAY

1 o %2005
H N o &
QAl H TE =
S
~—~ H % &«»@
w Spreacis 1 . <2<>’
RGIN0° ' -
I 1
Al \
1 o
~— \ ol 10,
g P A CONTROL. E\EI\X/ ) P e . ASTURE
7 A g "
D: HORSE EXERCISER - “
(] .
/ / o
(AL 4
/ Al 19.80
:"é_’_(& . Extent of Flood Zone 3a °
(including an allowance for AN
climate change) taken from the .
vLoN Huntingdonshire Strategic Flood
| Risk Assessment Tile TL16SE. o
‘ PASTURE R
|
1972
o =
| 1
|
| 1
\ 1
‘ NEW TREE :
1
Y . 1 p
o . : NEW._ TREE x19.85 T
WEEL ) o 7
:, 35 A ;m.ve o ©
| e ‘ :
\ DR 1 p
: H )
1
\ -
| X |‘ JNEW TREE o
: p
H -
1 o
Play Area ) 0
‘ ‘| o o
PASURE G ol
\ NEW TREE \ %ﬁr p
S ‘ Y . .
o | Y e, Y g
Y Extent of Flood Zone 2 taken * 2.0m high Close_ p AN p
i R from the Huntingdonshire s Boarde Trer N p
- o~ . y ence (non <t . )
AN AN Strategic Flood Risk AN climbable) all AN »
SN Assessment Tile TL16SE. Lt:)usn(g stauncion & %, y )
GRAVEL 0 . s
PASTURE / o
NEV TREE x19.64
Spreadill0
SRgS
oW
VISIBILITY
East (to Bend) = 157m ) J5ePast
West = 215m | Estsaanroo TROUGH
“ 720090
‘ 7
% x19.68
|
|
ﬂ I I
| | IR SN Physical Barrierto 8
| | N prevent the traffic E%
| ‘ N X travelling to/from H
o ° he pitches from H
‘\ | T o i Ip‘lglhe “:T
% 2 o - S |
‘ o ™ 7
\ \ axe IT
[ .
|
£
0 metres 10 20 30 40 o0 ]
i
THIS DRAWING IS SUBJECT TO COPYRIGHT AND MUST NOT BE COPIED
SABDRAW”\IG & DES|GN OR REPRODUCED WITHOUT THE PERMISSION OF SAB DRAWING & DESIGN,) i CLIENT DRN SAB DRG NO,
THIS DRAWING HAS BEEN PRODUCED FOR PLANNING/BUILDING .
REGULATION APPROVAL ONLY AND DOES NOT GUARANTEE THAT ALL
26 MARGUERITE ROAD TIVERTON DEVON | yoaes HAVE BEEN DESIGNED OR INCLUDED. ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE PROVISION OF FOUR PITCHES ON LAND AT Mrs CASH
UNITED KINGDOM EX16 6TD CHECKED BY THE CONTRACTOR BEFORE COMMENCEMENT OF KYM STABLES, KIMBOLTON ROAD, HAIL WESTON, DATE 01.05.14 01 278/2
CONSTRUCTION. -
TEL: +44 (0) 1884 254004 NO RESPONSIBILITY OR LIABILITY FOR NONCOMPLIANCE OR LACK OF ST.NEOTS, PE19 5LB. —
FAX: 0870 131 9176 wgoggs};gzg\BV\AULTLYESRAS%TEE'mR CHANGES MADE BY THE CLIENT
E—MAIL: Steve@sobdrowimgs.com OR CONTRACTOR EITHER PRIOR OR DURING CONSTRUCTION WILL BE BLOCK PLAN / PROPOSED LAYOUT SCALE A:') 1 1500 R . 8 27 14
ACCEPTED. SCALE AS SHOWN IS SUBJECT TO CORRECT PRINTING. Rev| Date Revision - = - ev. (27.08.14)




©
GRAVEL &

‘ HORSE EXERCISER |

>
SR>

952
A
4444

45

-
%
$59%;

7%

57072
%

%
o
4

SR

1817

%

SR
R RNy S
ot

4
7

N
N
R

RN [N Extent of Flood Zone 3a (including an allowance

\\ for climate change) taken from the
& N N Huntingdonshire Strategic Flood Risk
R

) A .
RN S Assessment Tile TL16SE.
RANSEEINANNY
RRRRRRIIRRRRRNNN
RRRRRENEIRENNR
SRR

' D A A
& ~ SN

QRRKRESS
SRRy
\\g& TN

\

Amenity

3

GRAVEL

% 19.85
GRAVEL
1 7SR
1 QR R C}°% S"
1 GRAVEL S NN
NN
1 N —_ RN
GRAVEL g AR IRRREERR,
1 SRR
Ny R RRESREIRRIP
i NN
X N : N4
\ o 2043 _Amenity RN
1 . NN
1 \
1 L
‘ \\‘Z»&
Play Area N g ,
% 20.64 NEW TREE
1
/
PAS\JRE ) y
. || 5 pd
1| O,
\‘ Extent of Flood Zone 2 taken from the ¥ / GRAVEL
Huntingdonshire Strategic Flood Risk . < //
Assessment Tile TL16SE. . /¥,
AN $ T 2.0m high Close N
\ | Boarded Timber ™, -/
s \‘ Fence (non @05‘1* . -/
S climbable) all |/
‘ | | | N | F—
I round stauncion & a
AY 0>§
Y posts. % //
*x20.71 Ay GRAVEL y
I\ | V//
N /
J[ | \\\ /
metres | 1% /
| | )
v Z| [\ 7Z ] ¥ /)
[ 7 //////J\‘ 7 ) ]
T
5 N 15 7 ‘
S.A.B.DRAWING & DESIGN |38 RePr0bUGED WTGUT THE PLRVISSION OF SAB DRAWNG d DESIGH. TITLE CLIENT DRG. N
26 MARGUERITE ROAD TIVERTON DEVON | BUCARS LS oL Onien 1n pLash/suone,, DRN.\X/SAB 2
UNITED KINGDOM WORKS HAVE BEEN DESIGNED OR INCLUDED, ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE PROVISION OF FOUR PITCHES ON LAND AT Mrs CASH
EX16 61D CHECKED BY THE CONTRACTOR BEFORE COMMENCEMENT OF KYM STABLES, KIMBOLTON ROAD, HAIL WESTON, DA
;i%( 824 (0) 1884 254004 m%o%%siggi‘BV‘I\ULTLYE%RAE‘SEF"LT‘EE FOR NONCOMPLIANCE OR LACK OF ST.NEOTS, PE19 S5LB. TE _01 .05.14 01 278/1
EEMAIL: steva@sobdrawings.com No reseonsalli o LB ron cuaiees wape o1 e cupw PIT
’ gs- ROCEPTED, SOALE. AS SHOWN. 15 SUBJECT 70 CORRECT PRINTING. Rev| Date Revision CH LAYOUT SCALE —A3 1:250 Rev: 7 (28.08.14)




6V

DRG.No.

—Qgy

o®

GRAVEL

x20.75 PASTURE

MENAGE
%2034

x20.12

£ 515314.000
N 263572.750
220.190

%2007

x19.97
%20.05
S
&
X2
N
X
\
TN
A
- AN
BN AN
NN e
\ AN yd
\ N e
N
AN > /

HORSE EXERCISER

/ x19.55

x19.68

x19.51

1053 /
x19.78 J
PASTURE |
x19.97
10,65 p
A
A
Pl
Z
07
el
/ g
/ 19,
10.80 Ve
yud
/'/
e
/'/
9y - ~_
< 7
/ N
yd 19.44
ya [ N|
~ A CSpreee
/ Cilrtnos
/ q SRR
e \ /
> \ L
e
x19.58
e
A
A
yud
yud
Iy
'
e x10.70
/'/
A g
PASTURE /
x10.75 Y N /
19,80
o7
x19.72 2>
/- x19.42
o
/ g
/'/
A
o
x19.85 4
o
o
e x19.41
g
s
/‘/
o
il 052
/ S x10. x19.35
g
S
y
y x10.37
v
19.64
1 2Post
opr 2 e
15,95 515338760 ! x19.37
77N 263495.420
720,090
1027
N
x19.68
-
I3\ GATE
R~
%5,
PASTURE

N\

, - —— B
, - — %
) e -
oS
~— P N
w AP /
r 7 P28
( Ve //9/
s 22
(' s ,/
v/ /f
~ s 9/
D

WATER LEVEL

. _JATER LEVE
s,
S ©
L
N B x Vertical
o g ﬂ
iInage g o
g g 'K E
Elevation | E =
AN
\
§x\\
N\ “\,
\_ "\
N
%,
7;)@/%%
/ //
o
OF
A~
P AN
d kN
. \
S~ \\X
e \o
/'/ N
e Y
o
d x\\
\
N
)
- RS
R
%
NN
x19.41 {
\
\
N 2
. R x14.47
x19.38 L3
x19.35 N
3
E
N
19.47 Y
x19.43 \
N
x10.35
x19.33
%1936
x10.30
PASTURE
%1935
x10.31
|
&
z
o 7 %16.25 (BED LEVEL)
A
\us78 1978
TR = i PN
7
| \
Shreadis.
Colrtnos \
\ o |
N\
\

SABDIDRAWING & DESIGN

26 MARGUERITE ROAD TIVERTON
DEVON UNITED KINGDOM EX16 6TD
TEL: +44 (0> 1884 254004

FAX: 0870 131 9176

E-MAIL: stevelsabdrawings.com

THIS DRAWING IS SUBJECT TO COPYRIGHT AND MUST NOT BE

COPIED OR REPRODUCED WITHOUT THE PERMISSION OF SAB
DRAWING & DESIGN, THIS DRAWING HAS BEEN PRODUCED FOR
PLANNING/BUILDING REGULATION APPROVAL ONLY AND DOES NOT
GUARANTEE THAT ALL WORKS HAVE BEEN DESIGNED OR INCLUDED.
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE CHECKED BY THE CONTRACTOR BEFORE
COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION,

TITLE

CLIENT

NO RESPONSIBILITY OR LIABILITY FOR NONCOMPLIANCE OR LACK 0OF
INFORMATION WILL BE ACCEPTED.

NO RESPONSIBILITY OR LIABILITY FOR CHANGES MADE BY THE
CLIENT OR CONTRACTOR EITHER PRIOR OR DURING CONSTRUCTION

WILL BE ACCEPTED.

Rev

Datsg

Revision

PROVISION

OF FOUR PITCHES ON LAND AT

KYM STABLES, KIMBOLTON ROAD, HAIL WESTON,

ST.NEOTS, PE19 O5LB.

EXISTING TOPOGRAPRHY

Mrs CASH

DRN. SAB

DRG. No.

DATE 01.05.14

SCALE AT

1:500

01278/9

Rev: 2 (27.08.14)




0S

DRG.No. 01278/4

6000

3150

i

U

=]

PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN

3398

2400

WALLS:

CAVITY WALLS CONSISTING OF
FAIR FACED BLOCKS INTERNALLY
AND RENDERED BLOCKS
EXTERNALLY.

ROOF:
CEMENT FIBRE SLATES

WINDOWS & DOORS:
uPVC DOUBLE GLAZED WINDOWS,
SOLID TIMBER DOORS.

NOTE:

AMENITY BLOCK MAY BE MIRRORED
DEPENDING ON RELATIONSHIP TO
BOUNDARY FENCING.

6000

.

=

— oo
O
@l:h

=

3150

PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN

S.A.B.DRAWING & DESIGN

THIS DRAWING IS SUBJECT TO COPYRIGHT AND MUST NOT BE COPIED
OR REPRODUCED WITHOUT THE PERMISSION OF SAB DRAWING & DESIGN,
THIS DRAWING HAS BEEN PRODUCED FOR PLANNING/BUILDING

REGULATION APPROVAL ONLY AND DOES NOT GUARANTEE THAT ALL
26 MARGUERITE ROAD TIVERTON DEVON WORKS HAVE BEEN DESIGNED OR INCLUDED. ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE

UNITED KINGDOM EX16 671D
TEL: +44 (0) 1884 254004
FAX: 0870 131 9176

E—MAIL: steve@sabdrawings.com

CHECKED BY THE CONTRACTOR BEFORE COMMENCEMENT OF
CONSTRUCTION.

NO RESPONSIBILITY OR LIABILITY FOR NONCOMPLIANCE OR LACK OF
INFORMATION WILL BE ACCEPTED.

NO RESPONSIBILITY OR LIABILITY FOR CHANGES MADE BY THE CLIENT
OR CONTRACTOR EITHER PRIOR OR DURING CONSTRUCTION WILL BE
ACCEPTED. SCALE AS SHOWN IS SUBJECT TO CORRECT PRINTING.

TITLE

CLIENT

DRN. _SAB

Rev

Date

Revision

SINGLE AMENITY BLOCK

Mrs CASH

DRG. No.

DATE 28.04.14

SCALE AT A3 1100

01278/4

Rev: 2 (14.11.14)




GREEN PAPERS FOLLOW

51



e,

T N i

JAS

Hunﬂngdonshire District Council

Application Nu:nber: 97/1241
TON 2xp Couwrny PLAMNING ACT, 1999

PMI“G PmIBSION (Subject to CQnditic'ms)
b S —

Tour g Pline
C/0 ight g Astociatu
PO 14

and ¢hg lang druinga and documen ts which form Part of the
mltutfm. ‘ubjoct to the conditiong set oyt beloy:

¢ mp “aste matter shall pe burnegd on site.

8. mo £lood14 Or other formg of exterior lighting shalj
be Ot‘-ct.a':ft‘:gut the prior written Consent of tpe Local
Avthoy .

6. of femises ghaij reaain a4 4 Private Stable
'-.0 i.h:ll not:. t:tnnd to the hire op livery of horgeg for the

Beted; gg BOV 1997 (Continyeq) s
_ -

-1 - aD
' m%mmﬂmﬁ )
at 7Y i Fustiopdon, Campy PEIS TN, Director of Operationay Services




el e o

Huntingdonshire District Counci

s CAMBRIDGESHIRE Application Number: 97/1241

TOWN AND COUNTHW- PLAN', ING ACT, 1990

PLAING otnurssion (eunsnce co consincnnrs . o

purposes of riding or instruction without the Prior detailed

consent of the Local Planning Authority.

7. The access from the highway, areag for parking, turning and
loading shall have been surface sealed and drained away from
the public highway prior to the construction of the stables,

The reasons for the Council's decision to grant permission for
development subject to the compliance with the conditions

hereinbefore specified are:

1. The time limit condition ig imposed in order to comply with
the requirements of Bection 91 of the Town and Country Planning

Act, 1990,
2. In the interests of visual amenity.

3. fTo ensure that the proposed use does not become a source of
annoyance to the occupiers of neighbouring Properties.

4. To ensure that the proposed use does not be
annoyance to the occupiers of neighbouring

5. In the interests of visual amenity.

come a source of
Properties.

6. To ensure that the use remains compatible with the

surrounding area.
7. 1In the interests of highway safety.
Notes to Applicants

1. The applicant's attention is drawn to the enclosed letter

from the Environment Agency.

2. This decision is based upon the submitted application ang
and additional details received by letter dated 17th

October 19¢97.

3. In the interests of highway safety, the site frontage
hedge shall be trimmed back to provide a 2.4m x 250m

visibility splay to the west,

Dated: 06 wov 1997

ﬂrn-lnuisnﬁuwo&ummnqiumﬁmhrﬁhuu; 2 -
Sllhutsm«tﬁhsﬁudhg(hwhuPEISGHM

A

Director of Operational Services



“"---'

\.:‘-‘ «»rmcc
._\-s“ ﬂ‘ ﬁﬁﬂ,“ﬁ'
S LOCMEN (:2weo

e

Plsteeen CoCumg o g
> 0tP D968, M eigsnn, oves.




R S S S YIRS |

north west elevation

. ) oL e
SFaKDaLN TTmeER T
TR FERC I # 7S :
0 : LinNE OF FENCiy
v - - - - ; = “Tared O
& i s iy o s 5% : = '
o = H P
STutn west ¢evat an
nortn east {nandzc)
~egr
¥z
\\ \\\ e e A{‘L“‘\L-“
'Wﬁiﬂ—~f hr—“*wfﬁuwgﬁ“szﬁ”ﬁd' B s I -
JI_— 3 )/”
I -
!
o EI)I
E lit
g J.l‘: Fas q
A
I - i
i loose box i _
[ i i
~ e [
i K 1
|
. ' : iy i
5 ; T e s we ! i i
g - 2 i
i g W | i
Loy bas . ? i
; | :
™. || ' b it Site
4 ! T

[i I I hard Jarc exzrcise yard :
| .

2ooco

g \

icose box i

{2000

dooo

locse box /

'

4 ooe6

[cose box open store

./ 4"000 . ; i .,‘“"‘ - % = 3 - - — i

-s 54co L |
s 9So0 7 “4oo0

3 Ere e e

' ) \
Dark|ﬁg - o IF“]II“HHI LY PV E ey i HI IIlI|“H HHTH ey
20 ] X 1 =, 00 | 22100 | 2410
1200 2| d) Bl i1 16 8

e ettt g s R 3 = e e =t EAED oN g e e .

R e o b e

Ay

ogpes |




Application Number:1201347CLED

Certificate
Town and Country Planning Act, 1990: Section 191 and 192
(as amended by Section 10 of the Planning Compensation Act, 1991)

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) Order 2010: Article 35

Mrs M Cash

c/o Green Planning Solutions LLP (FAO Mr M Green)
Unit D Lunesdale

Upton Magna Business Park

Upton Magna

Shrewsbury

Shropshire

SY4 4TT

The Huntingdonshire District Council hereby certify that on the 28th August 2012 the use described
in the First Schedule to this certificate in respect of the land specified in the Second Schedule to this
certificate and edged in red on the plan attached to this certificate, was lawful within the meaning of
section 191 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990(as amended) for the following reason:

1. Reason. The evidence submitted demonstrates that on the balance of probabilities there has
been continued siting of a caravan for residential use on this site for at least the 10 years prior to the
date of the application and therefore the breach of planning control is immune from enforcement
action and as such is lawful.

(5

Signed j‘ ’ ; ‘ ﬁ' g
On behalf of H nim ddhshire District Council
Date 19th October 2012

(Councils Authorised Officer)

First Schedule

Certificate of lawful (existing) use for changing use of the land for siting of a caravan for residential
use

Second Schedule

Kym Stables
Kimbolton Road
Hail Weston

ufm11.rtf Page 1 of 2

Humingdonshi'r'e

D SERTEER N (€ CROR URNEC

Date 19th October 2012

Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street

Huntingdon. PE29 3TN Tel: 01480 388388
mail@huntsdc.gov.uk Eax: 0148_0 388099
DX140316 Huntingdon SC www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk

56



Application Number:1201347CLED

Notes

1. This certificate is issued solely for the purpose of section 191 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 (as amended).

2. It certifies that the use specified in the First Schedule taking place on the land specified in the
Second Schedule was lawful, on the specified date and thus would not have been liable to
enforcement action under section 172 of the 1990 Act on that date.

3. This certificate applies only to the extent of the use described in the First Schedule and to the
land specified in the Second Schedule and identified on the attached plan. Any use which is
materially different from that described or which relates to other land may render the owner or
occupier liable to enforcement action.

4. The effect of the certificate is also qualified by the provisions in section 192(4) of the 1990 Act,
as amended, which states that the lawfulness of a described use or operation is only
conclusively presumed where there has been no material change, before the use is instituted or
the operations begun, in any of the matters relevant to determining such lawfulness.

Page 2 of 2 o
Date 19th October 2012 _
Huntingdonshire
i st R CT CRibaNLC 1L
Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street
Huntingdon. PE29 3TN Tel: 01480 388388
mail@huntsdc.gov.uk Eax: 01430 388099
DX140316 Huntingdon SC www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk

57



154

153

162

515156m

58



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

1201347CLED
OFFICER REPORT
Case No: 1201347CLED Certificate of existing lawful use
Proposal: Certificate of lawful (existing) use for changing use of the land for siting of a

caravan for residential use
Location: Kym Stables Kimbolton Road Hail Weston
Applicant:  Mrs M Cash

Grid Ref: 515351 263513

DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

Kym stables comprises a single storey stable block, a ménage, a horse walker and residential
mobile home in the open countryside west of the main settlement of Hail Weston. The site is
screened from the public highway by way of a very tall hedge. Vehicular access is via gates, off the
public highway, to the south east of the stables. The site is in EA Floodzone 2 and the River Kym
lies beyond the eastern boundary of the site.

The applicant has submitted affidavits from a previous owner and from a person who has stabled
their horse at kym stables stating that there has been a residential caravan on the site,
continuously, in excess of 10 years. The application is therefore for a Lawful Existing Use
Certificate for change of use .of the land, on which the mobile home stands to unrestricted
residential use for 1 caravan.

NATIONAL GUIDANCE
Not relevant.

The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three dimensions to sustainable
development - an economic role, a social role and an environmental role - and outlines the
presumption in favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering Sustainable
Development, the Framework sets out the Government's planning policies for : building a strong,
competitive economy; ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural economy;
promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality communications infrastructure; delivering
a wide choice of high quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy communities;
protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change:;
conserving and enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the historic
environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

For full details visit the government website

http://www.communities.gov.uk and follow the links to planning, Building and Environment,
Planning, Planning Policy.

PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding planning applications can also be
found at the following website:

ufm2.rtf

59



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
1201347CLED

http://www.communities.gov.uk then follow links Planning, Building and Environment, Planning,
Planning Information and Guidance, Planning Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better
Place to Live

East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May 2008)

Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow links to Planning, Regional Planning
then Related Documents

Not relevant.

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003)

Saved policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan 2003 are relevant and
viewable at

http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk follow the links to environment, planning, planning policy and
Structure Plan 2003.

Not relevant.

Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995)

Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant and viewable at
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

Not relevant.

Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002)

Saved policies from the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002

are relevant and viewable at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan - Then click on "Local Plan
Alteration (2002)

Not relevant.

Policies from the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework Core Strategy 2009 are
relevant and viewable at

http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then click on Planning then click on
Planning Policy and then click on Core Strategy where there is a link to the Adopted Core Strategy.
Not relevant.

Policies from the Development Management DPD : Proposed Submission 2010 are relevant.
Not relevant.

PLANNING HISTORY
9701241FUL — Erection of Stables — Permission granted.

CONSULTATIONS
Hail Weston Parish Council — Object to the proposal but do not submit evidence to contradict
supporting affidavits.

REPRESENTATIONS
None received from nearest neighbour.

SUMMARY OF ISSUES

Section 191 of the 1990 Act provides a procedure whereby applications can be made for a
Certificate of Lawfulness of an Existing Use or Development when development has been carried
out or a use carried out without the necessary planning permission but the time for enforcement
action has expired. The time period for enforcement action is 4 years for operational development;
10 years for any other breach except in the case of a breach of planning control consisting of the

ufm2.rtf

60



HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
1201347CLED

change of use of any building to use as a single dwellinghouse which is 4 years beginning with the
date of the breach.

The onus of proof in a CLEUD application is on the applicant, who must prove their claim on the
balance of probabilities (and not beyond reasonable doubt). If the LPA has no evidence of their
own, or from others, to contradict or otherwise make the applicant’'s version of events less than
probable, there is no good reason to refuse the application, provided the applicant’s evidence
alone is sufficiently precise and unambiguous to justify the grant of a certificate. This application is
not like a planning application where objections can be considered. It must only be considered on
evidence.

Planning permission was granted in 1997 for stables. That permission did not extend to the
provision of a mobile home on site and therefore any stationing of a caravan/mobile home was
unauthorised.

The Councils solicitors advise that no evidence has been submitted to dispute the affidavits that
clearly state a residential caravan has been on the site in excess of 10 years. Furthermore, historic
aerial photography shows that a mobile home was placed on site sometime between 2000 and
2003.

Conclusion:

The evidence submitted with the application, has, on the balance of probability, demonstrated that
the land subject of this application has been used for a residential mobile home continuously for a
period of ten years prior to the date of the application.

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio version, please

contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate your needs.

BACKGROUND PAPERS:

CONTACT OFFICER:

Enquiries about this report to Clara Kerr Development Management Officer 01480 388434

RECOMMENDATION

SUMMARY OF CONDITIONS.

1. Reason. The evidence submitted demonstrates that on the balance of probabilities there has
been continued siting of a caravan for residential use on this site for at least the 10 years prior

to the date of the application and therefore the breach of planning control is immune from
enforcement action and as such is lawful.

ufm2.rtf

61



®a | he Planning
e INSpectorate

Appeal Decisions

Inquiry opened on 26 August 2009
Site visits made on 20 April 2010 and 26 January 2011

by Richard Clegg BA(Hons) DMS MRTPI

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Decision date: 7 April 2011

Appeal A: APP/H0520/A/09/2104200
Land adjacent to The Paddock, Chatteris Road, Somersham,
Cambridgeshire, PE28 3DN

o The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

e The appeal is made by Mr F Adams against the decision of Huntingdonshire District
Council.

s The application Ref 0803523FUL, dated 10 December 2008, was refused by notice dated
23 April 2009.

e The development proposed is the permanent change of use of land from agriculture to a
caravan/ mobile home travellers’ site (2 pitches), including a new vehicular access,
associated roadway and hardstanding.

Appeal B: APP/H0520/A/09/2108476
Land adjacent to The Paddock, Chatteris Road, Somersham,
Cambridgeshire, PE28 3DN

* The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

» The appeal is made by Mr F Adams against the decision of Huntingdonshire District
Council,

o The application Ref 0900550FUL, dated 10 May 2009, was refused by notice dated 6
July 2009.

» The development proposed is the permanent change of use of land from agriculture to a
caravan/ mobile home travellers’ site (6 pitches), including a new vehicular access,
associated roadway and hardstanding.

Decisions

1. I allow appeal A, and grant planning permission for the permanent change of
use of land from agriculture to a caravan/ mobile home travellers’ site (2
pitches), including a new vehicular access, associated roadway and
hardstanding, on land adjacent to The Paddock, Chatteris Road, Somersham,
Cambridgeshire, PE28 3DN, in accordance with the terms of the application,
Ref 0803523FUL, dated 10 December 2008, subject to the conditions in the
attached schedule.

2. I dismiss appeal B.
Procedural matters

3. The inquiry sat for eight days: on 26 August 2009, on 19 and 21-23 April and
16 September 2010, and on 25-26 January 2011.

http://www.planning-inspectorate.gov.uk

62



Appeal Decisions APP/HOSZD/A/09/2104200, APP/H0520/A/09/2108476

29. The appellant referred to an appraisal for a dwelling at the dressage centre,
which mentioned vulnerability to break-ins and vandalism. It was argued that

is a problem at the dressage centre, which has its dwelling adjacent to the
stable building. This matter carries little weight in support of the appeal
proposals,

30. I have reached the clear view that the leve| of domestic activity which could be

conclude that, whether considered separately or together, the appeal proposals
would not have a significant adverse effect on the operation of Long Drove
Dressage Centre, and that in this respect they would not conflict with Policy CS
6 of the Core Strategy.

Sustainability

31. The appeal sites are located in open countryside, to the north-east of
Somersham. Itis agreed in the statement of common ground that the distance

32. Planning Policy Guidance Note 13 explains that walking and cycling offer the
potential to replace short car trips, particularly those under 2km and 5km
respectively. Chatteris Road carries the B1050. Beyond the edge of
Somersham, the road is subject to the national speed limit of 60mph, and it

http://www.planning-inspectorate.gov.uk 8

63



v

Appeal Decisions APP/HOSZO/A/09/2104200, APP/H0520/A/09/2 108476

mind the nature of Chatteris Road outside the built-up area, however, I would
not regard it as conducive for young children to use to cycle to primary school,
irrespective of whether they were accompanied by an aduyit.

34. The first part of Policy CS 6 refers to good access by foot, cycle or public
transport to facilities such as education and health. However account is to be

cycle or public transport. In this respect, it reflects Circular 01/2006 which, in
regard to the suitability of rural sites, requires that a realistic view is taken
about the availability of alternatives to the car in accessing local services,

35. The appeal sites are in the open countryside, but they are not in a location
remote from everyday facilities and services. Apart from the primary school,
these are capable of being reached by cycling to Somersham, irrespective of
whether that choice is made. It may be that, as is common in rural areas,
most journeys would be made by car, but this would not entail lengthy trips to
and from the appeal sites. Overall, having regard to the limited availability of
public transport in this rural area, I consider that a range of facilities and
services are reasonably accessible from the sites on Chatteris Road and that
they are not poorly located in this regard.

http://www.planning—inspectora te.gov.uk 9

64



37.

38.

40,

Insofar as integrated ang Peaceful co-existence with the local community is

time, however, I do not doubt that the appeal proposals would be capable of
successfully integrating with the local community,

The appeal Proposals would achieve the wider Sustainability benefits associated
with the Provision of a settled base, although this carries |ess weight in respect

of appeal A as the appellant and his family already have their own permanent
accommodation, albeit in a house, Whilst I do not consider that there js 3

" Document G7

2 The garage was under construction at the date of the site visit on 20 April 2010.
http://www.pn‘anning-inspectorate.gov.uk 10 65




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 30

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 18th April 2016

Title/Subject Matter: 1. Proposed Amendment to the Scheme of
Delegation (SoD) in relation to the making and
confirming Tree Preservation Orders

2. Objection to Tree Preservation Order L/TPO/381,
15 Hunts End, Buckden

Meeting/Date: 18 April 2016

Executive Portfolio:  Development Manager Panel
Report by: Planning Services Manager (Development Management)

Ward affected: Buckden

Executive Summary:

Recommendations:

1. That Members note the contents of the report and amend the Scheme of
Delegation as follows:

i. To give delegated powers to the Head of Service (currently Andy
Moffat), Planning Services Manager — Development Management
(currently Jacob Jaarsma) and Planning Services Manager — Planning
Policy (currently vacant) to make and confirm Tree Preservation
Orders

2. That the Development Management Panel confirms the Tree Preservation
Order L/TPO/381 at 15 Hunts End, Buckden

67




1. PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE SCHEME OF DELEGATION (SoD) IN
RELATION TO THE MAKING NAD CONFIRMING OF TREE PRESERVATION
ORDERS

REASONS FOR THE UPDATE REPORT

Current Situation

Currently the Scheme of Delegation gives delegated authority to the Head of Planning
Services to determine applications for the felling or lopping of trees protected by Tree
Preservation Orders (TPO) and the making of TPO’s. Current practise is to make and
confirm a TPO at officer level where there is no objections received, and where
objections have been received, refer the application to a Tree Preservation Order Sub-
Group (from hereon called the ‘Sub-Group’), where the Sub-Group consider objections
received, and proposed Tree Preservation Orders in the light of specialist advice
received directly from Arboricultural Officers.  However, part of this current practise
does not appear to accord with the delegation in the Constitution as the Sub-Group
does not have the power to confirm TPOs, their role appears to be one that considers
objections to TPOs - See excerpt from Constitution below:

Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (S.198 and 201) - To determine applications for
the felling or lopping of trees protected by Tree Preservation Orders and the making of
Tree Preservation Orders

Head of Development or in his absence, the Planning Service Managers

Proposed Changes

Given that that Sub-Group has previously relied on specialists advice of Arboricultural
Officers, it is proposed that the Scheme of Delegation is amended to give delegated
powers to the Head of Service (currently Andy Moffat), Planning Services Manager —
Development Management (currently Jacob Jaarsma) and Planning Services Manager
— Planning Policy (currently vacant) to make and confirm Tree Preservation Orders
(following input/specialist advice of Arboricultural Officers).

Given the length of time that has lapsed since the Terms of Reference were devised,
and that they have not been refreshed in a while, the Planning Service Manager would
like to take this opportunity to proposed amend the Terms of Reference and presented
these for approval to DMP.

Recommendations:

That Members note the contents of the report and agreed to amend the Scheme of
Delegation as follows:

i.  To give delegated powers to the Head of Service (currently Andy Moffat),
Planning Services Manager — Development Management (currently Jacob
Jaarsma) and Planning Services Manager — Planning Policy (currently vacant)
to make and confirm Tree Preservation Order

68




DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 18 APRIL 2016

Objection to Tree Preservation Order L/TPO/381, 15 Hunts End,
Buckden

1.

11

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To consider an objection to the Tree Preservation Order (TPO)
L/TPO/381 made on 12.11.1015 and determine if the order should be
confirmed or confirmed subject to modifications

DESCRIPTION

The protected tree is a mature yew tree, which stands within the
garden of a semi-detached dwelling. The area is predominantly
residential within the Buckden Conservation Area. The tree is an
attractive, prominent feature of the area and clearly seen in public
views from adjoining roads and houses.

REASON FOR TPO

The order was made provisionally following the receipt of a
Conservation Area Section 211 Notification on the 1 October 2015 for
the felling and removal of a yew, apple and a eucalyptus by the owners
of the property.

The emerging Draft Local Plan to 2036 currently under consultation,
states that:

“Where specific trees or groups of trees are of particular value (such
that their removal would have a significant impact upon the local
environment and its enjoyment by the public), and are potentially under
threat, the Council will make Tree Preservation Orders to protect
them.”

The saved Policy EN19 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan states that:

“The district council will make tree preservation orders where it
considers that trees which contribute to the local amenity and/or the
landscape are at risk.”

An Amenity Evaluation Checklist is used by the Councils Arboricultural
Consultant, which provides a systematic approach in determining
whether or not a Tree Preservation Order should protect a tree or
trees. The yew tree was assessed as having high amenity value to the
area and Tree Preservation Order L/TPO/381 was made on the 12
November 2015 to ensure the protection and retention of this tree. A
copy of the checklist is appended for information. (The apple and
eucalyptus were smaller trees and therefore of less value as an
amenity. Consequently these trees were not included in the order and
there is no objection to their felling and removal).

69



3.4

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

5.1

5.2

In a letter dated 8 December 2015, the property owner, Mr P Witchell,
wrote objecting to the order on 2015. This was received on 9
December 2015.

OUTLINE OF OBJECTION
The grounds for objection can be summarised as follows:

The yew had been left unmanaged and unkempt for many years and
blocked access to the drive and garage of the property.

Failure to provide parking within the property itself would lead to up to
four cars being parked on the side of Hunt End itself. Parking is already
oversubscribed in the area and congestion is frequent. The local shops
would suffer a loss of custom if parking was not available close by.

Mr Witchell considers that the loss of the tree would not have a
detrimental effect upon the environment or the enjoyment by the public
as Hunts End is not a major route and not regularly used by the
general public.

The presence of a large Holme oak also within the garden of 15 Hunts
End would limit the impact on the treed appearance of the locality if the
yew was removed.

Mr Witchell questions the accuracy of the Local Authority Search
undertaken on 25" August 2015 in that a negative reply was made to
the question 3.9 which reads: “Do any of the following subsist in
relation to the property, or has a local authority decided to issue, serve,
make or commence any of the following-(m) a tree preservation order.”

RESPONSE TO OBJECTION

The Yew tree is located in the centre of the access into driveway and
to the garage. Thus the original access: unused for a long time, meant
that the current access could not be used. A Tree Work Application
(15/01760/TREE) for the Crown Lifting of the yew was granted on 22
January 2016. This tree work has now been carried out, allowing
access to the garage (see Photo 1). Moreover, a Planning Application
(16/00270/HHFUL) for replacement of existing garage with new double
garage and widening of access while retaining the yew is currently
under consideration.

The yew tree is an attractive and significant feature of the local
landscape, and makes a significant contribution to the character and
amenity value of the area. The loss of this tree would be of detriment to
that character and amenity of the area. The tree has additional value in
that it is in keeping with the historic character of the surrounding
conservation area. The tree is mature and has a safe useful future life
expectancy in excess of 40-50 years. An assessment has been made
by your Officers of the contribution this tree makes to the amenity of
the area using the (TEMPQO) amenity evaluation method. The tree was
found to be of suitable amenity value for protection by a tree
preservation order. The attractive nature of the tree is apparent in the
photographs contained in the supporting documentation.

70



5.3

5.4

6.1

7.

7.1

In terms of the Holm Qak, this tree is set back form the frontage of the
property. Though a significant tree of value, its location is not
sufficiently forward to directly compensate for the loss of the Yew tree.

Tree Preservation Orders are made if the LPA considers that a tree of
high amenity value is at risk of damage or loss. A negative response
was received to the question 3.9 made in the property search because
no intimation of the tree being at risk had been received at that time.

CONSLUSION

Having carefully considered and addressed the grounds of objection, it
is the view of your Arboricultural Consultant that this yew tree is an
attractive tree, appropriate for its location: the loss of which would be of
significant detriment to the character of the Conservation Area and the
general amenity of the area in which the tree stands. The reasons put
forward by Mr Witchell are not considered sufficient to prevent the
confirmation of the order.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Panel confirms Tree Preservation Order L/TPO/381

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Tree Preservation Order File No 912

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

oA WNP

Letter of objection

Tree Evaluation Method for Tree Preservation Orders- TEMPO
Location Plan

Tree Preservation Order Plan

Photographic views of TPO tree, T1 Yew

Plan showing photograph view points

CONTACT OFFICER

Mr J Jaarsma, Planning Services Manager (Development Management)
Tel No: 01480 388402.

71



GREEN PAPERS FOLLOW

72



Huntingdonshire District Council

Pathfinder House Mr Paul Witchell
St Mary Street 15 Hunts End
Huntingdon Buckden
PE29 3TN Cambs

PE19 55U
Your Ref LS/JG/TPO009136 8™ December 2015

BY RECORDED DELIVERY
Dear Sirs,

Re Tree Preservation Order Number: L/TPO/381 15 Hunts End Buckden St Neots PE19 55U

Please accept this letter as my formal objection to the above reference Tree Preservation Order
made in respect of a single Yew Tree at situation “TL 19575 67553” located at the above property.
The Objection being made on the following three (3) grounds:

1. Practical considerations as to the location of the tree:

The tree in question has been left unmanaged and unkempt for many years such that it has now
grown so big that it blocks access to the drive and garage (and associated off street parking) so as to
prevent an vehicular access to the property. The attached photograph demonstrates the situation.

Hunts End, whilst a no through road, is relatively busy due to the presence of a row of shops at the
top end of Hunts End. The Road is reasonably narrow and on a sweeping bend. 15 Hunts End (the
property in question) is located directly opposite the row of shops and on the bend.

15 Hunts End is a 4 bedroom property. Accordingly it is almost certain that any owners of the
property will have more than 1 vehicle, particularly given Buckdens poor public transport links
(having no railway station). The present owner and his family have 4 cars. Without any access to the
space within the property for off street parking (due to the presence of the Yew Tree) any owners of
15 Hunts End will have no choice but to leave their vehicles on the road, outside the row of shops.
Given the narrowness of the road, and that vehicles are constantly coming and going (due to the
shops including a convince store, barbers, Chinese takeaway and Pharmacy) it is submitted that this
is dangerous.

Further, it is submitted that the presence of the owners of 15 Hunts End numerous vehicles on the
road, will have a detrimental effect on the trade for the row of shops opposite the property, there
being no available parking for perspective customers to those shops.

In summary the Tree Preservation Order prevents access to the otherwise off street parking at the

property, forcing any owners to park their vehicles on the road, which is dangerous, increases
congestion, and it is submitted will affect trade to the shops.

73



2. The grounds for the Tree Preservation Order are factually flawed.

Within the Tree Preservation Order the Council claims:

".....the tree provides an important visual amenity, such that if it were removed or damaged there
would be a significant impact on the environment and its enjoyment by the public...and its loss would
detract from the sylvan appearance of the locality as well as its enjoyment by the public.

Such statements are incorrect.

As stated above Hunts End is a no through road, and therefore not a major route through Buckden
to be “enjoyed by the public” The loss of the tree would not have any detrimental effect upon the
environment or the enjoyment by the public of Buckden, as Hunts End is not routinely visited by the
public beyond the top end by the shops. There is no reason for the public to progress further down
Hunts End. The Tree is hidden from view due to its location on the inside of a sweeping bend.

It is submitted that the public would not even notice the absence of the tree.

Further the removal of the tree would not have any significant impact upon the “sylvan appearance
of the locality” due to the presence of a large Holme Oak tree (also located at 15 Hunts End) which is
directly behind the Yew tree when viewed from the road (the only view available to the public). The
removal of the Yew would simply allow the Holme Oak to be more apparent (as viewed from the
road) and have no effect upon the sylvan appearance of the locality.

Given the presence of the adjacent much larger Holme Qak tree there would be little or no impact
upon the visual appearance of the area caused by the removal of the Yew tree.

3. Legal considerations

The property was subject to a very recent purchase by Mr Witchell. As part of this purchase Mr
Witchell had a local authority search undertaken. The search was requested by Mr Witchell’s
conveyancing solicitor Anthony Stockton Solicitors on the 12th August 2015 by way of a Requisition
for search and official certificate of search (copy enclosed).

Section CON 29R ‘Enquiries of local authority (2007) of that search contains the following question
under the heading ‘PLANNING AND BUILDING REGULATIONS’ under the sub section ‘OTHER
MATTERS’; Question 3.9 concerns “ Notices orders, directions and proceedings under Planning Acts’
and asks;

Do any of the following subsist in relation to the property, or has the local authority decided to issue,
serve or commence any of the following:

Item (m) of the list of the ‘following’ referred to in the question concerns ‘a tree preservation order’.
On the 25" August 2015 Huntingdonshire District Council provided their answers to that search
(copy enclosed) with the official search reference 1516_01156. In respect of question 3.9 item (m)

Tree Preservation Orders, of the search guestion the council answered ‘No’ (Page 4 of 5 of the search
reference 0516_01156 answers).

74



It is submitted that in late August 2015 the council advised Mr Witchell that not only was there no
Tree Preservation Order present on the property, but further the council was not considering issuing
such an order. The question seeks confirmation as to the future intensions of the local authority by
way of ‘has the local authority decided to issue, serve, make or commence any of the following’.
Accordingly the question is clearly NOT limited to an enquiry of a pre-existing Tree Preservation
order, but additionally the (near at least) future intensions of the council.

Mr Witchell relied on those answers provided by Huntingdon District Council within the search
process in deciding to proceed with the purchase of the property. As it is submitted would any
perspective purchaser.

At this juncture it is worth noting that recent case law has confirmed that councils have a strict
liability to prospective purchasers of property to provide correct and truthful answers to search
question enquires see Chesterton Commercial (Oxon) Ltd-v- Oxfordshire County Council [2015].

Mr Witchell submits that when answering questions in a property search enquiry the local authority
is obligated to answer such questions honestly and to the best of it ability and knowledge.

In respect of Tree Preservation order the local authority itself is the certifying authority, ie it is the
Council who issues the TPO. Accordingly if the answers provided by Huntingdonshire District Council
in respect of TPO’s cannot be relied upon, from whom was Mr Witchell expected to obtain such
information?

As the certifying authority in respect of TPO’s, when answering question 3.9 (m) of the search

enquiry the Council was not only obligated to check the existence of exiting TPO’s but ask itself the
"”""‘--_...A—u-\._‘_’

Is it likely that the council would decide to issue a TPO upon the property in the near future ?’\-n‘

.,--"/’

When providing answers towEhék”sé"é?(‘:ﬁ”éﬁaﬁr’f"cﬁéﬂ Council ought to have, and in any event is
deemed to have considered the site, the presence of exiting trees, and the possibility and likelihood
of the Council themselves applying a TPO to the property in the near future.

When deciding to purchase the property at 15 Hunts End ,Mr Witchell not only relied upon the
answers provided by Huntingdon District Council in the search, but further in respect of Tree
Preservation Orders, such answers were fundamental to Mr Witchell’s intentions with the property.

Mr Witchell completed the purchase of 15 Hunts End on the 19" September 2015. On the 1%
October 2015 Mr Witchell submitted, via his agent Leslie Dickinson, an application to remove a
number of tress, including the Yew tree now the subject of the TPO in question, under a notification
of proposed works to trees in a conservation area, Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (copy
enclosed).

75



It is clear that such an application, submitted but a few days after he completed his purchase
demonstrates the essential nature of the answers given by the council in the search concerning
TPO's in relation to Mr Witchell’s intentions with the property.

It was not until the penultimate day of the 6 week period under which the council has to respond to
the application of tree works in a conservation area, that Huntingdonshire District Council issued its
TPO in respect of the Yew Tree on the 12" November 2015.

In respect of these events Mr Witchell makes the following points.

Firstly either the Tree Preservation Order is wrong and misconceived or the property search answers
provided by Huntingdonshire District Council on the 25™ August 2015 are incorrect. Given that they
are contradictory, they both cannot be correct and or valid. Given that the council confirmed they
had no intention of issuing any TPO's in respect of the property on the 25™ August 2015, how can
the council justify its decision to issue such an order on the 12" November 2015 in respect of an
application made 1*' October 20152 It cannot.

It is submitted that it is more likely that the Councils decision to issue a TPO is erroneous. It is noted
that the TPO is has been decided by an Arboriculture Assistant; Mr Mike Barber. It is submitted that
Mr Barber has clearly reached an incorrect and conflicting decision to the same question the council
must have, and in any event is deemed to have asked itself when answering the property search
questions on the 25" August 2015- ie- Do any of the trees on the property warrant a TPQ?

It is contended that for the reasons set out in the first part of this letter (issues 1 and 2) the TPO is
incorrect and wrong and has been decided by an in experienced overzealous Assistant who has
failed to consider all of the relevant factors. Mr Barber has therefore reached a conflicting answer to
what was the same question considered by the local authority when providing its search answers in
respect of TPO's.

The Yew tree is clearly very old. Accordingly it did not suddenly become a tree that provides an
important visual amenity, such that if it were removed or damaged there would be a significant
impact on the environment and its enjoyment by the public...and its loss would detract from the
sylvan appearance of the locality as well as its enjoyment by the public, as claimed upon the TPO by
Huntingdonshire District Council. If such a statement is claimed to be true on the 12" November
2015, then it must also have been true on the 25" August 2015. The tree has not suddenly sprung up
in a little over 2 months! The simple truth is that the tree is NOT a tree that provides an important
visual amenity, such that if it were removed or damaged there would be a significant impact on the
environment and its enjoyment by the public [emphasis added]. If it was it would have already been
the subject of a TPO in August 2015, or at the very least the council would have provided a positive
response to question 3.9 (m) of the property search enquiry made in August 2015.

The alternative being that the property search answer in respect of Tree Preservation Orders
provided by Huntingdon District Council on the 25" August 2015 is incorrect. If that is the case then
the ramifications for the local authority are far reaching and wide ranging. It is reiterated that Mr
Witchell relied upon those answers when purchasing the property. The removal of the Yew tree is
fundamental to Mr Witchell plans, enjoyment and use of the property to such an extent that had he
been made aware that he would not be able to remove it, and it would be the subject of a TPO

76



(which if the Council maintain the TPO is correct and valid he should have been made aware of by
virtue of the Local Autharity “correctly” answering the property search enquiry) Mr Witchell would
not have purchased 15 Hunts End at all. Accordingly in such circumstances Mr Witchell will have no
alternative but to hold the Council liable for his losses in purchasing a property based upon reliance
of an incorrect local authority search answer being provided by Huntingdonshire District Council. In
this regard legal authority is with Mr Witchell - see Chesterton Commercial (Oxon) Ltd-v- Oxfordshire
County Council [2015].

Conclusion
For the reasons set out in this letter it is submitted that tree preservation order L/TPO/381 15 Hunts

End Buckden St Neots PE19 55U in respect of Yew Tree at situation “TL 19575 67553” is
misconceived, incorrect and wrong, and is herby formally objected to on the grounds set out herein.

Yours faithfully,

Paul Witchell

77



/‘" Coudle ( 773 {ﬁ v
(i—(\f\)-!d i_,uuuiu(
Adnacit q_% .A_U\..{
iocted ¥ A

/8



SURVEY DATA SHEET & DECISION GUIDE
Surveyor: ﬂ? PQG

Tree/Group No: T\
Location:

Datc:(‘t‘ W VS

Tree details
TPO Ref (if applicable):
Owmner (if known):

Species: \.( TN

REFER TO GUIDANCE NOTE FOR ALL DEFINITIONS

art 1: Amenity assessment
a) Condition & suitability for TPO

5) Ggod Highly suitable Score & Notes

3) Fair Suitable

1) Poor Unlikely to be suitable g 5 ()['CC)C/Q C U\J*&A J‘—lw e OLUY "
0) Dead Unsuitable (}\ ; Q‘ & (}‘ g ¢

0) Dymg/dangerous* Unsuitable -

* Relates to existing context and is intended to apply to severe irremediable defects anly

b) Retention span (in years) & suitability for TPO

5y 100+ Highly suitable Score & Notes

4) 40-100 Very suitable X L .

2) 20-40 Suitable 5 - [/UMG \\ VAL SPQL\ S
1) 10-20 Just suitable

0) <10%* Unswtable

*Includes trees which are an existing or near future nuisance, including these clearly outgrowing their context, or which are significantly negating the
potentiul of other trees of better qualiy

<) Relative public visibility & suitability for TPO
Consider realistic potential for future visibility with changed land use

§) Very large trees with some visibility, or prominent large trees Highly suitable Score & Notes
4) Large trees, or medium trees clearly visible to the public Suitable %
3) Medium trees, or large trees with limited view only Suitable i S

2)Young, small, or medium/large trees visible only with difficulty
1) Trees not visible to the public, regardless of size

Barely suitable e

Probably unsuitable

d) Other factors
Trees must have accrued 7 or more points (with no zero score) to qualify

5) Principal components of arboricultural featurcs, or veteran trees
4) Tree groups, or members of groups important for their cohesion
3) Trees with identifiable historic, commemorative or habitat 1mportance |
2)Trees of particularly good form, especially if rare or unusual
1) Trees with none of the above additional redeeming features

Score & Notes

Part 2: edien S
Trees must have accrued 9 or more points to qualify

5) Immediate threat to tree
3) Foresceable threat to tree
2) Perceived threat to tree
1) Precautionary only

Score & Notes

S - Tvee bp he yewenad {% T Po

Part 3: Decision guide

Any 0 Do not apply TPO Add Scores forTotal: Decision:

1-6 TPO indefensible

7-10 Does not merit TPQ | q ’T_F)O
1-14 TPO defensible *
15+ Definitely merits TPO

79




Development Management Panel

¥ Scale =1:1,250
@ Date Created: 06/04/2016

Application Ref:L/TPO/381
Location:Buckden

//—‘%\
Huntingdonshire

BlSTRIEGCT €CouUNETlL

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016
Ordnance Survey HDC 100022322

N AT
-]
i3 2s. \*\
K Thistle Hily
:‘-_ Moat S| _ Park F
" P ~
: / %
N & . =t
—/1 " \ Hardwigk:
\ ~-g a
. \“ Dn,e &,
pl Fm 3 8 it
‘Buckdendd ‘ <
Wood - $ ﬂb’t‘.el £y Buckden Y]
a ., | BB61 _26 @ 5 3 S G
N o - N ] =
‘Shooter’s \ =aiCeY i A g
_¢-Hollow ) AN ] a ]
toatl / / > 1~ :
PASNY . tirtlge  Margefts p :
A B e S Fm <3
~D iidd [ o > J id
~ — ==
N [ 9% - 50 ) — 79
. \ M @ 30‘\~ ]
. L a lBg il
Lodge Fmlf ™ < g //gér:;&er el // ﬁ
. ; iy " Jr=sk Pt R |
LB
5 v
The
&
S N
>
& < >
7S
A @
é} ;
OO,Q 7
s

Key

"] The Site

I Listed Building
@ Conservation Area

Tennis Courts

«°
K

=

Library




Shelter{
q @ - 24.1m

: =
! @

e Library
N 1:1,000 Tree Preservation Order L/TPO/381 e
15 Hunts End Huntingdonshire
A Buc@gn oty | €T €O

Date: 09/11/20 98 svw e smsoncrencays sarr e com oo G R




LB

¢8

T

N 1:250 Tree Preservation Order L/TPO/381
15 Hunts End Pathfinder House
Buckden

‘bs . Reproduced from Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of Her Majesty’s Stationary Office © Crown Copyright. . .
Date . 0 9I 1 1 I 2 0 1 5 Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. HDC LA 100022322 PE29 3TN Planning Services




Tree Preservation Order L/TPO/381
15 Hunts End
Buckden

83



Photograph 3

84



— [ B

Photograph Location Pints

ol

N 1:900 Tree Preservation Order L/TPO/381 T _
15 Hunts End _Huntingdonshire
BUCB‘!\?“ ;'at';-:’ﬁnheﬁsulué‘; CCCCCCCCCC
?ry's treet
Date: 01/ 04/%3@%%;%?”““”‘“”e""‘“”"°'”°'M“‘es"’ss‘a"°"“%"ﬂf'°°"y""'"‘ PER TN | Planning Services




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 4a

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 18 APRIL 2016

Case No: 15/00682/FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)

Proposal: CHANGE OF USE TO A4 PUBLIC HOUSE, TOGETHER
WITH INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL ALTERATIONS AND
EXTENSION

Location: 8 MARKET HILL ST IVES PE27 5AL

Applicant: MR JON RANDALL

Grid Ref: 531439 271186

Date of Registration: 29.04.2015

Parish: ST IVES

RECOMMENDATION - Members are requested to allow
the removal of the suggested condition relating to a noise meter
to be installed in the beer garden.

1. ADDENDUM REPORT

1.1 This application is referred back to Panel following approval by
Members at DMP on 15th February 2016, when the Applicant agreed
to a condition requested by Members relating to a noise meter. (It
should be noted that the HDC EHPO did not consider a noise monitor
would be practical). However, the installation of a noise meter in the
beer garden cannot be honoured due to the reasons below:

- On the face of it a noise monitor seems like a good idea, however it
would only be possible to find out if the guideline level of 50dB was
exceeded at the end of a 16 hour period.

- A noise monitor could possibly undermine good management
techniques as Wetherspoons could fall into a situation where no
action might be taken against noise until an indicator went off — which
would lead to poor management.

- The Acoustic Consultant from Spectrum says; “it would not be
practical to install a permanent noise monitor on the site boundary”.
The Consultant explained that he is not aware of any such system
being implemented in an outdoor setting permanently. He further
explained that if such a system is available, there would be no way of
determining which specific noise source would trigger it. For example,
if a bird sat on top of the microphone or a dog started barking nearby,
this could trigger the alert system.

- Furthermore:
. The system would need regular calibration which is not practical.
. An alert system cannot reduce the noise from patrons.

. The WHO noise criteria relates to a 16hr daytime period (07:00-
23:00). Therefore, only at the end of the 16hour period (23:00) would
it be possible to determine if the criteria has been exceeded, by which
time the garden would be closed.

. The system could be an easy target for vandals.

. The system would need to be weatherproof and | am not aware
of this being available.

87



1.2

13

14

15

1.6

The Wetherspoons representative at the February DMP also stated
that Wetherspoons were happy to install a sound monitor to meet the
criteria if such a device could be specified to meet the criteria of the
sound assessment by the EHPO. However the EHPO agree that this
sound monitor is also not required and the technology to create it
does not exist and the solution is not practical.

It is clear from the EHPO'’s and Acoustic Consultant’'s comments that
this suggested condition cannot be implemented, failing some of the
tests laid out in the paragraph 206 of the NPPF:

Planning conditions should only be imposed where they are
necessary, relevant to planning and to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects.

Due to the reasons above, there is no suitable wording for a workable
noise meter condition that would meet these tests.

Conclusion
On the basis of the above, Members are requested to reconsider the
need for a noise meter as the condition fails the tests by not being

enforceable or reasonable in all other respects.

RECOMMENDATION — Members are requested to allow the removal
of the suggested condition relating to the noise meter.

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Ms Dallas Owen Development Management
Officer 01480 388468

88



Development Management Panel

N

P

Scale =1:1,250 Application Ref:15/00682/FUL

Date Created: 05/04/2016

Location: St lves

Key

/] The Site
I Listed Building
@ Conservation Area

/«7
Huntingdonshire

BlSTRIEGCT €CouUNETlL

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016
Ordnance Survey HDC 100022322

I

il

o
36

[~
@

(44

»

Fm Stadum
7 Q)
=p
ST HVES
o <Twr

Houghton
Grange




TITLE NUMBER

H.M. LAND REGISTRY CB206715

Scale
ORDNANCE SURVEY TL 3171 O
PLAN REFERENCE ‘ 1/1250
COUNTY CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT HUNTINGDONSHIRE © Crown Copyrigh

7N

This is a copy of the title plan on 29 APR 2015 at 12:56:42. This copy does not take account of any application made after that time even if still pending in the Land
Registry when this copy was issued.

This copy is not an 'Official Copy' of the title plan. An official copy of the title plan is admissible in evidence in a court to the same extent as the original. A person is
entitled to be indemnified by the registrar if he or she suffers loss by reason of a mistake in an official copy. If you want to obtain an official copy, the Land Registry
web site explains how to do this.

The Land Registry endeavours to maintain high quality and scale accuracy of title plan images.The quality and accuracy of any print will depend on your printer, your
computer and its print settings.This title plan shows the general position, not the exact line, of the boundaries. It may be subject to distortions in scale. Measurements
scaled from this plan may not match measurements between the same points on the ground.

This title is dealt with by Land Registry, Peterborough Office.

© Crown Copyright. Produced by Land Registry. Further reproduction in whole or in part is prohibited without the prior written permission of Ordnance Survey.
Licence Number 100026316.



GREEN PAPERS FOLLOW

91



DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 15 FEBRUARY 2016

Case No: 15/00682/FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)

Proposal: CHANGE OF USE TO A4 PUBLIC HOUSE, TOGETHER
WITH INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL ALTERATIONS AND
EXTENSION

Location: 8 MARKET HILL ST IVES PE27 5AL

Applicant: MR JON RANDALL

Grid Ref: 531439 271186

Date of Registration: 29.04.2015

Parish:

ST IVES

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVAL subject to the conditions listed in
Section 8 of the October Panel report attached, and to include that the

beer garden is not used after 2100hrs.

This application is referred to Panel because members deferred it from
their October Development Management Panel (DMP) meeting. Members
deferred decision to enable officers to Improve design of shopfront;
Rethink the need for a beer garden; Consult with Parish and locals.

1.

11

1.2

13

Assessment

On the 2nd November 2015, the agent submitted an Amended Plan
ref;F1673-05 Rev A — Proposed Elevations (front elevation doors to
have solid bottom panels), to address Members concerns raised at
DMP on 19th October 2015; and their response to MAS noise report.

On the 16th November 2015 there was a stakeholder meeting where
approx.12 people attended; and the agents hosted a public exhibition
where approx.50 people attended.

On the 10th December 2015 the agent submitted: the Comments
received and responses to those comments received from the Public
Exhibition (included in green papers). Taking into account the
comments received the applicants submitted a Management Plan
document. This management plan document talks about:
-(Wetherspoons working practices regarding intolerance to excessive
drinking and their ‘Don’t Do Drunk’ policy;

- that a CCTV system operates in all their premises and their staff are
trained to use it;

- That they subscribe to the local PubWatch scheme ‘Banned from
One — Banned from All' initiative;

- That they subscribe to security and Fire Safety practices;

- That they subscribe to community Liaison which enables Managers
to be contacted by local residents 24 hrs per day 365 days a year for
legitimate concerns.

92



1.4

15

2.1

2.2

2.3

In addition the applicants have also submitted an Outside area
Management document; Graphic mock-up of Proposed Signage;
Amended Plans ref;F1673-05 Rev B( Proposed Elevations) and
F1673-02 Rev L (Proposed floor plans) The key design changes are
that stallrisers have been introduced at the front and sliding doors
have been moved from the rear elevation to the side.

The 14 day re-consultation on the Amended Plans received on the
10th December was carried out on the 21st December 2015.

CONSULTATIONS

HDC EHPO - No objection - Notwithstanding the submitted
information the view of the EHPO remains the same (as per the
Report in the Green Papers). The two consultants have differing
views. Spectrum has been appointed by the applicant and MAS have
been appointed by a third party, so it's obvious that they will take
completely different viewpoints. EHPO officers still propose that the
summer doors at the rear of the Pub and the Beer Garden are closed
at 9pm for all public use. Smokers should be advised to smoke
outside the front entrance after 9pm to protect the residential
properties at the rear from excessive noise.

Officer response: Smokers standing outside the front of P.H. is not an
unusual occurrence within the Town Centre, and would protect the
amenity of local residents by directing the activity to the front rather
than at the rear after 9pm. A condition is recommended that the beer
garden closes at 9pm.

Consultee comments on the most recent Amended Plans received
10th December 2015:

St Ives Town Council (comments dated 13th January) Recommend
Refusal (COPY ATTACHED)

-The change of use is not supported by policy.

-The NPPF supports beneficial competition. The Town Council
considers increasing the number of Public Houses (P.H.) from 7 to 8
has minimal benefits.

-A P.H. this size is likely to increase the number of incidents of crime.
-The disputed evidence on noise between the applicant and local
residents is noted. The HDC EHPO will need to make a positive
statement on the likely noise generated by 80 people in the beer
garden to that a proper assessment of the noise impact can take
place. It is requested that an external noise sensor is provided.

-The proposed amendment to the front elevation is welcomed.

Officer response: The LPA note the concerns of the Town Council,
however the LPA consider that the change of use can be supported
by policy as per the original report presented to DMP in October 2015
(see Green papers). The issue of noise has been considered fully by
the EHPO. The Police Architectural Liaison Officer has examined the
crime date for the whole night time economy for St Ives Town Centre
and has raised no objections to the proposal.

Cambridgeshire Constabulary Architectural Liaison — No

objection - | confirm that | have viewed these amendments and
remain to have no grounds for objection, or further observations.

93



2.4

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

Environment Agency — No objection - There are no EA issues within
the Amended Plans. Therefore we have no comments to add to
those previously made.

REPRESENTATIONS

The Local Planning Authority has received 7 representations following
re-consultation (4 objections and 3 in support).

The objectors raise the following issues:

-it should also be listed as A3 use due to number of meals

-the building is only empty because it has served the purpose for the
applicant

- the proposal will result in the loss of a retail unit

-the proposal will not be good for the economy as there are numerous
A3/A4 uses in the town

-there are many A3/A4 establishments which already exist that the
applicant could have bought

-impact on neighbours is serious.

-where will the smokers go if banned after 9pm

-in June 2015 Brighton LPA turned down a Wetherspoons due to loss
of retall

-urge Panel to refuse the change of use

- that the proposal will cause noise and disturbance

-that the beer garden at the rear will generate noise, litter and crowds
resulting in loss of amenity for residential properties

-that the proposal will impact on the wider neighbourhood from
customers leaving late at night

In support:

-it will bring in additional footfall to the town, who will also support
local businesses

-it will also increase the capacity of the guided busway and make the
town more competitive

-provide employment

-that the prices will promote competition of benefit to those on lower
incomes e.g. pensioners

-good value

-the beer garden should not be a problem as the Golden Lion has a
large beer garden and no body complains about that

- A vacant shop being utilised which hopefully will bring more people
into St Ives - young & old.

Officer response: the representations received following the re-
consultation have raised no additional issues to those considered in
October.

In terms of the design changes, below is a detailed description
of the changes, as well as an assessment of the acceptability of
these changes:

The shopfront
A traditional shopfront is now proposed with smaller openings, and
the addition of stallrisers and panelling, the railings have been

removed from the proposals. Signage would be subject of a separate
application. This has been discussed with the Conservation Officer

94



4.2

4.3

4.4

who advises that the amended shopfront would be an improvement
on the existing shopfront and will preserve the character and
appearance of the conservation area. The proposal is therefore
considered to accord with the NPPF; policies En5, En6é and En25 of
the Local Plan 1995; CS1 of the Adopted Core Strategy 2009; LP1
and LP31 of the Draft Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 2013. The draft
policies can only be afforded limited weight in their consistency with
the NPPF as they are emerging policies.

Alterations to the rear elevation

The proposed sliding doors have been moved from the rear elevation
to the side elevation. Fixed glazing is proposed on the rear elevation,
except for the proposed glazed Fire doors that have been
repositioned from the side to the rear elevation. There is no objection
to these changes in terms of visual amenity. The proposal is therefore
considered to accord with the NPPF; policies En5, En6 and En25 of
the Local Plan 1995; CS1 of the Adopted Core Strategy 2009; LP1
and LP31 of the Draft Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 2013. The draft
policies can only be afforded limited weight in their consistency with
the NPPF as they are emerging policies.

In terms of issues relating to noise disturbance, and specifically
the applicants noise survey states:

-Noise limits for mechanical services plant noise have been
established for the sensitive trading hours and residual night time
hours, based on background noise and taking account of BS 4142
guidelines relating to reasonable standards of noise. Predictions have
indicated that with the specified noise control mitigation to items of
mechanical plant (section 5.1.2), the overall noise from these services
would meet noise limit objectives. Noise limits for the beer garden
have been established taking account of WHO guidelines and BS
8233:2014. Noise levels from patrons in the beer garden area during
both the normal and peak trading periods, would be lower than the
WHO guideline noise levels for moderate annoyance at the nearby
residential receptor locations. Furthermore, noise levels from the beer
garden would not exceed the BS 8233:2014 indicated guideline noise
levels outside of the nearby offices.

-Limits associated with noise breaking out of the summer opening
doors at the front and rear of the premises have been established,
taking account of WHO guidelines and BS 8233:2014. Predictions
have indicated that noise levels would be lower than the WHO
guideline noise levels for moderate annoyance at the nearby
residential receptor locations. Furthermore, noise levels from open
summer doors would not exceed the BS 8233:2014 indicated
guideline noise levels outside of the nearby offices. The applicants
noise survey concludes that the noise levels predicted for each of the
potential noise impacts are sufficiently low not to cause an adverse
impact on the nearby residential community.

Planning officers have had further discussions with the District
Council pollution control officers. The pollution control team advise
that the noise from the proposed use should not be a problem to
sensitive receptors in the area. However, noise from the beer garden
and the open back doors may have a negative effect on the Mulberry

95



4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

Cottage during the late evening/night so would recommend putting
time restrictions on the use of the beer garden.

A further Technical Document produced by Spectrum dated October
2015 was submitted by the applicant as a response to the concerns
raised by MAS Environmental on behalf of the occupiers of Mulberry
Cottage and Gateway House. MAS Environmental raised concerns
over the conclusions of the noise impact assessment report. The
Spectrum document concludes that the assessment methodology
proposed by Spectrum, which was accepted by HDC, is widely
accepted by many other local authorities. The criterion used is
appropriate for the type of establishment to which planning
permission is sought. The alternative IOA and BCC criterion
suggested by MAS is intended for establishments which hold
entertainment events. The Spectrum report goes onto argue that
using this criteria here is misleading and is not intended for the
assessment of noise from a beer garden or the summertime opening
of doors at a Public House where no entertainment events would be
held.

HDC pollution control officers advise, taking into account the
additional information received, that their view remains the same (as
per the Report in the Green Papers). The pollution control team add
that the two consultants have differing views. Spectrum has been
appointed by the applicant and MAS have been appointed by a third
party, so it's obvious that they will take completely different
viewpoints.

Subject to appropriate conditions, it is considered that the proposal
complies with the NPPF; policy S14 of the Local Plan 1995; CS1 of
the Adopted Local Plan 2009; LP1 and LP15 of the Draft Local Plan
to 2036: Stage 3 2013. Whilst the policies are broadly consistent with
the NPPF paragraphs 109 and 123 that seek to minimise against
unacceptable levels of noise from new development including through
the use of conditions, policies S14 and CS1 would be afforded
greater weight as they are adopted policies, whilst LP1 and LP15 can
only be given limited weight as they are emerging policies.

Consultation with Parish and Locals

In line with the Member decision to defer decision, the agents on the
16th November 2015 attended a stakeholders meeting with St Ives
Town Council, Civic Society, St Ives Town Initiative, St Ives Retall
Group; and hosted a public exhibition where approx.50 people
attended. Data from a ‘Comments Response Form’ has been
submitted by the applicant where the majority of responses were in
support of the proposed development; the majority were in support of
a viable use for the building although 9 would prefer a different use
than Wetherspoons; the majority thought that the proposals would
improve the appearance but it could be improved further e.g. no
railings; there was a mix of general comments with only 2 people
commenting that retail would be better, 1 person concerned regarding
where smokers would go after 9pm and 7 people raising concerns
over noise.

The applicant has taken these considerations into account by altering
the shop front. Deliveries would take place at the front so that

96



4.10

neighbours at the rear would not be affected by noise associated with
delivers. A beer garden is an important aspect of the business plan,
however the applicant has re-positioned the sliding doors to the side
to mitigate any potential noise from the building.

Conclusion:

The proposed development is considered to be compliant with
relevant national and local planning policy since:

* It will bring a vacant building in a sustainable town centre location
back into use.

* The scale and location of the development is not considered to have
an overly detrimental impact upon the Conservation Area.

* |t would not have a significant detrimental impact on the amenity of
neighbours.

* |t is acceptable in terms of highway safety.

* |t would not be at risk of flooding or exacerbate the risk of flooding
elsewhere.

* There are no other material planning considerations which lead to
the conclusion that the proposal is unacceptable.

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVAL subject to the
conditions listed in Section 8 of the October DMP report attached,
and to include a further condition that the beer garden is not used
after 2100hrs.

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Ms Dallas Owen Development Management
Officer 01480 388468

97



TWINNED WITH STADTALLENDORF

TOWN CLERK: Alison Melnyczuk BA (Hons) FILCM

Town Hall, Market Hill, The Old Riverport, St Ives, Cambridgeshire PE27 5AL LA CQUNe
Telephone: 01480 388929 P FoUNBATION

email: clerk@stivestowncouncil.gov.uk

15 January 2016

Mr A Moffat
Head of Development
Huntingdonshire District Council

Dear Mr Moffat
Planning Application 15/00682 Wetherspoon plc

Following the decision by the HDC Development Management Panel to defer the decision at
its October 2015 meeting, the Town Council met with the applicant on the 16™ November
and the applicant agreed to the following:

e Provide an impact statement on the development’s impact on the existing pubs and
restaurants in the town

e Consider an external noise sensor to enhance the monitoring of the external noise
from the beer garden

¢ Redesign the front elevation to the remove the railings and move the rear door to
lessen the noise impact on adjacent properties.

St lves Town Council considered new information on the above application at its Planning
Committee on Wednesday 13 January 2016 and recommended rejection for the following
reasons.

Change of use to A4 Public House

The change of use is a direct contravention of HDC policy S12 that seeks to retain retail
units in town centre. There are no policies in the NPPF or associated guidance document
that contradicts this policy. In fact these documents requires planning authorities to have
policies regarding suitable uses in town centres.

The applicant agreed to provide an impact statement at a meeting on the 16™ November.
They have now refused to do so. There is no evidence to support policy S12 being overruled
by other considerations.

The NPPF and guidance support beneficial competition (Guidance on vitality of town centres
paragraph 001). The Town Council considers that increasing the number of public houses in
the town from 7 to 8 has minimal competition benefits. It could however cause existing
premises to close which would leave the town centre with a number of disused buildings
which would be difficult to find new uses. This would not enhance the vitality of the town
centre.

The Town Council notes the recent Police report into nigh time economy crime in St lves.
However this only considered a limited area of the town centre. Police crime reports
submitted to the Town Council indicate 1 or 2 incidents of violent crime associated with
people leaving pubs per month. Recent incidents were recorded on 3 October, 5 November,

98



6 November, 12 December and 28 December. An additional public house of this size is likely
to increase the number of incidents.

The Town Council is concerned that our previous comments linked to change of use were
not covered in the Officers report on the original application.

Noise

The Town Council notes the disputed evidence on noise between the applicant and local
residents. The HDC Environmental Health Officer will need to make a positive statement on
the likely noise generated by 80 people in the beer garden so that a proper assessment of
the noise impact can take place.

The Town Council requests that an external noise sensor be provided in the beer garden,
set at a level to be agreed with the EHO. The sensor would have an indicator within the bar
area. This will enable staff to monitor external noise.

Building Appearance

The Town Council welcomes the new front elevation and it is much improved from the
original.

Yours sincerely

Alison Melnyczuk BA(Hons) FILCM
TOWN CLERK

99



ST IVES TOWN COUNCIL PLANNING COMMITTEE : 13 January 2016
APPLICATIONS FOR PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT

App No & | Name and Address of Proposal and Type of Recommendation to District Council
Date Reg Applicant/Agent Location Application
1500682 J D Wetherspoon plc Change of Use to A4 public house, Full Recommend Refusal
21.12.2015 | Architect together with internal and external
Victoria House alterations and extension -Refer letter
Ack Lane East 8 Market Hill
Bramhall St Ives
Stockport
Cheshire
SK7 2BE
1501696 Mr D Waters Change of Use from a store building to | Full Would Recommend Approval
30.12.2015 The Willows a residential property
) 46 High Street Boiler Room SUBJECT TO
Earith Sheltered Housing -a full asbestos survey being carried out and
PE28 3PP Crown Close measures put in place for asbestos removal
St Ives -assurances that all measures will be in hand to

ensure no pollution is present on the site
during the works

-assurance that, in accordance with the
Committee’s previous recommendation, that
the site is made safe and confirmed to be so
before granting of the planning application

Mr D Georgiev Change of use to a D1 Dental Practice Recommend Approval

Eshedent Ltd 19B East Street Full

8 Owl Way St lves SUBJECT TO

Hartford -agreement on appropriate signage
Huntingdon

PE29 1YZ




Recommend Approval

Barford & Co

17 Howard House
Church Street

St Neots

PE19 2BU

relation to the erection of storage
building with ancillary offices and use
of land for outside storage with
surfacing, drainage works and
landscape planting

Land North of Needingworth Industrial
Estate

Needingworth Road

Needingworth

1502232 Mr and Mrs M Potter Increase to the ridge height/loft Full
08.12.2015 | Mr G Saberton conversion -appropriate scale of development
Greg Saberton Design 68 Edinburgh Drive -does not impact on the street
Tom’s Hole Barn St lves scene
Branch Bank
Prickwillow
Ely
CB7 4UR
Recommend Approval
1502273 Mr R Money Change garage to domestic area; infill | Full
18.12.2015 | The Old Post Office to front; change flat roof to tiled -appropriate scale of development
Church Street pitched roof -in keeping with street scene
Woodhurst 16 Parkway
Huntingdon St lves
PE28 3BN
|- Recommend Approval
8502322 Burgess and Walker Transport Ltd | Variation of conditions 3,11 and 18 of | Section 73
31.12.2015 | Mr M Page Planning Permission 15/01109 in consent -sensible amendments to conditions which do

not affect the overall scheme




Development Management Panel " -,
Huntingdonshire

BlSTRIEGCT €CouUNETlL

@ Scale =1:1,250 Application Ref: 15/00682/FUL
Date Created: 19/01/2016 Location:St Ives

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016
Ordnance Survey HDC 100022322

\ \f\\\;\\\\g\ N
v G INV/AIN | X
NBZGET P S

Hougnton 4

' Hill F/rn Stca@tj @ ?“ﬁg

Legend

B Listed Building

/] The Site
@ Conservation Area




TITLE NUMBER

H.M. LAND REGISTRY CB206715

Scale
ORDNANCE SURVEY TL 3171 O
PLAN REFERENCE ‘ 1/1250
COUNTY CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT HUNTINGDONSHIRE © Crown Copyrigh

7N

This is a copy of the title plan on 29 APR 2015 at 12:56:42. This copy does not take account of any application made after that time even if still pending in the Land
Registry when this copy was issued.

This copy is not an 'Official Copy' of the title plan. An official copy of the title plan is admissible in evidence in a court to the same extent as the original. A person is
entitled to be indemnified by the registrar if he or she suffers loss by reason of a mistake in an official copy. If you want to obtain an official copy, the Land Registry
web site explains how to do this.

The Land Registry endeavours to maintain high quality and scale accuracy of title plan images.The quality and accuracy of any print will depend on your printer, your
computer and its print settings.This title plan shows the general position, not the exact line, of the boundaries. It may be subject to distortions in scale. Measurements
scaled from this plan may not match measurements between the same points on the ground.

This title is dealt with by Land Registry, Peterborough Office.

© Crown Copyright. Produced by Land Registry. Further reproduction in whole or in part is prohibited without the prior written permission of Ordnance Survey.
Licence Number 100026316.



0T

roof parapet copping

Roof light
below roof line

existing brick

ex(sting

= 22 7| T 0 =
0 e e e e ==
Nos. 10 existing opening Nos. 7
FRONT ELEVATION

new AHU plant

existing roof parapet

&COWI
New Glazed Roof light
[T 1 [T 1
______ e I
______ O e L
| | |
: Proppsed : Infill-existing véindow
| SE flue | !
I I
I I
______ R
L~
—/

brickwork

existing roof parapet

Roof light

grilles

existing roof parapet

below roof line

existing brickwork

ducts removed

‘Iretain centre :
Jawvindow &

new render
to existing wall

. Infill existing
.| “outer windows:
-withrendered

new
dogt

aliminium fframed
fixed glazing

2400

| film internally.
L T :panels
R
D T
Existing beam to remain exposed
new:rendered’
blockwork wall

|[EiXisting column to:remain exposed

GF

Existing column to remain exposed

— ~existing brickwork — — — 1T T T T =T
|
!
|

steel beam

new render
to existing wall

I InﬁILexistin
‘ windows with
I receéssed panelg
b ﬁI

EXistng beam 1o
remain exposed

glass fanlight

hewrender’ - retain wihglow
w v toexisting wall . g film interpally| |
‘ L o I [ |lglass fanligh

g
B

Infill-existing sliding

doors : glazed
glectrical door
\<ervices

sliding stacking
aluminium frgmed
glazed doo

Existing column to remain exposed

REAR ELEVATION

WEST SIDE ELEVATION

existing roof parapet

NOTE:

The Contractor is to check and verify all building
and site dimensions, levels and sewer invert
levels at connection points before work starts.

This drawing must be read with and checked
against any structural or other specialist

drawings provided.

The Contractor is to comply in all respects
with the current Building Regulations whether
or not specifically stated on these drawings.

This drawing is not intended to show details
of foundation or ground conditions. Each area
of ground relied upon to support the structure
depicted must be investigated by the Contractor
and suitable methods of foundation be provided.

THIS SCHEME IS NOT BASED ON AN ACT SURVEY

Drawing Status

Construction Status

brickwork
to-match

brickwork

B Updated for stall risers at front, sliding doors moved ATG
from rear elevation to side

26.11.15

A Front elevation doors to have solid bottom panels ATG

02.11.15

Rev. By

Date

EAST SIDE ELEVATION

architels

architecture and interior design

Architect CT
Victoria House
Ack Lane East
Bramhall
Cheshire

SK7 2BE

T: 0161-439 9205
E: general@architect-ct.co.uk
W: www.architect-ct.co.uk

Site

MARKET HILL
STIVES

Title

PROPOSED
ELEVATIONS

Project Manager/ | Drawn By Scale Date

Checked
1:100@A1

Mar 2015

Arch./Des. Drawing

e F1673 -05

Rev.

B




NOTE:

WHITE HAFR

MONAR CH Coyr:

WHITE HART

BURGH WoOu ey ML

The Contractor is to check and verify all building
and site dimensions, levels and sewer invert
levels at connection points before work starts.

This drawing must be read with and checked
against any structural or other specialist
drawings provided.

MARKET HILL The Contractor is to comply in all respects
with the current Building Regulations whether
or not specifically stated on these drawings.

MARKET HILL

Line of Pavement

This drawing is not intended to show details
of foundation or ground conditions. Each area
of ground relied upon to support the structure
depicted must be investigated by the Contractor

MAIN ENTRANC pe . : and suitable methods of foundation be provided.
— opening windows 5
\ —with stall riser & posts QL@ \?S THIS SCHEME IS NOT BASED ON AN ACT SURVEY
| ' ; Deliveries L CHAPEL LANE
/ . \ — DDDD Feasibility Calculations:
Staff Room Trading area 2_79sqm 3003 sqgft = 372 customers
o BOOsqft external drinking 87sgm = 932 sqft
: Store | LU FIRE ESCAPE
= g Front FE - 1900 clear = 380
g / _ Rear stair FE - 1050 clear =220
: @@ - Office Side FE - 1300 clear = 260
DISTRICT COUNCIL . 100sqft Assuming largest (front)is blocked:
- LOCGJ[ Oﬂ P|O ﬂ [ Escape CapaC|ty:.480 .
chan lockers Assuming rear & side are blocked (both within 45deg)
g lockers 3 D g Escape Capacity = 380
: TN n i I Note- there is secondary escape from first floor
— Ger;t?
JDW Sanitary Calculations:
\[ Store 188 female =9 wc/6wb
: ‘ 0} I - 188 male =4 wc/7u/4wb (no extra U req)
IS WEN =
ing
< w O Lightell KEY
j ICZ:IIaSS @ Kitchen / Food deliveries
ue
‘S!i Feacibom 2500 || Hot ﬁvﬂ Beer deliveries
- L 31 Cellar "7 DAYLIGHT
! 12sgm
— q Ground Floor Customer Area = 3013sqft
' 129sqft .
ng Well over External Dining/ Drinking = 932sqft
I FE
Party Wall
: 4/ Kitchen & J
: 12M bar 77sqm
: Customer Area - 82850 ft |
279sqm 3003sqft Q.
heat
—
food lamps fo Cold Cellar
hoi ist
ost_ﬂFOOd \_ E > hn 40sgm
f f 430sqft
c:)is'( Servery cZ)ist q
_|'] Drawing Status
irties
[o] (o]
{ Un n Construction Status
) L L Updated for stall risers at front, sliding doors moved ATG | 26.11.15
Dis wc : JF\E\ from rear elevation to side
c K Beer garden fence increased to 2.75m high ATG | 17.08.15
- " 2 i} : EE J__|Rooflight reduced for kitchen M| 29.06.15
P g *;i XZ < j CD I Revised customer toilets and staff areas SWG | 19.03.15
| ° 1 5 H Updated from notes SWG | 05.03.15
[¢] = he]
stgre 8 FE 5 G] G Updated following dag meeting sm 26.02.15
2 _ < | — 2 o & [ F_|Updated ATG | 04.02.15
- e i :cE‘B' Glass B Cj] E Backfill fridges omitted & beer garden increased ATG | 10.09.14
S X 57 h Wash OFIUESO ) D |trading increased to 3500sqft sm | 09.09.14
E / Dante-space @ C  |food servery updated sm | 08.09.14
NN | = . B |urinals updated PH | 04.02.14
covered area l Plant H’Qﬁ?f ) @ A |Layouts amended to latest brief PH | 0402.14
Bins Bottle 190sq ft ] [ | e Rev. By | Date
< o store
P N ' Ladies e
i l—f|ﬁr7 b 3]’ = — @ .
Ine ot planiyoom above @ /L window fixed booths grille E’
m arch |tel
canopy . Q’ @ architecture and interior design
‘ 5= duct
825 Architect CT
38 o O U . .
852 fixed booths J Victoria House
" O
[ — J °c“O Ack Lane East
2 E Bramhall
f o Gents Cheshire
2 = SK7 2BE
g ﬁ_é infill under covered area fixed booths C|nr g
o i2)
3 £3 E OJ OlO T: 0161-439 9205
£ C 2 E: general@architect-ct.co.uk
° W: www.architect-ct.co.uk
‘ . -
Marshalls H fixed glazing i ! L
yorkstone L
paving [ .
Beer Garden 932sqft 4 Site
(0]
MARKET HILL
2
g ST IVES
-
Title

: PROPOSED
First FLOOR PLANS
CHAPEL LANE PLANNING

Line of Pavement

Dropped Kerb

Project Manager/ | Drawn By Scale Date

Checked
PH 1:100@A1 JULY 2012

G ro u n d Arch./Des. Drawing Rev.
e 1673 -02 L




90T

roof parapet copping

existing roof parapet

brickwork

EAST SIDE ELEVATION

tank

brickwork

brickwork

roof parapet copping

brickwork

brickwork

sign

brigk

glass shop frontfgngd doors

]

NOTE:

FRONT ELEVATION

tank tank

steel beam

column

brickwork

roof parapet copping

The Contractor is to check and verify all building
and site dimensions, levels and sewer invert
levels at connection points before work starts.

This drawing must be read with and checked
against any structural or other specialist
drawings provided.

The Contractor is to comply in all respects
with the current Building Regulations whether
or not specifically stated on these drawings.

This drawing is not intended to show details
of foundation or ground conditions. Each area
of ground relied upon to support the structure
depicted must be investigated by the Contractor
and suitable methods of foundation be provided.

THIS SCHEME IS NOT BASED ON AN ACT SURVEY

Drawing Status

steel beam

dervices

FE

column

column

WEST SIDE ELEVATION

brickwork
roof parapet copping
grilles
ducts
brickwork

ducts

steel beam

brickwork
brickwork

Construction Status

column

mn

Rev. By Date

REAR ELEVATION

architels

architecture and interior design

Architect CT
Victoria House
Ack Lane East
Bramhall
Cheshire

SK7 2BE

T: 0161-439 9205
E: general@architect-ct.co.uk
W: www.architect-ct.co.uk

Site

MARKET HILL
STIVES

Title

EXISTING
ELEVATIONS

Project Manager/ | Drawn By Scale Date
Checked

1:100@A1 Mar 2015
Arch./Des. Drawing Rev.

< F1673 -04




l NOTE:
E.: The Contractor is to check and verify all building
= and site dimensions, levels and sewer invert
= levels at connection points before work starts.
- :f‘:: This drawing must be read with and checked
REHOUSE CLEARANCE SHOPS E"\iv against any structural or other specialist
e drawings provided.
E = The Contractor is to comply in all respects
with the current Building Regulations whether
or not specifically stated on these drawings.
MARKET HILL This drawing is not intended to show details
of foundation or ground conditions. Each area
) of ground relied upon to support the structure
Line of Pavement depicted must be investigated by the Contractor
and suitable methods of foundation be provided.
THIS SCHEME IS NOT BASED ON AN ACT SURVEY
Access to T
| T T T r Floors. !
: - U ppf I X existing paranat
| I
| I | | [
I l £ N\ I I I I
| I — l | I 3 1
| I ] l | l i | = mhuan | b= - 5
| | | | I 3 = g iz H
Party Wall 1| | | | | S A g 2 N o
Ho I | J%/L_ | s g : | :
I I l S 3. . ; '
1N | | N = | ik IR
| | | I isti : S[£8 |a5] ¢ i, _ ;
| ‘ | | | assumed existing Roof - flat I €y \gI . ;53; 3 [y, b :
| L l | . \dliﬁg i I B 3% 8 b
| ] | | ] | 5 Tl i 2
. . . . Y “'a*-z:f . i 2| ¢ §
L__\_ roof light roof light — roof light roof light & T PR ;|
~{ I | §: B . SHEEPMARKeT P
| — I | SR OV " /]
| g | “H AHHINTEE
o) : T Ioobe{i:lostgdol?f?p v : ?é_éj g 5 g ;g; : § g ” » (
D || ﬁ% l { § ;’; : .
roof light . | i dl L ] (
| > roof light | roTNgRt  oof light | g ¢
| | I= —
{ | :; CHAPEL LANE
i O | ] : é
| I | 13 A
| | : 2
I roof light _ | roof light
|I roof light o hti/f\ | g roof light :
roof i : | roof light
- Party wal L g roof light | 9 roof light |
. B I
Retail Area 3224sqft approx W | :
3 | ~
| | | g |
I g
| I | o | —
I 1 3 .
s - Al . H : Location Plan
Drawing Status
Construction Status
Hoist Hoist
j I_I E — D C further update SWG 05.03.15
- B Updated ATG 04.02.15
Hoist Hoist A Layouts details added PH 04.02.14
g Rev. By Date
Nl .
covered area ) 5 flat roof 2
- [}
Plant % s
£ [}
. 1] ki)
: architeldi
1\ __ [ C ‘ ) — — ] architecture and interior design
line of plant room akove | || | | g Architect CT
I ventillation grilles . Staﬂ: I 8 .I'C ! .ec
| \\ l S assumed existing Roof - flat Victoria House
L I I ) | 2 Ack Lane East
I | I 7 Bramhall
; : Staff W( I ¢ Cheshire
H N . | 5 I SK7 2BE
_ Office | m |
Gates | Il | T: 0161-439 9205
b o L } L E: general@architect-ct.co.uk
I | I W: www.architect-ct.co.uk
| covered area | T |
bCOIumn coﬂqﬁ } I — I existing parapet Site
—_———— - 3 = — I
8 | | | | MARKET HILL
2 E |
: | : | | | | ST IVES
7 parking 8 | | | |
D? | I‘ | |
I
I J } J| Title
I /’;/_,,-—-””/ l /////_;,_,;
| T | T EXISTING
_,——-”'/_’/-// ‘ ”-////_’/,,.
L e FLOOR PLANS
Project Manager/ | Drawn By Scale Date
Checked
HAPEL LANE
= PH 1100@A1 | JULY 2012
Arch./Des. Drawing Rev.
Numb
GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN o F1673 01 C




GREEN PAPERS FOLLOW

108



DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 19 OCTOBER 2015

Case No: 15/00682/FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)

Proposal: CHANGE OF USE TO A4 PUBLIC HOUSE, TOGETHER
WITH INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL ALTERATIONS AND
EXTENSION

Location: 8 MARKET HILL ST IVES PE27 5AL

Applicant: MR JON RANDALL

Grid Ref: 531439 271186

Date of Registration: 29.04.2015

Parish:

ST IVES

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE

The application is reported to the Development Management Panel as
the Town Council has an opposing view to that of the planning officer.

1.

11

1.2

13

1.4

DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

The application site is located on the south side of Market Hill and
consists of a large two-storey brick building of limited architectural
merit, with a vacant retail unit at ground floor and office use at first
floor. Huntingdonshire District Council (HDC) Business Rates section
has advised that they have the premises registered as empty since
August 2014. The property is within the St Ives Conservation Area
and annotated as ‘frontages protected for retail use’ within the Local
Plan 1995 Part 2: Proposals Map. The site is also within the
Environment Agency (EA) Flood Zone 3, SFRA 1 in 100yr extent and
1 in 1000yr extent.

Although retail and commercial uses are predominant within the core
of the Town Centre, there are some residential properties further
away, specifically to the south of the site along Chapel Lane and Birt
Lane..

The proposal is for the change of use of the ground and first floor to
A4 public house. Permission is also sought for a small extension to
the rear underneath part of the existing overhanging first floor of 1.8m
by 8.2m. In addition, a new sliding glazed door at the ground floor will
lead to a beer garden at the rear. This garden will be screened from
Chapel Lane by a new 2.75m high planted screen fence.

The applicant is proposing a number of changes to the elevations.
These changes include the following:
1. Improvements to the ground floor fagcade treatment;
2. Blocking of windows on the rear and side elevations;
3. New render to the rear elevation and rear part of the west
elevation;
4. Proposed flue on the west elevation;

109



15

1.6

2.

2.1

2.2

5. New glazed fire escape doors on the west elevation; and
6. New glazed roof light.

Hours of opening have not been specified on the application form.
The application form states that there are currently five parking
spaces to the rear of the building, however the parking spaces will be
lost as a result of the proposed extension and beer garden.
NATIONAL GUIDANCE

The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) (The NPPF)

Planning Practice Guidance

For full details visit the government website
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-

and-local-government

3.

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

PLANNING POLICIES

Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995)

e S12: “Retail units” — retention will be sought in existing town

centres.

e S13: “Vitality in Town Centres”

e S14: “A3 Uses” *In 1995 when this policy was established this
would have encompassed all uses now known as A3, A4 and
Ab.

En5: “Conservation Area Character”

En6: “Design standards in Conservation Areas”
En25: “General Design Criteria”

En27: “Shopfront Design”

CS8: “Water”

CS9: “Flood water management”

Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations
(2002)

e None relevant

Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework Core
Strategy (2009)

e (CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire”

e (CS8: “Retail and Town Centre Uses”

Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 (2013)
o LP1: “Strategy and Principles for Development”

LP2: “Contributing to Infrastructure Delivery”

LP6: “Flood Risk and Water Management”

LP8: “Development in Spatial Planning Areas”

LP13: “Quality of Design”

LP15: “Ensuring a high standard of Amenity”

LP16: “Advertising”

LP17: “Sustainable Travel”

LP18: “Parking Provision”

LP20: “Town centre vitality and viability”

110


https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government

3.5

o LP31: “Heritage Assets and their settings”

Supplemental planning documents:
e St lves Conservation Area character Statement

Local policies are viewable at https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk

4.

4.1

4.2

51

5.2

5.3

5.4

PLANNING HISTORY

There is none site specific relevant to the determination of this
proposal.

23 Bridge Street ‘Tap Room’

Planning permission granted in September 2004 for change of use to
Class A3 (food and drink (under planning reference 0402868FUL) —
opening hours were not conditioned

CONSULTATIONS

St Ives Town Council — recommend REFUSE (copy attached).

Not all of the points raised in the Committee’s previous comments
have been addressed, i.e.

-adequate soundproofing

-confirmation that there would be no two-way use of the fire exit
-fitting of obscure glass in upstairs windows

-control of noise levels

-the plans still show loudspeakers in the garden to the rear

-time restrictions on use of the outside area and opening front
windows.

Officer response: The hours of activity for the trading of the pub, the
sale of alcohol and the prevision of regulated entertainment including
music, the hours of operation can be considered alongside other
restrictions such as doors and windows closed, electronic sound
limiters, and other management controls. The conditions of the
licence can be reviewed based on the licensing objectives which
include the prevention of public nuisance. Further controls exist within
the Environmental Protection Act 1990 regarding statutory nuisance.
Movement through the fire exit will be conditioned accordingly, and
the fitting of obscure glass will be a condition. The plans do not show
loudspeakers in the garden to the rear. A condition regarding use of
the sliding doors and beer garden are recommended accordingly, and
the Environmental Health Protection Officer (EHPO) has not raised
any concerns regarding the opening of front windows.

Cambs Police Architectural Liaison Officer — no objections.

Environment Agency (EA) — No objection - initially recommended
refusal due to inadequate Flood Risk Assessment (FRA), however
the Agent submitted an amended FRA submitted. The EA have
subsequently Withdrawn their objection.

HDC Environmental Health — No objection - initially requested that
additional information was required e.g., noise assessment. Following
this request, the Agent submitted a noise assessment and amended
the plans to address the concerns. The EHPO has concluded from
the information that ‘overall the noise from the application should not

111


https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/

6.1

be a problem to sensitive receptors in the area’. Notwithstanding the
above, the EHPO recommends that the sliding doors at the rear of
the Pub and the Beer Garden be closed at 9pm as single glazed
residential bedroom windows are located 10 metres from the beer
garden.

The proposed specification, submitted with the application, for the
extraction system will be suitable.

Officer response: A condition regarding use of the sliding doors and
beer garden are recommended accordingly.

REPRESENTATIONS
In addition to a site notice and press notice, 69 neighbours were

consulted. A total of 67 representations have been received — 56
object, 9 support, 2 neutral.

The objectors raise the following issues:

-a large pub chain isn’'t needed in St lves

- the proposal will result in the loss of a retail unit

- that there are a lack of shops in St Ives

- that there are already too many pubs / need more good quality
retailers

- that the proposal will impact of crime and security

- that the proposal will cause noise and disturbance

-request that no live music be permitted in the beer garden and, if
there is live music permitted in the pub, it should not be relayed to the
beer garden by loudspeaker

-that the beer garden at the rear will generate noise, litter and crowds
resulting in loss of amenity for residential properties

-that the proposal will impact on the wider neighbourhood from
customers leaving late at night

-that noise and fumes from the Golden Lion are already unpleasant
-that there is no parking provision for staff and delivery vehicles

-that the proposal would have a negative impact on hotel bedrooms of
Golden Lion overlooking the site

-that the proposal would distort the balance of retail and commercial
-that the scale is much greater than is required to serve local needs
-that there is a need to be more creative in the use of prime town
centre retail outlets and protect this resource

In support:

Neutral:

-any new business to employ local people and brings revenue to the
town would be of benefit

-that the existing premises are an eyesore and that it will improve the
existing building

-that the prices will promote competition of benefit to those on lower
incomes e.g. pensioners

-Wetherspoons is exactly what St lves needs — the food is excellent,
prices reasonable and premises clean.

-I hope the right decision will be made for St Ives and its citizens so
we don’t end up with a sleepy town.

-Wetherspoons is a brand and potentially could draw other brands to
town

112



6.2

-If St lves wants to become ‘up and coming’ proper brand shops need
to establish here

Officer response: all the points above have been addressed in report
below / conditions recommended where relevant / highlighted where
they are not a planning issue.

The following issues have also been raised by objectors but are not
material planning considerations:

- the proposal will damage local businesses / pubs

- that sales of cheap liquor will mean that younger people will come to
St Ives getting drunk and cause problems

- that the pub operator will lower the ‘tone’ of the market town

7. ASSESSMENT

7.1

The main issues to be determined in relation to this application are
the principle of the change of use; the relationship with neighbouring
residential properties; impact upon the character and appearance of
the Conservation Area, and flooding.

Principle of the proposed development:

7.2

7.3

7.4

The property has an established Al retail use with office use at first
floor. The present policy S13 (Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995)) for
Market Hill is to maintain shopping units as they are defined as
‘frontages protected for retail use’. The accompanying text with the
policy states that ‘the District Council has defined a prime shopping
area in which change of use from Class Al (shops) to A2 and A3 will
be resisted’. (Note: In 1995 when this policy was established, A3
would have encompassed all uses now known as A3, A4 and A5).
Further the accompanying text states ‘It is recognised that A2 uses
(financial and professional services) and A3 uses (sale of food and
drink) can contribute to the vitality of a shopping area’.

In terms of national planning policy, the NPPF advice is more up-to-
date than the Local Plan 1995 in terms of the vitality of Town Centres.
The NPPF states that Local planning authorities should plan
positively, to support town centres to generate local employment,
promote beneficial competition within and between town centres, and
create attractive, diverse places where people want to live, visit and
work. Further Draft policy LP20 (Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to
2036: Stage 3 (2013))supports proposals that would maintain and
enhance the vitality and viability of the town centre and existing range
including those which contribute to creating a balanced evening
economy offering entertainment as well as eating and drinking
establishments.

In addition, Planning Practice Guidance Appendix 2 Glossary defines
main town centre uses as retail development (including warehouse
clubs and factory outlet centres); leisure, entertainment facilities the
more intensive sport and recreation uses (including cinemas,
restaurants, drive-through restaurants, bars and pubs, night-clubs,
casinos, health and fitness centres, indoor bowling centres, and bingo
halls); offices; and arts, culture and tourism development (including
theatres, museums, galleries and concert halls, hotels and
conference facilities).

113



7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

Taking the above into account it is recognised that:

- the proposal would provide for a re-use of premises that are
currently vacant and have been since August 2014

- since the 1995 policy, peoples’ shopping behaviours have changed,
for example the increase in internet shopping, and this has had an
impact on town centres, and more recently has shifted the focus in
terms of town centre uses more towards
leisure/cafés/pubs/entertainment uses.

- Market Hill, Bridge Street, Crown Street and the Sheep Market are
at the centre of the town’s night time economy and feature a number
of pubs and restaurants

For these reasons, it is considered that the principle of the proposed
change of use to an A4 public house, and alterations to the external
appearance of the building would help to improve the overall
environment of the Town Centre in line with the aims of the NPPF,
and the Planning Practice Guidance Appendix 2.

Notwithstanding the above, Local Plan policy S14 provides detailed
guidance on the consideration of applications for restaurant and
public houses — the determination of which depends on three factors:
-the effect on adjacent properties and nearby residential properties

- whether there is an appropriate level of car parking and general
highway implications

-the proposed hours of opening and whether they can be controlled
by restrictive conditions

These matters are discussed in the following sections of the report

It is considered that on balance the proposal would comply with the
NPPF; and policies S14 of the Local Plan 1995; CS1 of the Adopted
Core Strategy 2009; LP1 and LP20 of the Draft Local Plan to 2036.
Whilst the adopted policies are broadly consistent with the NPPF
paragraph 23 (which supports the vitality of town centres), policies
LP1 and LP20 should be afforded the greater weight as they are
more up-to-date than the policies within the Local Plan 1995.

Impact on neighbouring properties:

7.10

7.11

7.12

Local Plan policy S14 provides detailed guidance on the
consideration of applications for restaurant and public houses — the
determination of which depends on three factors. Two of those factors
are the effect on adjacent properties and nearby residential properties
and whether the proposed hours of operation can be controlled by
restrictive conditions.

Although the property is within the core of the Town Centre where
retail and commercial premises prevail, to the south of the site along
Chapel Lane and Birt Lane there are residential properties.
Specifically it is noted that that the neatest residential bedroom
windows are located 10 metres from the proposed beer garden.

It is not unreasonable to expect public houses/restaurants in core
town centre locations such as this, indeed, these types of uses

114



7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

generally form part of Town Centre living conditions. It is noted that
many public houses e.g., Nelsons Head, Tap Room, Robin Hood
(when it re-opens), Golden Lion, Floods Tavern, The White Hart, The
Royal Oak and Oliver Cromwell in the town centre all have an outside
seating/drinking areas, although it is accepted that all the above sites
have different characteristics and settings compared to the
application site. It would nevertheless be unreasonable to refuse the
application on the basis that it has a beer garden, especially if the use
of an area as a beer garden can be controlled by condition (for
example hours of opening), and unless there was significant and
demonstrable harm to residential amenity. It is accepted that noise
will be generated from the use, however taking into account:

- that the height of the fence surrounding the beer garden has been
raised to 2.75m; and

- that a condition is recommended restricting no use of the rear
garden/sliding doors past 2100hrs

It is considered that no significant harm will be caused to
neighbouring residential amenity

Furthermore, the gate from the beer garden to Chapel Lane is to be
used as a fire escape only and will be conditioned as such.
Accordingly it is accepted that there would be no disturbance caused
by customers/staff using the rear access.

In terms of windows, of the 8 windows at first floor on the west side
and rear elevations, only one will remain on the rear and one on the
west side at first floor, and it is considered that these alterations
would be sufficient to mitigate against noise emanating from the
premises. In addition, no live music is proposed for this venue and a
condition is recommended restricting this.

No hours of opening have been proposed. However, it is considered
that an ‘hours of operation’ condition would not be appropriate as the
other public houses in the vicinity do not have restrictive conditions
and in addition have been granted the following licences:

Golden Lion hotel: until 0200hrs 7 days per week

The Robin Hood: Mon-Wed and Sundays until 00.30hrs, Thurs until
01.30hrs, Fri and Sat until 0200hrs.

Oliver Cromwell: Mon-Wed and Sundays until 2330hrs, Thurs until
midnight, Fri and Sat until 0030hrs.

The Tap Room: Mon-Wed and Sundays until 2330hrs, Thurs to Sat
until 0130hrs.

Food smells are a material consideration to this application although
the issues of smells / air pollution are subject to legislation that falls
within the remit of Environmental Health to enforce. Notwithstanding,
Environmental Health have been consulted and are satisfied that the
filtration / extraction system proposed is suitable.

Subject to appropriate conditions, it is considered that the proposal
complies with the NPPF; policy S14 of the Local Plan 1995; CS1 of
the Adopted Local Plan 2009; LP1 and LP15 of the Draft Local Plan
to 2036: Stage 3 2013. Whilst the policies are broadly consistent with
the NPPF paragraphs 109 and 123 that seek to minimise against
unacceptable levels of noise from new development including through
the use of conditions, policies S14 and CS1 would be afforded

115



greater weight as they are adopted policies, whilst LP1 and LP15 can
only be given limited weight as they are emerging policies.

Crime Prevention:

7.19

The site is location in a town centre location where a night time
economy exists. Neighbour concerns regarding antisocial behaviour
are acknowledged, although powers exist for the police to take
appropriate action and this could not be a reason of refusal of the
application, particularly as the Cambridgeshire Police Architectural
Liaison Officer did not raise any concerns.

Impact on the character and appearance of the Conservation Area:

7.20

7.21

The applicant is proposing a number of changes to the fenestration.
These include 1. Improvements to the ground floor fagade treatment;
2. Blocking of windows on the rear and side elevations. It is
considered that these changes will improve the external appearance
of the building within the Conservation Area. Further a rear extension
to infill under part of the existing overhang at ground floor is also
proposed, and this is also considered to improve the external
appearance of the building.

The proposal is considered therefore to comply with the NPPF;
policies En5, En6 and En25 of the Local Plan 1995; CS1 of the
Adopted Core Strategy 2009; LP1 and LP31 of the Draft Local Plan to
2036: Stage 3 2013. The draft policies can only be afforded limited
weight in their consistency with the NPPF as they are emerging
policies.

Flooding:

7.22

7.23

7.24

7.25

The site is within the EA Flood Zone 3, SFRA 1 in 100yr extent and 1
in 1000yr extent.

As part of an initial consultation, the Environment Agency in a letter
dated 22 July 2015 were concerned that the FRA submitted did not
comply with the requirements set out in the Planning Practice
Guidance to the National Planning Policy Framework. The submitted
FRA did not, therefore, provide a suitable basis for an assessment to
be made of the flood risks arising from the proposed development.

The applicants have since submitted a revised FRA and the
Environment Agency have been re-consulted. The EA are satisfied
that the revised FRA dated September 2015 addresses most of their
concerns.

In more detail the revised FRA has assessed the residual risk in the
event of a breach or overtopping of the River Great Ouse flood
defences by comparing predicted flood levels with the site levels. The
SFRA maps indicate that this site is located within a Rapid Inundation
Zone and is therefore considered to be at risk of flooding to significant
depths in the event of a breach of the defences. Although no flood
resilient measures are proposed, the FRA indicates that safe access
and egress and safe refuge should be available in the event of a
breach or overtopping of the defences. The FRA has also considered

116



7.26

the requirement for a flood warning and evacuation plan. A condition
is recommended that a Flood Plan (incl. method of flood warning and
evacuation) is submitted to the LPA.

It is considered that the FRA and development has adequately
considered flood risk. The proposal is therefore compliant with the
NPPF, policies CS8 and CS9 of the Local Plan 1995; CS1 of the
Adopted Core Strategy 2009; LP1 and LP6 of the Draft Local Plan to
2036: Stage 3 2013. Whilst all the policies are broadly consistent with
the NPPF paragraph 103 that flood risk is not increased elsewhere
and 104 where changes of use should meet the requirements for site-
specific flood risk assessments, the draft policies can only be afforded
limited weight in their consistency with the NPPF as they are
emerging policies.

Parking/Highways:

7.27

7.28

7.29

The premises are well related to existing car parks in the town centre
and are accessible by other modes of transport e.g., walking, cycling,
public transport, and would accord with the sustainable objectives of
the NPPF.

In terms of deliveries, there would have been vehicles coming and
going from the site when used as retail, therefore a refusal of this
proposal based on the impact of delivery vehicles would not be
considered sustainable. It is proposed that deliveries would continue
to take place at the front of the building, on Market Hill.

Any issues regarding the highway would need to be directed to the
relevant authority, Cambridgeshire County Council, who is the local
highway authority responsible for enforcing highway safety.

Other issues:

7.30

7.31

7.32

7.33

Blocking of neighbours access — this would be a civil matter between
the relevant parties and is something that has the potential to occur
whatever the use of the building might be.

Enough pubs in the town — this comment is noted but is not a material
consideration in determining this application.

Damage local businesses / pubs — whilst the concerns are noted,
current policy requires LPAs to consider the vitality and viability of
town centres and positively encourages competition within and
between town centres.

The retail unit has been empty for approx.13 months. The vitality and
viability of a town is market led, and if an independent or chain retailer
chose to come to St Ives they will do so. The use of buildings
(whatever the size) is also market led, and changes of use are
considered against relevant material considerations, not in terms of
the type of retail provision or who the retailer is.

Conclusion:

7.34

The proposed development is considered to be compliant with
relevant national and local planning policy since:

117



* |t will bring a vacant building in a sustainable town centre location
back into use.

* The scale and location of the development is not considered to have
an overly detrimental impact upon the Conservation Area.

* |t would not have a significant detrimental impact on the amenity of
neighbours.

* |t is acceptable in terms of highway safety.

* |t would not be at risk of flooding or exacerbate the risk of flooding
elsewhere.

* There are no other material planning considerations which lead to
the conclusion that the proposal is unacceptable.

7.35 Having regard to applicable national and local planning policies, and
having taken all relevant material considerations into account, it is
therefore recommended that planning permission should be granted.

8. RECOMMENDATION - APPROVAL subject to
conditions to include the following

Time limit

Development in accordance with the submitted drawings

Materials

Provision of a Flood Plan (incl. method of flood warning and

evacuation)

Sliding doors to the beer garden should be closed at 2100hrs

e Collection and deliveries restricted between 0800 and 2000hrs
Proposal for a CCTV system covering both front and rear
elevations (main street entry and beer garden) and also a
system covering the public bar area, stairs and upstairs
corridor.

o Rear gate from beer garden onto Chapel Lane to be used in
the event of a fire only, and details to be submitted of fire
escape door.

e Details of the hard and soft landscaping for the beer garden
incl. fence and screen planting

¢ No live music

o Take away PD rights - no additional openings

e Obscure glazing

A full report is available on the Council’s website www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

CONTACT OFFICER:

Enquiries about this report to Ms Dallas Owen Development Management
Officer 01480 388468

118


http://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/

ST IVES TOWN COUNCIL PLANNING COMMITTEE : 24 June 2015
APPLICATIONS FOR PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT

App No & | Name and Address of Proposal and Type of Recommendation to District Council
Date Reg Applicant/Agent Location Application
1500338 Mr Paul Hunt First floor extension to side, replace | Full Recommend Approval
12.06.2015 | Mr D Smith 2 existing conservatories and | (Additional
Waterland Associates erection of a garage/workshop in the | information) The Committee welcomes the receipt of
Unit 4 The Incubator garden additional information on this application.
Alconbury Enterprise Campus 4 Westwood Close
Alconbury Weald St lves
Huntingdon
PE28 4WX
1500458 Mr P Rourke Convert existing garage to a new | Full Recommend Refusal
02.06.2015 | 34 St Audrey Lane entrance hall with downstairs | AMENDED
': St lves cloakroom, brick up existing front | PLANS Although slightly improved, the Committee’s
b PE27 3NG door and installation of window, original views still stand:
removal of an existing conservatory
and erection of an orangery and -Height of boundary wall with neighbouring
replace existing flat roof over dining property excessive thereby reducing light
room and conservatory with pitched
roof -Unneighbourly extension
34 St Audrey Lane
St Ives
1500528 Mr J Best Variation of Condition Numbers: 2,4 | Section 73 Recommend Approval
16.06.2015 | Blue Sky Planning & 14 of planning permission 1301918
Bourne House to allow for an additional hour of -The Committee has concerns that the formal
475 Godstone Road trading and alterations to proposed crossing points have been removed. The
Caterham cyclepath access to the store and to preference would be for an alternative route
CR3 0BL vary Condition 4 to allow trading around the site.
between 0700-2300 Mon-Sat and
1000-1700 on Sundays. -If there is to be no formal route through the site
Land west of Five Acres Farm the path should be routed around it.
Harrison Way, St Ives
App No & | Name and Address of Proposal and Type of Recommendation to District Council




Date Reg Applicant/Agent Location Application
1500655 Mr A Compton Construction of new boundary wall Full Recommend Approval
10.06.2015 | 1 Westwood Road 1 Westwood Road
St lves St lves -the Committee welcomes the revised design
PE27 6DH and removal of the railings.
1500656 Mr A Compton Construction of new boundary wall Listed Recommend Approval
10.06.2015 | 1 Westwood Road 1 Westwood Road Building
St lves St lves Consent -the Committee welcomes the revised design
PE27 6DH and removal of the railings.
-appropriate design for listed building
1500682 Mr J Randall Change of use to A4 Public House, | Full Recommend Refusal
03.06.2015 | J D Wetherspoon plc together with internal and external -see attached letter setting out the Committee’s
R Central Park alterations and extension views
II: 5 Beech Crescent 8 Market Hill
(D) Watford St lves
WD1 1QH
1500759 Ms T McCarter Installation of condensing unit on | Full Recommend Approval
05.06.2015 | Mr T Partridge side wall of supermarket
RPS Planning & Development Co-operative Food -the Committee would recommend that an
Highfield House Constable Road assessment of noise levels at nearby
5 Ridgeway St lves residences ought to be conducted prior to final
Quinton Business Park consent being given
Birmingham
B32 1AF
1500895 Mr L Marshall Proposed second storey extension Full Recommend Approval
12.06.2015 | Mr R Biddle 14 Lammas Way
12C East Chadley Lane St lves -appropriate scale of development
Godmanchester -in keeping with other developments in the area
PE29 2BJ
[ 1500912 | Clayhill Properties | Change of use of ground floor from | Full | Recommend Approval




TWINNED WITH STADTALLENDORF

TOWN CLERK: Alison Melnyczuk BA (Hons) FILCM
Town Hall, Market Hill, The Old Riverport, St Ives, Cambridgeshire PE27 5AL B Sa S oUn

) SC

Telephone: 01480 388929 PR FounpaTioN

email: clerk@stivestowncouncil.gov.uk

25 June 2015

Mr A Moffit

Head of Development
Huntingdonshire District Council
By email

Dear Mr Moffit

Planning application 15/00682 Wetherspoon plc.

St lves Town Council considered the above application at its Planning Committee meeting on
Wednesday 24 June 2015 and recommend rejection for the following extensive reasons.

Change of use to A4 Public House

e Against HDC policy S12 & S13 and NPPF - Application is against HDC planning policy S12
which aims to retain retail units within town centres. The loss of one of the larger retail units
in the town is also counter policy S13 and the NPPF to maintain the vitality of the town
centre as it will reduce the range of the Al retail offered and make the town less attractive
to shoppers. No evidence has been presented to show how the development would enhance
the viability and vitality of St Ives. St lves already has a range of food and drink outlets and
another facility is unlikely to add anything to the total town retail offer.

e Impact assessment study - HDC should commission a study, paid for by the developer, to
investigate the impact on the town centre. This should include, the ability to attract more
people to the town, the amount of money spent in town and the possible impact on other
food and drink premises.

e 2007 Planning Policy Statement E6 - The application is also counter to Policy E6 of the 2007
PPS which restricts non Al uses to 30% of the primary shopping frontage. The policy also
deals with the over concentration of non Al units. In this case the loss of an Al unit will
result in group of non Al building which will cover nearly 50% of one side of Market Hill
comprising:

o Robin Hood PH, Office, (this application), Town Hall, Golden Lion PH, Free Church.

e Alternative suitable locations - The applicant has not provided any evidence of attempts to
find new A1 uses for the building nor efforts to find suitable alternative buildings within the
town. The HDC Retail Study 2013, identified a number of retail groups that wanted to move
to St Ives. A supplement in the Times newspaper (21/06/15) headlined that it was “full
steam ahead for UK retail”. Recent applications for the Music Box (application 14/01880)
and the former Ice Bar on The Broadway (application 15/00054) suggest that alternative
large licenced premises are available within St Ives.

e Unused property - It is understood that the existing tenant was removed when the applicant
brought the building. Therefore to claim that the building has been unused for some time is
misleading.

121



Consultation - The applicant has not consulted with the Town Council as recommended by
the NPPF, also as a potential neighbour, during the preparation of this application. Local
residents have not been consulted and requests for meetings have been declined.

St Ives TC therefore recommend that the change of use element of the application be refused as it
is counter to a number of HDC and National policies.

Changes to the building

If the change of use is accepted, there are a number of concerns regarding the proposals. Some of
these will overlap with a possible future licence application:-

Generally the Town Council consider the application to be of a poor quality with significant
gaps in the information provided. We note that the Environmental Health Officer has found
it impossible to make a recommendation due to the lack of detail. Additional information
should be requested before the application is decided.

The proposed full width opening doors with railings in front are totally out of keeping with
other buildings in Market Square. Although the existing building may be of little architectural
merit, an opportunity has been lost to make significant improvements to the fagade to bring
it up to the standard of adjacent listed properties in the conservation area.

No details have been provided of the noise impact of the open windows nor any constraints
when the windows will open. The Town Council recommend that there should be a
constraint on when the windows are open, i.e. they must close after 21.00 in the evening

No noise information has been given for the beer garden at the rear. The nearest homes on
Birt Lane, Chapel Lane and the communal gardens of The Cloisters are just 10m away. A time
constraint should be placed on the use of the beer garden and amplified music should not be
permitted at any time.

There are no details of the signage or any external lighting.
There are no details of the rear beer garden fencing.

The proposed flue from the fire is within Town Council land and agreement has not been
reached, in fact no communication has yet been made requesting permission.

A roof plan showing all proposed plant should be provided. Noise levels from any external
plant should be identified.

No statement on staff / user transport assessment deliveries and parking. The loss of 5
parking spaces is unacceptable.

Other comments

The many letters of objection, and none in support of the application received by the Town
Council is noted.

The delay between HDC receiving the application (April 2015) and information being made
publicly available is of concern.

Should this application not be rejected at Officer level, the Town Council requested that it is sent to
the Development Control Panel for determination. Please note that should this happen the Town
Council wishes to attend and speak.

Yours sincerely

Alison Melnyczuk
Town Clerk 122



ST IVES TOWN COUNCIL PLANNING COMMITTEE : 9 September 2015
APPLICATIONS FOR PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT

AXIS Architecture
Talbot Chambers

2-6 North Church Street
Sheffield

S1 2DH

HSBC
Market Hill
St Ives

App No & | Name and Address of Proposal and Type of Recommendation to District Council
Date Reg Applicant/Agent Location Application
1500682 Mr J Randall Change of use to A4 public house | Full Recommend Refusal
18.08.2015 | J D Wetherspoon plc together with internal and external
Central Park alterations and extension Not all of the points raised in the Committee’s
Beech Crescent 8 Market Hill previous comments have been addressed, ie
Watford St Ives -adequate soundproofing
WD1 1QH -confirmation that there would be no two-way
use of the fire exit
-fitting of obscure glass in upstairs windows
There is also no indication of how noise levels
AR will be controlled. Despite assurance there will
No be no amplified music, the plans still show
(¢¥) loudspeakers in the garden to the rear
The Committee would support the views of the
Environmental Health Officer on placing time
restrictions on use of the outside area and
opening front windows.
1501137 HSBC Corporate Real Estate Replacement of the existing external | Full Recommend approval
07.08.2015 | Mr R Possnett ATM

The Committee has no objections to the
exchanging of the existing equipment for an
updated version as there is no major change to
the exterior of the premises as a result.




Development Management Panel Huntingdonshire

BISETRIECT COUNZTILL
i” Scale =1:2,500 Application Ref: 15/00682/FUL O rnance Burvey o0 100003535

Date Created: 30/09/2015 Location: St Ives

Houghton il' i
Hill Fm Slac%ium
¥ =i
T
ST EANVESES
&40 W e
b Mo ETwr C
b, (g

y Hw\ghluﬂ'
cg/Grange
B

Legend

The Site
% I Listed Building

@ Conservation Area




TITLE NUMBER

H.M. LAND REGISTRY CB206715

Scale
ORDNANCE SURVEY TL 3171 O
PLAN REFERENCE ‘ 1/1250
COUNTY CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT HUNTINGDONSHIRE © Crown Copyrigh

7N

This is a copy of the title plan on 29 APR 2015 at 12:56:42. This copy does not take account of any application made after that time even if still pending in the Land
Registry when this copy was issued.

This copy is not an 'Official Copy' of the title plan. An official copy of the title plan is admissible in evidence in a court to the same extent as the original. A person is
entitled to be indemnified by the registrar if he or she suffers loss by reason of a mistake in an official copy. If you want to obtain an official copy, the Land Registry
web site explains how to do this.

The Land Registry endeavours to maintain high quality and scale accuracy of title plan images.The quality and accuracy of any print will depend on your printer, your
computer and its print settings.This title plan shows the general position, not the exact line, of the boundaries. It may be subject to distortions in scale. Measurements
scaled from this plan may not match measurements between the same points on the ground.

This title is dealt with by Land Registry, Peterborough Office.

© Crown Copyright. Produced by Land Registry. Further reproduction in whole or in part is prohibited without the prior written permission of Ordnance Survey.
Licence Number 100026316.



9cT

roof parapet copping

Roof light

below

roof line

exi

sting-brick

ex(sting

nel

=t |1
¢
:

Glazed over +

Glazed over ;Hinel

exist

bricl iting folding|glazed do
Deliverie: dlazed

7]

door

ors safety Entrancg|door

e

[==900 —=t

1)

glazed

ifljng folding|glazed dogrs safety

brick

existing opening

Nos. 10
FRONT ELEVATION

new AHU plant

Nos. 7

existing roof parapet

&COWI
New Glazed Roof light
[T 1 [T 1
______ O I S
______ e e I S P
| | |
: Proppsed : Infill-existing véindow
| SE flue |: :
I I
I I
______ e I
L~
—/

brickwork

existing roof parapet

grilles

existing roof parapet

Roof light

below roof line

existing brickwork

ducts removed

new render
to existing wall

new
dogt

Iretain.centre

1nfill existing

|[EiXisting column to-remain exposed

window & : outer windaws:
[ filmiinternalty. +- < with".réndered
AR Y . i« panels
L ER ,
________ —fashing - e e e T
! Existing beam to remain exposed
I
| glass fanlight new:rendered’
| blockwork wall
I ? :
I
l & sliding| stacking
l N alumiffiim framed
| glazef| doors
I
GF

Existing column to remain exposed

steel beam
% g new render
to existing wall
' Hew render- — : .
1o 16 existing wall | retain: window|
= I & film'internall
IS —
3
O
Infill-existing
doors ' i ew glaze
¢lectrical Ed
denjice gors

I Inﬁl’ existing
| windows with

recq‘essed panelg
| SN

EXistng beam 1o
remain exposed

glass fanlight

window to matth
sliding doors

aluminium fraed

Existing column to remain exposed

REAR ELEVATION

WEST SIDE ELEVATION

existing roof parapet

NOTE:

The Contractor is to check and verify all building
and site dimensions, levels and sewer invert
levels at connection points before work starts.

This drawing must be read with and checked
against any structural or other specialist

drawings provided.

The Contractor is to comply in all respects
with the current Building Regulations whether
or not specifically stated on these drawings.

This drawing is not intended to show details
of foundation or ground conditions. Each area
of ground relied upon to support the structure
depicted must be investigated by the Contractor
and suitable methods of foundation be provided.

THIS SCHEME IS NOT BASED ON AN ACT SURVEY

Drawing Status

Construction Status

brickwork
to-match

H—————} — — —

brickwork

EAST SIDE ELEVATION

Rev. By Date
hit
architecture and interior design
Architect CT
Victoria House
Ack Lane East
Bramhall
Cheshire
SK7 2BE
T. 0161-439 9205
E: general@architect-ct.co.uk
W: www.architect-ct.co.uk
Site
MARKET HILL
ST IVES
Title
PROPOSED
ELEVATIONS
Project Manager/ | Drawn By Scale Date
Checked
1:100@A1 Mar 2015
Arch./Des. Drawing Rev.
wmer F1673 -05




NOTE:

COUR

WHITE HART
WHITE HAR

-‘40»'1»&5((_';4 &

The Contractor is to check and verify all building
and site dimensions, levels and sewer invert
levels at connection points before work starts.

INBURGH WOOLLEN My
G

CADGE

This drawing must be read with and checked
against any structural or other specialist
drawings provided.

of ROYOSPAARMACY

ROBERT

< | sarciavs
5 | sanx

with the current Building Regulations whether

SHEE
& EMARKEY MARKET HILL The Contractor is to comply in all respects
or not specifically stated on these drawings.

MARKET HILL

MARKET HILL

This drawing is not intended to show details
HEH of foundation or ground conditions. Each area
3 il of ground relied upon to support the structure
depicted must be investigated by the Contractor
and suitable methods of foundation be provided.

Line of Pavement

VACAN
VACAN
PEACOOKS | 2
NG [ &

S B

MAIN ENTRANCE

580 94 - t 2151 t 3409 M 168
SheoPeNing Hoors | QL

railings

GOLDEN LION HOTEL ’ od
MARKET LANE

B Qi
L r——1692—-|——95|—-1——103o——|-—951——4——1o3o 949 1032 951 1030 950
\?S THIS SCHEME IS NOT BASED ON AN ACT SURVEY

CHAPEL LANE
\

DDDD Feasibility Calculations:
Staff Room Trading area 279sqgm 3003 sqgft = 372 customers
SOOsqft external drinking 87sgqm =932 sqft

Store ([ JU]UJU] FIRE ESCAPE
/ﬂ. Front FE - 1900 clear = 380
y . Rear stair FE - 1050 clear =220
@@ ) Office Side FE - 1300 clear = 260
. 100sqft Assuming largest (front)is blocked:
LO C G J[ Escape Capacity = 480

Deliveries

"\1900-\_f

fixed seating

6035

Buneas paxiy

— 1928 Y ] chan I—Il&lre'rs Assuming rear & side are blocked (both within 45deg)
o lockers 3 I: g Escape Capacity = 380
Note- there is secondary escape from first floor

K JDW Sanitary Calculations:

\[ Store 188 female =9 wc/6wb

| 188 male =4 wc/7u/4wb (no extra U req)
motor
w room . K
ing

L

00

External Dining/ Drinking = 932sqft

& w O LightxVell KEY
U Ellggs @ Kitchen / Food deliveries

Q 1500 —] S
© Readrbom 2500 Beer deliveries
o) — Hot @

o : Xf Cellar DAYLIGHT

/g/ ) 128qm Ground Floor Customer Area = 3013sqft
‘ ' ) 129sqft

Light Well over
i D N4
Party Wall aliE | ‘

FE

2 4// allzs Kitchkes « _a | J
& ‘ “h <
g imim 77sqm -
2 Customer Area 1?M bar B | oog * "
279sgm 3003sqft 1 SG:
heat — [
B foos lamps u/ 4 o Cold Cellar
oist AOis .
~ ——1Food :ﬁ (O] | t jf'ggg”;t
2| servery; U:ﬁ | q
N —:4']__, . ] Drawing Status
irties Feod { i
bic ‘i
- o _;N’ 1 '[ ' € Construction Status
2202 N J
Dis wc g : g JIT:E\
l - — K Beer garden fence increased to 2.75m high ATG | 17.08.15
- . e "’ ¢ FE J__|Rooflight reduced for kitchen SM_| 29.06.15
b ks ‘% XZ L] < @ I Revised customer toilets and staff areas SWG | 19.03.15
5 2 i g j H  |Updated from notes SWG | 05.03.15
8 E E CD G Updated following dag meeting sm 26.02.15
S | = = £ [ F__|Updated ATG | 04.02.15
1056 { % Glass B C[] E Backfill fridges omitted & beer garden increased ATG | 10.09.14
= 7 H Wash OFIuesO D D trading increased to 3500sqft sm | 09.09.14
j / Dante_space @ C food servery updated sm 08.09.14
: - =N oew o B urinals updated PH 04.02.14
covered area / | I Plant i H‘Qﬁﬁs ) 8! 0 A |Loyouts amended to latest brief PH | 040214
Bins ¥ 0 Et%trtlee 190sq ft B @ Rev. By Date
Ladies @
—
I - n j =
@ lineof plaﬁ?icl)gw above % H/L window fixed booths grille CD a rC h i te
canopy l - @ architecture and interior design
FE
S Architect CT
fixed booths Victoria House
slp J § ] Ack Lane East
£ 3 Bramhall
: — .
| Gents Cheshire
g E SK7 2BE
“g % infill under covered area fixed booths o C|nr
B : E T: 0161-439 9205
i 2 n 2 O E: general@architect-ct.co.uk
| Ccladdlng to W: www.architect-ct.co.uk
Marshalls ?hew walls Stacking sliding doors. ol6l existing column
ygrl_(rs];one = = vses %’
1 pavi -
i Beer Garden 932sqft g | Site
g 2
57 MARKET HILL
FE o ST IVES
Mﬂ en planting internally abo\/?/k‘)ernc oy & & |
scre %, cal \: oL —
e X 2 high /’
e B i £ & rail fence 2.75m
<] new poS. | Tite
-_— €5€C . voLLL - |
Line of Pavement PROPOSED

First FLOOR PLANS
PLANNING

Err?jecli Zlqnoger/ Drawn By Scale Date
PH 1:100@A1 JULY 2012
G rO u n d Arch./Des. Drawing Rev.
wmer 1673 -02 K




8¢1

roof parapet copping

existing roof parapet

brickwork

EAST SIDE ELEVATION

tank

brickwork

brickwork

roof parapet copping

brickwork

brickwork

sign

brigk

glass shop frontfgngd doors

]

NOTE:

FRONT ELEVATION

tank tank

steel beam

column

brickwork

roof parapet copping

The Contractor is to check and verify all building
and site dimensions, levels and sewer invert
levels at connection points before work starts.

This drawing must be read with and checked
against any structural or other specialist
drawings provided.

The Contractor is to comply in all respects
with the current Building Regulations whether
or not specifically stated on these drawings.

This drawing is not intended to show details
of foundation or ground conditions. Each area
of ground relied upon to support the structure
depicted must be investigated by the Contractor
and suitable methods of foundation be provided.

THIS SCHEME IS NOT BASED ON AN ACT SURVEY

Drawing Status

steel beam

dervices

FE

column

column

WEST SIDE ELEVATION

brickwork
roof parapet copping
grilles
ducts
brickwork

ducts

steel beam

brickwork
brickwork

Construction Status

column

mn

Rev. By Date

REAR ELEVATION

architels

architecture and interior design

Architect CT
Victoria House
Ack Lane East
Bramhall
Cheshire

SK7 2BE

T: 0161-439 9205
E: general@architect-ct.co.uk
W: www.architect-ct.co.uk

Site

MARKET HILL
STIVES

Title

EXISTING
ELEVATIONS

Project Manager/ | Drawn By Scale Date
Checked

1:100@A1 Mar 2015
Arch./Des. Drawing Rev.

< F1673 -04




l NOTE:
E.: The Contractor is to check and verify all building
= and site dimensions, levels and sewer invert
= levels at connection points before work starts.
- :f‘:: This drawing must be read with and checked
REHOUSE CLEARANCE SHOPS E"\iv against any structural or other specialist
e drawings provided.
E = The Contractor is to comply in all respects
with the current Building Regulations whether
or not specifically stated on these drawings.
MARKET HILL This drawing is not intended to show details
of foundation or ground conditions. Each area
) of ground relied upon to support the structure
Line of Pavement depicted must be investigated by the Contractor
and suitable methods of foundation be provided.
THIS SCHEME IS NOT BASED ON AN ACT SURVEY
Access to T
| T T T r Floors. !
: - U ppf I X existing paranat
| I
| I | | [
I l £ N\ I I I I
| I — l | I 3 1
| I ] l | l i | = mhuan | b= - 5
| | | | I 3 = g iz H
Party Wall 1| | | | | S A g 2 N o
Ho I | J%/L_ | s g : | :
I I l S 3. . ; '
1N | | N = | ik IR
| | | I isti : S[£8 |a5] ¢ i, _ ;
| ‘ | | | assumed existing Roof - flat I €y \gI . ;53; 3 [y, b :
| L l | . \dliﬁg i I B 3% 8 b
| ] | | ] | 5 Tl i 2
. . . . Y “'a*-z:f . i 2| ¢ §
L__\_ roof light roof light — roof light roof light & T PR ;|
~{ I | §: B . SHEEPMARKeT P
| — I | SR OV " /]
| g | “H AHHINTEE
o) : T Ioobe{i:lostgdol?f?p v : ?é_éj g 5 g ;g; : § g ” » (
D || ﬁ% l { § ;’; : .
roof light . | i dl L ] (
| > roof light | roTNgRt  oof light | g ¢
| | I= —
{ | :; CHAPEL LANE
i O | ] : é
| I | 13 A
| | : 2
I roof light _ | roof light
|I roof light o hti/f\ | g roof light :
roof i : | roof light
- Party wal L g roof light | 9 roof light |
. B I
Retail Area 3224sqft approx W | :
3 | ~
| | | g |
I g
| I | o | —
I 1 3 .
s - Al . H : Location Plan
Drawing Status
Construction Status
Hoist Hoist
j I_I E — D C further update SWG 05.03.15
- B Updated ATG 04.02.15
Hoist Hoist A Layouts details added PH 04.02.14
g Rev. By Date
Nl .
covered area ) 5 flat roof 2
- [}
Plant % s
£ [}
. 1] ki)
: architeldi
1\ __ [ C ‘ ) — — ] architecture and interior design
line of plant room akove | || | | g Architect CT
I ventillation grilles . Staﬂ: I 8 .I'C ! .ec
| \\ l S assumed existing Roof - flat Victoria House
L I I ) | 2 Ack Lane East
I | I 7 Bramhall
; : Staff W( I ¢ Cheshire
H N . | 5 I SK7 2BE
_ Office | m |
Gates | Il | T: 0161-439 9205
b o L } L E: general@architect-ct.co.uk
I | I W: www.architect-ct.co.uk
| covered area | T |
bCOIumn coﬂqﬁ } I — I existing parapet Site
—_———— - 3 = — I
8 | | | | MARKET HILL
2 E |
: | : | | | | ST IVES
7 parking 8 | | | |
D? | I‘ | |
I
I J } J| Title
I /’;/_,,-—-””/ l /////_;,_,;
| T | T EXISTING
_,——-”'/_’/-// ‘ ”-////_’/,,.
L e FLOOR PLANS
Project Manager/ | Drawn By Scale Date
Checked
HAPEL LANE
= PH 1100@A1 | JULY 2012
Arch./Des. Drawing Rev.
Numb
GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN o F1673 01 C




NOTICE OF PUBLIC EXHIBITION

PLANNING APPLICATION BY

J D WETHERSPOON PLC

JD Wetherspoon invite you to come and view exciting development proposals for a
Wetherspoon Public House. Details of the public exhibition are provided below;

Event ‘Drop In’ Public Exhibition

When Monday 16™ November 2015

Where St. Ives Town Hall, Council Chamber, Market
Hill, St. Ives, PE27 5AL

Time 13:00 to 20:00

Proposal Change of use from vacant Shop to Public

House — 8 Market Hill, St. Ives

Further Information

This consultation will provide an opportunity for
any interested parties to discuss the proposed
development with members of the project
team. Details of the proposals are also available
after the exhibition at:
www.signetplanning.com/consultation

Contact

For further information about the exhibition,
please contact Jamie Pyper at;

Signet Planning

Rowe House

10 East Parade

Harrogate

HG1 5LT

pyperj@signetplanning.com

130




COMMENTS FORM

JD WETHERSPOON
MARKET HILL, ST. IVES, CAMBRIDGESHIRE

This is your opportunity to comment on the proposals and we welcome your views below. The

display boards are available online at www.signetplanning.com/consultation zone from Tuesday 10th
November 2015 with the closing date for responses on Monday 30" November 2015.

Q1

Do you support the general principle of the proposed development?
PRINCIPLE

Q2

How important do you consider it to find a viable new use for the vacant retail unit?
RE-USE

Q3

Do you think the proposals will improve the appearance of the site?
APPEARANCE

Q4

Do you have any general comments which you would like to be considered?
OTHER

NAME ADDRESS / EMAIL

YOUR FEEDBACK Please note the closing date for comments is Monday 30" November 2015. To provide us with
your views you can do either of the following:

Visit the Signet Planning website consultation page (www.signetplanning.com/consultationzone)
Send an email to info@signetplanning.com

Awopo

Send your comments to Jamie Pyper at Signet Planning, Rowe House, 10 East Parade, Harrogate, HG15LT.
Fill in the space above and leave your comments with us at the exhibition.

131


http://www.signetplanning.com/consultation
http://www.signetplanning.com/
mailto:jimramsay@signetplanning.com

Comments Form Responses St lves JDW

Question Response Tally
Question 1: Principle Yes 14
Do you support the general | No 11
principle of the proposed | Possibly 2
development?
Question 2: Re-Use Very 17
How important do you | Would Prefer Different Use
consider it to find a viable | than as Wetherspoons
new use for the vacant retail | No Comment 1
unit?
Question 3: Appearance Yes 13
Do you think the proposals | No 3
will improve the appearance | To an Extent 1
of the site? Yes - if it was a retail unit 3
The frontage needs to be | 6
improved (i.e. railings)
No Comment 1
Question 4: Other Retail Use would be better 2
Do you have any general | Personnel the pub would | 7
comments which you would | attract. Noise from beer
like to be considered? garden/nuisance/deliveries
(especially on market
days?)
Extra traffic/parking? 2
Where do smokers go after | 1
9pm?
The exterior needs to be |5
better/more attractive — no
railings
More traditional — in keeping | 2
with ‘market town’ — Name it
‘The Riverport’
Designated Family | 2
Area/Adults Area
Enough  pubs/restaurants | 2
already in St lves
Consultation done too late 2
A big asset to St lves 3
No Comment 3

132




From: Lee Bradley< Lee@architect-ct.co.uk>

Sent: 25 January 2016 21:50

To: Owen, Dallas (Planning Serv.)

Subject: RE: Your Ref 15/00682/FUL 8 Market Hill St lves CRM:0031210 ;
Attachments: Comments Form.pdf; Notice of Public Exhibition.pdf; Comments form

responses St Ives JDW.PDF; ST Ives jdw_02_Option05 A -.jpg; RK1796 - JDW St
Ives, Cambs - Spectrum Response to MAS Report.pdf; Management Plan jdw
St Ives.pdf; JD Wetherspoon St Ives Outside Area Management Details.pdf;
F1673-05B ProposedElevations-Al.pdf; F1673-02L ProposedPlans-Al.pdf;
F1673-01C Existing Plans-Al.pdf; F1673-04 ExistingElevations-Al.pdf

Hi Dallas,

| finally have some more info on this FYI
RE: Your Ref 15/00682/FUL 8 Market Hill St lves CRM:0031210 ;

Stakeholder meeting

When it was — 16" November 2015

how many attended — about 12 people

how many comments received — NA see below
summary of the comments received —

e BS4142is the relevant regulation you use for noise levels — Do JD Wetherspoon agree?

e JDW will investigate the introduction of an external noise monitoring system for the beer
garden that will notify the management when levels start to get to the upper agreed level to

enable them to mitigate the levels going above the agreed (the figure discussed was 48-50db)

e JDW would look into the Civic Society and zero impact assessment on the economy of the rest

of the town

e JDW would incorporate bi-folding windows on the front of the building and remove the railings.

how have they taken them into account. - see below

-1 BS4142 is the relevant regulation you use for noise levels states the council —JD Wetherspoon

do not agree due to the following reasons

Regarding BS 4142, the standard specifically states in Section 1 “the standard is not intended to be applied to the
rating and assessment of sound from people”. Our report only assesses noise from the proposed mechanical plant
in accordance with BS 4142 for this reason. It would not be appropriate to assess noise from the beer garden and
summer opening doors in accordance with BS 4142.

The cumulative noise levels from the use would not exceed the WHO annoyance criterion. Therefore the

cumulative noise impact for a worst case scenario would be low. For the majority of the time, the impact would be
much lower.

133



The alternative IOA and BCC criteria suggested by MAS is intended for establishments which hold entertainment
events. Using this criteria here is misleading and is not intended for the assessment of noise from a beer garden
and summer opening doors at a Public House where no entertainment events would be held.

A detailed response is enclosed to the MAS report.

The assessment methodology proposed by Spectrum, which was accepted by HDC, is widely accepted by many
other local authorities. The criteria used is appropriate for the type of establishment to which planning permission
is sought and we have confirmed with the planner and HDC that our original report is upheld with regards to noise
and odour

- 2 You will investigate the introduction of an external noise monitoring system for the beer
garden that will notify the management when levels start to get to the upper agreed level to

enable them to mitigate the levels going above the agreed (the figure discussed was 48-50db)

Although on the face of it this seems like a good idea. Essentially measurements that are appropriate as agreed
with the HDC relate to a 16 hour LAeq level, so it would not be practical to have an alarm system in place, because
you would only really know if the guideline level of 50dB was exceeded at the end of the 16 hour period.

| have relocated the sliding doors to the side elevation —because we want to do what we can to compromise and
take heed of the local communities concerns on this point.

We also accept that no food or drink be served in the garden but we request a smaller barriered off area after that
time to accommodate smokers from the pub —as we don’t want smokers to use the front pavements we want to
manage our guests as a responsible establishment would.

A beer garden is essential for our pub to work —as it is for the adjoining Robin hood and Golden lion — So we ask
that this be taken into consideration.

As our rear elevation visual shows we are prepared to close off almost all existing windows at high first floor level
to the rear and frost the window to the gents past head height so that we get a little natural light in but we don’t
overlook any other premises.

- 3 You would provide the Civic Society a zero impact assessment on the economy of the rest of

the town

The St Ives Civic Society and the recent consultation event requested that the applicant undertake an impact
assessment of the application proposals. In response to this request it is worth highlighting that the National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) seeks to promote positive competitive town centres and support their vitality
and viability. Leisure uses such as public houses are considered an appropriate land use in town centre locations
with paragraph 26 of the NPPF stating that applications for retail, leisure and office developments will only require
an impact assessment where the proposals are in an out of centre location and exceed 2,500sqm (this is why it
would be appropriate for the Waitrose development for example). In this instance, the scheme does not exceed
2,500sgm and it is located within a town centre and therefore assessing the impact of the proposals is not a
legitimate planning requirement.

Notwithstanding the above, J D Wetherspoons have plenty of experience of moving into established town centres
where alternative public houses are already available and it is our experience that Wetherspoons can be
complementary to these existing businesses and attract new customers to the centre who undertake linked trips
to other services and facilities.

134



In addition when JDW purchased the property, had it been marketed for long time —years I’'m told — without
interest, ‘Warehouse clearance shops’ was a small independent supermarket chain which was bought by
Morrisons. Morrisons purchase was never centred around this site and they never traded from this site as it wasn’t
suitable. Therefore the property was on the market for a long time.

We have previously provided you with information in relation to the job creation that will be generated by these
proposals as well as the additional spending that this will create within the local economy. It is therefore the case
that the proposals will offer significant benefits to the locality and should not be perceived as a threat.

| enclose a JD Wetherspoon management plan that highlights how the pub will operate

the proposed development will result in significant job creation, created as part of the public house
operation. These include a mixture of part-time and full-time employees, as well as various different roles in the
day to day operation of the site. Based on other equivalent comparators the employment opportunities are broken

down approximately as follows:

. 1 x Site Manager;

. 4 x Deputy Managers;

. 6/8 x Kitchen Staff (chefs);

. 10 x full-time bar staff (circa 39 hours per week);

o 15/17 x part-time bar staff (circa 20 hours per week); and
. 4 x cleaners.

It also must be acknowledged the contribution made by public houses to the vitality and viability of town centres,
particularly where they operate an all-day facility which can interact with surrounding businesses.

This contributes to the day time and evening economy during peak and off peak periods.
The proposals will do just that.

The following figures provide an approximate indicator of the economic outputs of the proposed development.
Clearly there will also be benefits to the wider local economy than those simply generated on-site.

The total construction costs will be around £1.6m and it is estimated that the gross impact generated by the
implementation of the proposed development will be specialist employment for 17 people over the 16-week
construction period. It is important to note that construction is a key contributor to economic activity and
employment due to its heavy reliance on an extended and varied supply chain. As a result, construction activity has
positive impacts that go well beyond the on-site jobs created and the capital expenditure invested in the
development scheme.

Gross Value Added (GVA) per employee provides a measure of the value of the output produced by employees
within the economy. It is a key indicator for economic growth. Based on data from the Office for National Statistics
(ONS), the GVA generated by the on-site construction employment would total £0.255m. The public house’s
workforce will generate £1.951m of additional GVA annually.

135



The County’s ONS jobs density (total jobs to population aged 16-64) is higher than the Great Britain average and as
a result many Cambridgeshire residents who are employed work within the County. Therefore it is expected that
many of the jobs created by the public house will be taken up by local people. The proposal will also improve the
County’s underrepresentation in the accommodation and food services sector (ONS data).

I hope this helps to address your concerns re economy — while the management plan demonstrates the community
benefits of the Wetherspoon development in St Ives.

We also talked about Car parking — we would be employing a majority of local staff and would encourage use of
the local facilities for parking which appear to be fantastic (over 2500 spaces) and public transport. Obviously we
would not condone parking on double yellow lines and there is enforcement in place for that issue outside of
planning matters.

Also deliveries were mentioned — our deliveries are consolidated in an offsite warehouse to minimise deliveries
and are minimal — We are delivering to the front — The only use for the rear gates is for a fire escape and for bin
collections as existing as the other local business and residents current use. There is no customer access from the
rear of our proposal.

-4 You would incorporate bi-folding windows on the front of the building and remove the

railings.

| enclose a revised visual and plans and elevations — It shows a more traditional frontage with a stall riser as we
discussed and | think it’s a fantastic improvement. The rails are gone and it’s much more fitting on the street scene
—this is a direct change from our meeting and after talking to local residents and the community at our forum.

public consultation

When it was — 16" November 2015

how many attended — about 60 people approximately

how many comments received — 112 in total — the total of the tally on the responses form
summary of the comments received — see enclosed comments responses form

how have they taken them into account. — see above

| attach a copy of the ‘Notice of Public Exhibition” which was used to advertise the event; a copy of the
Comments Form/Questionnaire, which was available at the event and via our website;

and a copy of the Comments Form Responses, which summarises the comments received and which |
trust you will have already seen

— 27 people in total completed the Comments Form.

With regards your query as to why the Comments Form Responses table shows 27no responses to Q’s 1-
3 though 31no to Q4,

| would suggest this is simply due to Q4 asking for ‘any other comments’ and, obviously, if some
individuals made comments on more than one matter when responding to Q4,

the table will show more than 27 comments made in total, albeit by only 27 people.

We believe approximately 60 people attended

Can you confirm that this is suitable please
And if | can do anything else to support this application

136



Can you confirm that the planning dept will also continue to support the application at the committee
meeting please?

Many thanks
Lee Bradley
Architect CT
07747477184

137



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 4b

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 18 APRIL 2016
Case No: 15/02377/FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)
Proposal: THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT IS TO DIVIDE THE

EXISTING DWELLING INTO TWO  SEPARATE
DWELLINGS CONSISTING OF A ONE BEDROOM
APARTMENT AND A TWO BEDROOM APARTMENT. IT
ALSO INCLUDES A FIRST FLOOR EXTENSION OVER AN
EXISTING GROUND FLOOR EXTENSION.

Location: 210 GREAT NORTH ROAD EATON SOCON PE19 8ED
Applicant: LONGSHEN PROPERTIES LTD (FAO MRS T CURL)
Grid Ref: 516992 259164

Date of Registration: 20.01.2016

Parish: ST NEOTS

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE
This application is referred to the Development Management Panel as St
Neots Town Council's recommendation of refusal is contrary to the
Officer's recommendation of approval.
1. DESCRIPTION

11 This application relates to 210 Great North Road, Eaton Socon. The
application site lies within the Eaton Socon Conservation Area.

1.2 The proposal is for the conversion of the existing first floor flat into
two separate residential units and the erection of a first floor
extension.

2 NATIONAL GUIDANCE

2.2 The National Planning Policy Framework (2012), with particular
reference to paragraphs 17, 56, 58, 59 and 60.

For full details visit the government website
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-
and-local-government

3. PLANNING POLICIES

3.1 Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995)
o EN5: Development within Conservation Areas

ENG6: Conservation Areas: Design

EN9: Conservation Areas

EN25: General Design Criteria

H31: Residential Amenity and Privacy Standards

T18: Access Requirements for New Development

139


https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government

3.2 Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations
(2002)
o HL5: Quality and Density of Development
o HL10: Housing Provision

3.3 Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework Core
Strategy (2009)
e  (CS1: Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire.
e  (CS3: The Settlement Hierarchy
e  (CS10: Contributions to Infrastructure Requirements

34 Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 (2013)
o LP1: Strategy and Principles for Development

LP2: Contributing to Infrastructure Delivery

LP8: Development in the Spatial Planning Areas

LP13: Quality of Design

LP15: Ensuring a High Standard of Amenity

LP17: Sustainable Travel

LP18: Parking Provision

LP24: Housing Mix

LP31: Heritage Assets and their Settings

3.5 St Neots Neighbourhood Plan
e  A3: High quality design
. PT1: Sustainable transport
. PT2: Vehicle parking

3.6 Supplementary Planning Documents:
e  Huntingdonshire Design Guide Supplementary Planning
Document 2007
4, PLANNING HISTORY

15/02394/P3JPA - Prior Approval application for the change of use of
ground floor from office to two residential apartments - Approved -
15.03.2016

15/01295/P3JPA - Prior Approval for the change of use of ground
floor from office to residential - Approved - 11.09.2015

15/00649/P3PPA - Prior approval in respect of use of existing
commercial building (B8) as dwelling (C3) - Approved - 19.06.2015

Summary:

4.1 The application site has been the subject of a number of recent
applications for the change of use through the provisions of the GPDO
2015 (as amended).

Prior to 2015, the site comprised:
. First floor: Residential flat
e  Ground floor: Office
e  Storage outbuilding

Currently, the site has permission for:
e  First floor: Residential flat (the subject of this application)

140



5.1

6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

¢ Ground floor: 1x one bedroom unit with one parking space and
1x two bedroom unit with one parking space

e Conversion of storage building to 1x one bedroom unit with
one parking space

CONSULTATIONS

St Neots Town Council - "Recommend refusal. Rejection reasons are
[inJadequacy of parking/loading/turning and a suggestion that the
proposal will result in unacceptable traffic generation”.

A revised site layout was provided by the applicant on 18.03.2016.
The revised layout shows only one parking space (for the two-
bedroom flat) and not two parking spaces as per the original site plan.
It must be noted that the Town Council was not re-consulted on the
amended plan.

REPRESENTATIONS

No third party representations have been received in response to the
proposal.

ASSESSMENT

The main issues to consider are:
e The principle of development;
e The design of the proposal in relation to the existing building
and street scene and the character/appearance of the area as
a whole;
¢ The impact on the amenity of neighbours; and
e The impact upon highway safety/parking.

The principle of development:

The presumption in favour of sustainable development is clearly
outlined within the NPPF, with the goal of creating positive
improvements in the quality of the built, natural and historic
environment, which includes widening the choice of high quality
homes. Policy CS3 (The Settlement Hierarchy) of the Core Strategy
identifies St Neots as a 'Market Town' in which development schemes
of all scales may be appropriate within the built up area. Policy LP8 of
the Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 defines St Neots as a
Spatial Planning Area (SPA), within which residential development
will be supported where it is appropriately located within the built up
area.

The site is considered to lie within the built up area of St Neots and
both national and local plan policies offer support for the principle of
intensification, subject to further consideration being given to design,
impact on residential amenity, and highways safety/parking..

The design of the proposal in relation to the existing building
and street scene and the character/appearance of the area as a
whole:

210 Great North Road is located on the east side of the B1428 and is
set back approximately 3.5m from the highway. Dwellings lie adjacent

141



7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

to the application site to the north (St Marys Court), east (1 The
Crescent) and south (208 Great North Road). The layout of the
existing built form along this section of the B1428 does not follow a
uniform arrangement and the scale, form and finishing materials of
the buildings vary, resulting in a street scene with an unstructured
rhythm.

The proposed first floor extension to the rear of the building is
considered to be subservient in scale and will be largely screened
from views from the street scene to the west by the existing building.
The proposal will entail alterations to the existing fenestration on the
front (west) and rear (east) elevations, resulting in additional
windows, however this is not considered to interrupt the interpretation
of the wider street scene. Whilst the additional bulk of the proposed
extension will be visible from the east and southwest, the design is
considered to reflect the character of the existing building and
construction/finishing materials can be secured by way of condition.
With the addition a condition ensuring the materials to be used, the
proposed development is considered to be acceptable.

The impact on the amenity of neighbours:

The proposed first floor extension to the rear of the building is not
considered to create a detrimental impact upon the amenity of the
occupiers of neighbouring property by way of being overbearing, or in
terms of overshadowing/a loss of light due to scale, positioning and
the separation distance from the other residential units.

Whilst the proposed fenestration on the rear elevation will face onto
the residential unit approved under 15/00649/P3PPA, the
development is not considered to create an unacceptable detrimental
impact in terms of overlooking/a loss of privacy when the existing
situation of mutual overlooking is taken into account. The proposed
development is considered to be acceptable in this regard.

It is noted that the conversion of the existing dwelling into two
properties will create additional vehicular and pedestrian movements
to and from the unit, however it is considered that the increase would
be relatively minor and would not result in a significant adverse
impact on the residential amenity of surrounding occupiers.

The impact upon highway safety/parking:

The originally submitted drawings showed two car parking spaces
being provided for the two proposed flats. However, the layout was
deemed to be unacceptable by the HDC Transportation team, as the
second parking space would have impeded vehicular movement and
would have resulted in users reversing onto/off the highway.

To address this highway safety concern, a revised site layout was
provided by the applicant on 18.03.2016. The revised layout shows
only one parking space (for the two-bedroom flat) and not two parking
spaces as per the original site plan. HDC Transportation team is
satisfied that the revised site layout, with the removal of the second
parking space, will allow vehicles to enter and leave the site in a
forward gear. With the addition of a suitably worded condition to
ensure that vehicles are not parked in the area to the immediate west

142



7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

of the marked parking bay, the revised design has addressed the
highway safety aspect of the proposal.

It is acknowledged that should the application be approved, there
would be a total of five flats and four parking spaces within the wider
site of 210 Great North Road, when the former storage building at the
far east of the site is accounted for. The site is located in a
sustainable location, and approximately 1.2 miles from St Neots Town
Centre. There are no double yellow line restrictions in close proximity
to the application site, and on street parking opportunities are
available to the east and west (of the site) and within reasonable
walking distance of the application site. As such, it would be
reasonable to suggest that the future occupier(s) of one of the flats (if
they choose the own/use a car) will be able to park on street within a
reasonable walking distance from the site. In addition to the above,
the overall ratio of flats to car parking spaces in this instance is
considered to be acceptable and would not result in significant
additional reliance on on-street car parking to such an extent that it
would result in highways safety issues or on street parking saturation.

In light of all the above, the revised site layout and level of parking
provision is, on balance, considered to be acceptable, particularly
given the sustainable nature of the location, proximity of public
transport links and local services.

Other matters:

The applicant has yet to submit a completed 'Unilateral Undertaking
(Wheeled bin contribution)'. Once submitted, this would comply with
the requirements of the Council's Planning Obligations
Supplementary Planning Document 2011. An update regarding
receipt of the document will be provided on the Friday letter.

Conclusion:

Taking national and local planning policies into account and having
regard for all relevant material considerations, it is recommended that
planning permission be granted for the development as proposed.

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVAL subject to the
receipt of a Unilateral Undertaken to secure wheeled bin provision,
recommend approval subject to conditions to include:

Time limit

In accordance with plans

Materials

Parking space to be laid out before first occupation of
dwelling and retained in perpetuity and details of how parking
will be prevented on the access road to be submitted

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Mr James Lloyd Assistant Development
Management Officer 01480 388389

143



St Neots Town Council

Planning Committee

Schedule of Plans - 4th February 2016

L
PNgN RECEIVED REFERENCE DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION APPLICANT RESPONSE DUE PROPOSER/2ND DESCI\:;I((:)N NOTES
Proposed single storey extension to the side and flue for wood .
14, Cod ton Court, Eaton S , St Neots, . Clir J Dunford .
1 | 19/01/2016 16/00013/HHFUL  |burner to front. (Received amended plans 25/01/16. Both will be carington tourt, taton socon, St eots Miss S Cardorka 12/02/2016 - puntor Approved No issues
. . PE19 8TE Clir B Hodges
available to view)
Unit 2, The Rowley Arts Centre, Huntingd .
. . . n! © Rowley Arts Lentre .un ing onv Mr J Tripp, The Clir C Maslen . .
2 21/01/2016 16/00051/FUL Installation of new kitchen extract ductwork (Retrospective). Street, St Neots, PE19 1BY (Frankie & Benny's 09/02/2016 . Approved Retrospective, no issues
Restaurant Group Ltd Clir Mrs D Collins
Restaurant)
9, The Paddock, Eaton Ford, St Neots, - Cllr C Masl Not looki ighb d withi
3 21/01/2016 16/00046/HHFUL Proposed single storey extension to the rear. € raddock, taton ror eots Mr H Williams 09/02/2016 r asien Approved otoverioo '|ng neighbours and within
PE19 7SA Clir Mrs L Ruck permitted development
P d single st . Cllr Mrs D Colli
4 | 21/01/2016 16/00067/HHFUL | 'OPOsed single storey garage 15, Beech Grove, St Neots, PE19 1HE Mr W George 09/02/2016 ch Nﬁs J S;i't:S Approved No issues
2, Harlech Court, E bury, St Neots, . Cllr Mrs L Ruck . .
5 21/01/2016 16/00041/HHFUL Proposed two storey rear extension. ariech Lourt, tynesbury eots Mr T Wilson 09/02/2016 rVIrs LRUC Approved Not overlooking neighbours
PE19 2RY Cllr C Maslen
Tavistock Court, R |l Street, St Neots, PE19 Clir Mrs L Ruck .
6 21/01/2016 16/00035/FUL Proposed windows and doors replacement scheme. avistock tourt, Russell Stree eots Mr G Taylor 05/02/2016 rvirs UF Approved No issues
1BE Cllr Mrs J Smith
Rear single storey extension to create 1 additional bedroom to be Clir Mrs J Smith
7 25/01/2016 15/02258/FUL used for HMO purposes. Consent already granted for 5 bedrooms as |1. Princes Drive, St Neots, PE19 1SG Mr R Balls 09/02/2016 Clir Mrs D Collins Approved Plenty of parking available
HMO (HMO means Home of Multiple Occupancy).
8 25/01/2016 16/00020/HHFUL Rfer'nove exist.ing rear conservatory and replace with flat roofed 42, Honeydon Avenue, Eaton Socon, St Neots, Mr G Shipley 11/02/2016 Cllr Mrs J Smith Approved No issues
dining extension. PE19 8PJ Clir C Maslen
The White H , 103, Great North Road, Eat . Clir K Wai ight .
9 | 25/01/2016 16/00092/LBC  |New Pub sign. e YWhite Horse reat North Road, =aton | ¢ terprise Inns plc 12/02/2016 r f Yvalhwrig Approved No issues
Socon, St Neots. PE19 8EL ClIr ) Dunford
The proposed development is to divide the existing dwelling into two
separate dwellings consisting of a one bedroom apartment and a two |210 Great North Road, Eaton Socon, St Neots. Clir ) Dunford ) Rejection reasons are Adequacy of
26/01/2016 15/02377/FUL P & & P Mrs T Curl 11/02/2016 Rejected ) guacy

Vel

bedroom apartment. It also includes a first floor extension over an
existing ground floor extension.

PE19 8ED

Clir Mrs J Smith

parking/loading/turning and Traffic generation

Chairman



Development Management Panel " S
Huntingdonshire

BlSTRIEGCT €CouUNETlL

$ Scale =1:1,250 Application Ref:15/02377/FUL
Date Created: 24/03/2016 | e ation: St Neots ©Groun copygn ang datase s 201

©
14 - (
© k
g L8
@ O
: A
= S
Key < z
, o] : 1N
] The Site = - \jﬁ
B Listed Building =
L Conservation Area g
E o) Gas Gov Ll/ /

] [ , =




ey

vl

1.

REVISED ~ CAR PARKING PLAN
20 GREAT Nok™ RoAD

: 15]023943 |[FuL

e

PROPOSED DEVELOATENT
QA0 GREAT NORTH
ROAD

ARER FO

TURNING

(MARKED)

SPACE FOR
FIRST FLOOR
2 BED

foorTeary

FLAT

PRVATE ROAD
OWNED &Y
AO GREAT

Nog™ 2D

GREAT nNoORTH

ONE PARKING

RESIDENTIAL
PROPERTY

FooTpATH

E¥ISTING AcCESS TO
PRIVATE ROAD
FRO M GREAT NORTH
RoAD



(pnc.E t) ELEVATION

PLAN FOR 210 GPEAT NORTH LORD

] (FlesT FLOOR)

H BEEC

__________ 1_sHopsuc.~\m -, 6 i A 4 é

gL i

/ EXISTING

EXISTING wWAND OW -TO LAKGE WINDOW) TO RE
RemAIN PEALACED WYTH
TWO 1000 mm (W)
X 1200 (_a)

1 wESTERN (p0pOSED)

| | 003 men (W) = 1200 mm (
_J EJ [ _ f‘waoeé%cg 9':2'11(\1:.'.; WINDO .

&
(L

H
=]

NOTE | CHANGES TO GROUND FLOOR HAvE geen

ARPLED FOR IN A SEPERATE. APPLICATION
REF: 15 /02394 /P3TPA

NGTE : ALL WINDOWS TO BE WHIFE NC T MATCH EXISTING



Erevanon
(pace 2) PuaN Fop 210 GREAT NORTH RoAD

(£1RST ALOOR )

EasSTeEP™N( :E&SﬂNg )

_ ExaSTING WINDOW TO BE REPLACED
WITH TWO FOOmm (W) x ‘DOmm(J-\)
/ATHROOMS

WINDOWS fOe
IR, P2 S R e AP e R e e ) HE158 e 3
g ’N
ﬂ RIS el S
Exus'rmq GROUND Fuooe O
EXTENSION

WITH MINEERL FELT FLAT POOF
£asTEEN (PQOPU&E@

TRUSS ROOF
(TILES TO RDGE=2.4m . EAVES TO MAFTCH
MATCH emrmq) EXSTING

EXTENSION TO F
F180UPE BLOUS

WITH RENDEL FINISH
TO MATCH EXISTING

TWO x ;'OOM(N)x
o (H
E’JW itk S
____________ - —  xSTING WINDOW)

——

NOTE: ALL WINDOWS To BE REPLACED WITH WHITE AVC
TO MATCH EX\STING .

NOTE | CHANGES TO GROUND ALO0R. HAavE REEN APPLIED
FO2 N A SEPEPATE APPLICATION
PEF . 15/32294-| P3TPA s



ELevAaTION
o

(PAGED) ... FOR 210 GREAT NORTH RORD

SOUTHERN (ExsTing )

m//aﬂsnﬂq WINDOW TO REMAIN

1= M 5 S0 00 R £
_E%_ BasTNG STENSION

WL RERUIRE 230 mm

WALL + STEELS TO TRKE
FRST fLocR. BMTENSION

sc_ﬂL-E. 11100 .
L ) s L 1 I
0o | 2. 5 | & é
southeEN (PROPOSED) EXTENSION POOF
RIDGE .4m
/E)GEI\\SION ROCF TUES TO

MAETCH DUSTING
x ews
J_ ExTENSION ONER £XSTING
CROUND £L00R. exTensIoN
(ABOUTE BLOCK LOVTH d
\ FANSH TO MATCH BX1ISTING
N _  "AND TRusS ROOF .

NOTE: ALL WINDOWYS -TO @E REPLACED WITH WHITE
PNC TO MATCH EXISTING -

NOTE: CHANGES TO GROUNIDF100R. HANE BEEN APPLIED
FOR N & SEPELATE APPLICATION -REF: 15| 02394 | P3TPA

149

-




ELeVATION

[ '
PROPOSED FeST Ao EKTB\SDSC‘
OVE 2. CROUND ALOCE. BX\STH
ecansion WITH TRUSS ROOF
- i R il
6 | 9% +. S /l_l\

NORTHERN : i

‘gllﬁ"fll\l(_:i)

el e A . g s i . i 4_._.

NOTE: ALL WINDOWS T0 RE REPLACED WITH WHITE NC -TO
MATCH EX\STING -

NOTE @ GROUND FLOOR. CHANGES HAVE BEEN APPLED FoR
N A SEPECATE PPPSINAT ION- REF: 15|02394 [ pTPa



TGT

20 CReAT © 0RTH RoRD (FIRST frooe)
APPLICATION TO D JE A ONE RENPOOM.

DWELLING INTO Tw _DWELLINGS -~
_x ONE ReDROOM - | x -TWO eeDRooM

— NEeW WINDOW)

,’_,ﬁ-"—:—";
i
:
!

TWO v €2 WINDOUS
TO REPL E BusTING

LARGES NINDOW) .

&5 2ANCE TO
or  ReDRoom

SyFENSION CNER
&qaouno FLOOR KATCheN

—
I JELLIN
Eee crge_)

S NSELT ENTPANE
oL NEW KITCHEN |
EXTENSION
ENTRANCE TO TWO
1 BEDROOM DWELLNG
(gm,oooa)
—e—
\Tmo smaue? windDowss
10 REPLACE oUST
Commun AL Lage,ER wwoowwq
ARER .

NOTE ! ALl LIINODOWS (it BE WHITE PVC-
TO MATCH SSTING



dttos )

A%])

STAIRS

Scale 11100
ey
meTels



Agenda Item 4c

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 18 APRIL 2016
Case No: 15/02258/FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)
Proposal: REAR SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION TO CREATE 1NO.

ADDITIONAL BEDROOM TO BE USED FOR HOME OF
MULTIPLE OCCUPANCY (HMO) PURPOSES. CONSENT
ALREADY GRANTED FOR 5 BEDROOMS AS HMO.

Location: 1 PRINCES DRIVE ST NEOTS PE19 1SG
Applicant: MR RICHARD BALLS
Grid Ref: 519049 260544

Date of Registration: 15.01.2016

Parish: ST NEOTS

RECOMMENDATION - REFUSE

This application is referred to the Development Management Panel as St
Neots Town Council's recommendation of approval is contrary to the
Officer's recommendation of refusal.

1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 This application relates to the site of a two storey, semi-detached
dwellinghouse of brick and tile construction in an established
residential area of St Neots.

1.2 The proposal is for the erection of a single storey extension to the
rear of the existing dwelling.

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE

2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (2012), with particular
reference to paragraphs 17, 56, 58, 59 and 60.

For full details visit the government website
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-
and-local-government

3. PLANNING POLICIES

3.1 Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995)
e EN25: General Design Criteria
e H34: Extension to dwellings

3.2 Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations
(2002)
¢ No relevant policies.
3.3 Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework Core
Strategy (2009)

153


https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

e (CS1: Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire

Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 (2013)
e LP1: Strategy and Principles for Development
e LP13: Quality of Design
e LP15: Ensuring a high standard of Amenity

St Neots Neighbourhood Plan:
e Policy A3: High quality design

Supplementary Planning Documents:
e Huntingdonshire Design Guide Supplementary Planning
Document 2007

Due regard is also given to the provisions of Class A of the 2015
General Permitted Development Order (as amended).

Local policies are viewable at https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk

5.1

6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

PLANNING HISTORY

15/01379/CLPD - Alteration of existing 4 bedroom house to form 5
bedroom HMO, including conversion of existing garage to form
habitable room - Consent - 22.10.2015

CONSULTATIONS

St Neots Town Council: "Approved - Plenty of parking available".
REPRESENTATIONS

None.

ASSESSMENT

The main issues for consideration are:

e The impact on the amenity of neighbours; and
e The design of the proposal in relation to the existing dwelling
and street scene.

The impact on the amenity of neighbours:

Due to the orientation and layout of the existing built form along this
section of Princes Drive, coupled with the single storey scale design
of the proposed extension, on balance it is considered that the
proposed development would not create an unacceptable impact in
terms of overshadowing/loss of light, or by way of being overbearing.
Similarly, the ground floor positioning and orientation of the
fenestration upon the proposed extension is not considered to create
a detrimental impact in terms of overlooking/a loss of privacy.

Whilst the physical form of the proposed development is considered
to be acceptable in terms of potential impacts upon neighbour

154


https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

amenity, significant concerns are raised with regard to the overall
design of the proposed addition.

The design of the proposal in relation to the existing dwelling
and street scene:

The existing dwelling measures approx. 10.65m by 8.6m. The
proposed development would entail the erection of a flat roofed
extension to the rear, measuring approx. 13.8m (at its longest point)
by 5.09m. Due regard is given to the provisions of Class A of the
2015 GPDO (as amended) in terms of a fall-back position for a single
storey rear extension, however whilst the height of the proposed
extension would appear to be acceptable, the proposed extension
exceeds permitted dimensions for both length and width.

Incorporating a flat roof allows the overall height of the proposed
extension to be less than the height expected from a pitched
structure, but the aesthetic merit of the design is limited. The scale of
the proposed addition and its positioning deep into the rear amenity
space is considered to reinforce the incongruity of the development.

It is noted that views of the proposed development from the street
scene to the south will be limited, given the positioning of the
extension in relation to the existing dwelling and the screening
gualities of the existing boundary treatments. However, glimpsed
views are considered to be achievable from both the thoroughfare to
the north of the application site and to the east, such would be the
impact of an addition of the scale proposed.

The addition of another bedroom to the dwelling would increase the
total number of bedrooms to six. However the floor plan suggests that
the proposed extension would not only create space for an additional
bedroom, but also a kitchen/dining area and a bathroom. The creation
of a single storey addition which has the facilities expected of a self-
contained flat adds to the sense of overdevelopment inherent within
the proposal.

The proposed development is considered to directly conflict with the
recommendations of the Huntingdonshire Design Guide (2007) as the
design fails to respect both the proportions and overall character of
the existing dwelling. The scale and form of the extension are such
that the proposed development is considered to represent a contrived
addition to the setting of the application site and would sit
uncomfortably in relation to the existing dwelling.

Conclusion:
Having regard for applicable national and local policies and having
taken all relevant material considerations into account, it is therefore

considered that planning permission should be refused in this
instance for the reason explained above and outlined below.

155



8. RECOMMENDATION — REFUSE for the following reasons:

1. The proposed extension, by virtue of its excessive depth,
footprint and flat roof design, would represent an awkward, contrived
addition, which would fail to respect the scale, character and
traditional proportions of the host dwelling. Furthermore, the
excessive built form intruding into the rear garden would result in an
overdevelopment of the site, with a significant reduction in outdoor
amenity space for the intended six residents. The proposal is
therefore contrary to paragraphs 56, 57, 59 and 60 of the National
Planning Policy Framework; policy En25 of the Huntingdonshire Local
Plan (1995); policy CS1 of the Adopted Core Strategy (2009); policy
LP13 of the Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 (2013), Policy
A3 of the St Neots Neighbourhood Plan and the recommendations of
the Huntingdonshire Design Guide (2007).

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

CONTACT OFFICER:

Enquiries about this report to Mr James Lloyd Assistant Development
Management Officer 01480 388389

156



St Neots Town Council

Planning Committee

Schedule of Plans - 4th February 2016

PLAN

SNTC

NO RECEIVED REFERENCE DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION APPLICANT RESPONSE DUE PROPOSER/2ND DECISION NOTES
Proposed single storey extension to the side and flue for wood .
14, Cod ton Court, Eaton S , St Neots, . Clir J Dunford .
1 | 19/01/2016 16/00013/HHFUL  |burner to front. (Received amended plans 25/01/16. Both will be carington tourt, taton socon, St eots Miss S Cardorka 12/02/2016 - puntor Approved No issues
. . PE19 8TE Clir B Hodges
available to view)
Unit 2, The Rowley Arts Centre, Huntingd .
. . ) n € rowley Arts entre .un ng onv Mr J Tripp, The Cllr C Maslen , .
2 21/01/2016 16/00051/FUL Installation of new kitchen extract ductwork (Retrospective). Street, St Neots, PE19 1BY (Frankie & Benny's 09/02/2016 . Approved Retrospective, no issues
Restaurant Group Ltd Clir Mrs D Collins
Restaurant)
9, The Paddock, Eaton Ford, St Neots, - Cllr C Masl Not looki ighb d withi
3 21/01/2016 16/00046/HHFUL Proposed single storey extension to the rear. € raddock, taton ror eots Mr H Williams 09/02/2016 r asien Approved otoverioo '|ng neighbours and within
PE19 7SA Clir Mrs L Ruck permitted development
P d single st . Cllr Mrs D Colli
4 | 21/01/2016 16/00067/HHFUL | 'OPOsed single storey garage 15, Beech Grove, St Neots, PE19 1HE Mr W George 09/02/2016 ch Nﬁs J S;i't:S Approved No issues
2, Harlech Court, E bury, St Neots, . Cllr Mrs L Ruck . .
5 21/01/2016 16/00041/HHFUL Proposed two storey rear extension. ariech Lourt, tynesbury eots Mr T Wilson 09/02/2016 rVIrs & Ruce Approved Not overlooking neighbours
PE19 2RY Cllr C Maslen
Tavistock Court, R |l Street, St Neots, PE19 Clir Mrs L Ruck .
6 21/01/2016 16/00035/FUL Proposed windows and doors replacement scheme. avistock tourt, Russell Stree eots Mr G Taylor 05/02/2016 rvirs UF Approved No issues
1BE Cllr Mrs J Smith
Rear single storey extension to create 1 additional bedroom to be Clir Mrs J Smith
7 25/01/2016 15/02258/FUL used for HMO purposes. Consent already granted for 5 bedrooms as |1. Princes Drive, St Neots, PE19 1SG Mr R Balls 09/02/2016 Clir Mrs D Collins Approved Plenty of parking available
HMO (HMO means Home of Multiple Occupancy).
8 25/01/2016 16/00020/HHFUL Rfer'nove exist.ing rear conservatory and replace with flat roofed 42, Honeydon Avenue, Eaton Socon, St Neots, Mr G Shipley 11/02/2016 Cllr Mrs J Smith Approved No issues
dining extension. PE19 8PJ Clir C Maslen
The White H , 103, Great North Road, Eat . Clir K Wai ight .
9 | 25/01/2016 16/00092/LBC  |New Pub sign. e Yvhite florse reat North Road, EatON 1 enterprise Inns plc 12/02/2016 r £ Avainwrig Approved No issues
Socon, St Neots. PE19 8EL ClIr ) Dunford
N The proposed development is to divide the existing dwelling into two
5'61 separate dwellings consisting of a one bedroom apartment and a two |210 Great North Road, Eaton Socon, St Neots. Clir J Dunford i Rejection reasons are Adequacy of
26/01/2016 15/02377/FUL Mrs T Curl 11/02/2016 Rejected
~ /01/ / / bedroom apartment. It also includes a first floor extension over an PE19 8ED /02/ Clir Mrs J Smith ! parking/loading/turning and Traffic generation

existing ground floor extension.

Chairman



Development Management Panel

N

P

Scale =1:1,250
Date Created: 23/03/2016

Application Ref:15/02258/FUL
Location: St Neots

//——%\
Huntingdonshire

BlSTRIEGCT €CouUNETlL

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016
Ordnance Survey HDC 100022322

N

Key

/] The Site
I Listed Building
@ Conservation Area

AN

I\_] L—u
7 =:f’r::=1 » 1 AT |
[ Hail 2 il
Wg ton ./ . = / Py e
e Hail B s P P
8¢ (’:;// X ] b - 'ﬂ/,/)Munks'Hardwip}k%
§ - - i -’\"“#“ 4 o&ﬂ",f"‘w e
e iganas YL % 7 ™
o man > o ;
! P
RETT g T oy i
& mligors & N
v'-\ ch 3 a : Jl-’- ’;_, = ~ J /
g = [ :
Eaton-6ord S, 4 [ : ¢ /&W ,’,'l,)»¢‘ 1\_/
o@ 17 & S githe Fm E
] & i f, !4
’ / i o /
2Tp ol X G
\ ] 0 P S ™,
N =R/ S S )
y o Eyriesbiry s
Soconig=ire ([ PX R oo O Y A
S astle PillE 5 e/ A X4 _ g L\,s}"'\
v ¥ sg ™ in
Xx / {49) & » . & |
(]
=
[0
Q-
o
x
The Bungalow 21
N
El 19
27
29
11 S
j 15 ?\\\40
1
9
P 1 A1
( ‘Q:F L S\_\NN‘(BAN
o
= 1_‘I-J L
© BramleE
> © Q
—
o
omefield 22
osedew: 9
The 1 @oho
sehaven




6GT

%

e Bungdlow

|

M
L lSubgt

|

II
‘L7
ze|l 1

I—

T FE |

=1 i
= T
E e I
L T T
L= Z
—— | I 1T i i_i
D

1 9

S

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2015. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

0
|

40M
|

Nor

th

LOCATION PLAN
SCALE 1:1250

El
Sub St3

_ |

i

'

|
(

EXISTING BLOCK PLAN

SCALE 1:500

= 1 11

]

j e [ [ |
/_\ :\:—\

L

il

:

S

|l

El
Sub Stg

[Nl

%

\
7\\\\
H \Jl——. gl —I\r
— 1 J H EL 720] rseig.g|e Sp? .yse rfznﬁiin atched FL /
Outbyildin -I
w demokisthdd-sHown
‘] / [_f I_] dashed plue. L]LH\
S L
L ﬁé ) \J ] 11
] —n
=
]
j —— [ ] |
I
| o e

20M
|

PROPOSED BLOCK PLAN

SCALE 1:500

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING

The contractor is to check all dimensions on site and report
any discrepancies to the architect. All rights described in
chapter IV of the copyright, designs and patents act 1988 have
been generally asserted

Drawn Check

FIRST ISSUE

ARCHITECTS

INFO@TMVARCHITECTS.CO.UK
+44(0) 7545 821 587 | +44(0) 7920 097 130

Drawn ‘ Check
Project

1 Princes Drive
St. Neots
PLANNING APPROVAL

Drawing

Site Location and Block Plan

Drawing No.




7 Approx. Ridge Heigh é

6918

~r Eave Height
4425

LFirst Floor

2597

~g Ground Floor
- 0

GF Cei@LeveI!
2350

External Level ~ugge~

North Elevation
1:50

~” Approx. Ridge Height

-75

6918

09T

~gr Eave Height =
4425

~g First Floor
2597

a

g Ground Floor 1

GF Ceiling Level ~gg@—
2350

___External Level ~gg@~

0

South Elevation
1:50

-75

b Aﬂox. Ridge Heighti
6918

b Eﬂa Height -
4425

> FiritFIoor
2597

> Gﬂnd Floor -

GF Ceiling Level ~gg—

2350

___External Level -

o

East Elevation
1:50

> AMOX. Ridge Heighti
6918

g~ Eave Height -

4425

w7 First Floor

-75

2597 '

b G@nd Floor -
0

GF Ceiling Level ~gg—
2350

- __ __External Level -

-75

West Elevation
1:50

Issued for:
Project/Client: Project No:
. ) 214
1 Princes Drive, St Neots, S
PLANNING APPROVAL OW69 o
Rev:
Drawing: Scale:
1:50 @A1
PROPOSED ELEVATIONS
Drawn By: Date:
MDV
Checked By: Date:
TJM

1MV
ARCHITECTS

INFO@TMVARCHITECTS.CO.UK
+44(0) 7545 821587 | +44(0) 7920 097 130

1 Whitehall Farm | Coppingford Road | Sawtry
Cambridgeshire | PE28 5XT

Contractors must work only to figured dimensions which are to be checked on site.



191

1:50

3
. lI |l 1
i ¢ E : | g E
m—— =
===
BEDROOM 1 h===4
i) T-CCT
Tp—
I 7
[ BEDROOM 2
12 m2
] = 125.4 SF
]
ENSUITE HALLWAY
34.7 SF 12 m2
130.0 SF
- - - —— = ENSUITE
3m?
29.4 SF
AN AN
TV RQOM 0
8 m¢
85.7 $F
N
| o T T T N
e -
] 7_ AR YA YA 4
_ KITCHEN
15 m2
165.6 SF o BATHROOM
4 m2 o
_ 380SsF 8
Al
1 Al
| | "/ '\\\
_ | | | 1605
) \
|| | | | | |
1 T ] |
N
9 || j
[ | b
N )
e X
I [
e —— Kh
| [
KITOHEN / DINING |
S | 23me E—
3 | | 2453 SF ﬁl
X < || |
9 | ﬁ
& ! -~
| ¥ !
! 4
| - — X
:| SHED / OUTBUILDING TO 4:
1 BE DEMOLISHED 4|
| _
I H | | | j|
o X | | | | | [
8 N | | | 4|
8 > j‘ |: Jll
4 | |
0 ! |
A ! |
X |_l_ ________________________
N
Ground Floor X )
¥
§ BEDROOM 6
2 18 m?
192.2 SF
X )
¢ "
X
N 4465
X
N
5095

3
3 ‘
DN
BEDROOM ]
10 m2
108.2 SF .
| BEROOM 3
| | 11 m2
] 123.7 SF
L1
COMMUNAL
SHOWER ROOM ENSUITE
3 m? 2
BEDROOM 36.2 SF 284 SF
11181.2mSF
|
| ENSUITE
3 m?
37.5 SF
| —

First Floor
1:50

Roof Plan
1:50

Issued for:
Project/Client: Project No:
, , 214
1 Princes Drive, St Neots, S
PLANNING APPROVAL O”g >
Rev:
Drawing: Scale:
1:50 @A1
PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS
Drawn By: Date:
MDV

Checked By: Date:

TIM

1MV
ARCHITECTS

INFO@TMVARCHITECTS.CO.UK
+44(0) 7545 821587 | +44(0) 7920 097 130

1 Whitehall Farm | Coppingford Road | Sawtry
Cambridgeshire | PE28 5XT

Contractors must work only to figured dimensions which are to be checked on site.



[As))

g Approx. Ridge Height Eg%
- j

6918 o
@ Eave Height ~  F———————— e ———————— -
4425 B
- .
[ B -
i - - P s
|
~” FirstFloor ~ — — — — —| — .
2597 ' —— B GF Ceiling Level ~g@”
2350
—
g Ground Floor I
= v External LeveI¥
0 -75
.
| ]

North Elevation
1:50

g Approx. Ridge Height b

6918 ‘E

¥ Eave Height -
4425
@~ First Floor _
2597 GF CeiliﬂLevell
2350
LGuround Floor
— External Level¥
0
-75

South Elevation
1:50

g Approx. Ridge Height %

6918

@ Eave Height L
4425
~” FirstFloor 1
2597 |_'f GF Ceiling Level ~g@”
B 2350
LGround Floor
peiblie o External Level¥
0
-75

East Elevation
1:50

~” Approx. Ridge Height
6918

g Eave Height
4425

g First Floor
2597

— — GF Ceiling Level g
2350

~” Ground Floor External Level g~
0
-75

West Elevation
1:50

Rev Date Details Drawn Checked
Issued for:
Project/Client: Project No:
, . 214
1 Princes Drive, St Neots, ——
PLANNING APPROVAL ng o
Rev:
Drawing: Scale:
1:50 @A1
EXISTING ELEVATIONS
Drawn By: Date:
MDV
Checked By: Date:
TIM

1MV
ARCHITECTS

INFO@TMVARCHITECTS.CO.UK
+44(0) 7545 821587 | +44(0) 7920 097 130

1 Whitehall Farm | Coppingford Road | Sawtry
Cambridgeshire | PE28 5XT

Contractors must work only to figured dimensions which are to be checked on site.




4 4
|| o
i F i H | ; g P
DN
[ L | —
=== —
Lo ]
T BEDROOM|2 ]
F===T 10 m2
===+ 108.2 SF ===
L ——4 — BEROOM 1
| — — 9m?
= R 101.4 SF
LOUNGE .
160 |SF ] ]
] GARAGE | | O |
o | 15 m2 ]
] 161.9 SF ]
uP
HALLWAY s f
8 m?
85.5 SF 7
)]
I I I ENSUTE
[ 5m?
51.5 SF
BEDROOM|3
2 3 Y 2 11181.2mSF 3 2 3
————————— BATHROOM
_________ 1 —
DINING ROOM BATHROOM '
8 m 4 m?
88.1 $F 42.7 SF
———————
] [=]
KITCHEN
15 m2
165.6 SF
W [ . |
H I._
o))
W
‘ 1 1 1
— — P —
| @ _____________ . @ @
| r- - - - — — — — — — — — — |
| ¥
| |
I I
‘ I i Roof Plan
| |
| : : | 1:50
| |
| |
| || SHED/OUTBULDING ||
| ¥
| |
I I
| |
| |
I I
| |
| |
I I
| )
| ¥
| B
|
|_|_ _________________________ - | [
1:50 1:350

Rev Date Details Drawn Checked
Issued for:
Project/Client: Project No:
, . 214
1 Princes Drive, St Neots, 0
PLANNING APPROVAL O\g o
Rev:
Drawing: Scale:
1:50 @A1
EXISTING FLOOR PLANS
Drawn By: Date:
MDV
Checked By: Date:
TIM

1MV
ARCHITECTS

INFO@TMVARCHITECTS.CO.UK
+44(0) 7545 821587 | +44(0) 7920 097 130

1 Whitehall Farm | Coppingford Road | Sawtry
Cambridgeshire | PE28 5XT

Contractors must work only to figured dimensions which are to be checked on site.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4d

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 18 APRIL 2016

Case No: 15/02405/0UT (OUTLINE APPLICATION)

Proposal: PROPOSED ERECTION OF DETACHED HOME WITH
INDEPENDANT ACCESS

Location: MAY COTTAGE HOLME ROAD YAXLEY PE7 3NA

Applicant: MR M CHANNING

Grid Ref: 518239 291503

Date of Registration: 06.01.2016

Parish: YAXLEY

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE

This application is reported to the Development Management Panel as
the Parish Council's recommendation of refusal is contrary to the
officer's recommendation of approval.

1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 This application relates to land at the rear of May Cottage, which is
located outside of the built up framework of Yaxley. The site currently
has an approved business use (as approved under planning
reference 1100400FUL on the 19th May 2011). There are a number
of temporary structures related to the authorised use within the
bounds of the site. There is a mix of planting along the boundary with
Holme Road. The area is characterised by open countryside apart
from some scattered sporadic housing.

1.2 May Cottage is located to the north west of the site and has been
extended significantly over time.

1.3 The site is within the Environment Agency’s Flood Zone 3. The site is
not shown as being at risk of flooding in the Huntingdonshire
Strategic Flood Risk Assessment 2010. A flood risk assessment has
not been submitted on this basis.

1.4 A Design and assessment statement has been submitted with the
application.
15 The application seeks permission in outline for the erection of a

dwelling and detached garage. The approved application granted in
2011 for the erection of an MOT station has been implemented
(please see green papers). The applicant has explained in
supporting documents that the existing MOT business will be
relocated (should planning permission be granted).

1.6 The access is being considered as part of this application, with all

other matters reserved and to be considered in the submission of a
reserved matters application.

165



2.1

2.2

NATIONAL GUIDANCE

The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development - an economic role, a social
role and an environmental role - and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government's
planning policies for : building a strong, competitive economy;
ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural
economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high
qguality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of
climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and
enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

Planning Practice Guidance (2014)

For full details visit the government website
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-

and-local-government

3.

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

PLANNING POLICIES

Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995)
e H23: "Outside Settlements”

H31: "Residential privacy and amenity standards

Enl7: "Development in the Countryside"

En18: “Protection of countryside features”

En25: "General Design Criteria"

Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations
(2002)
e HL5: “Quality and Density of Development”

Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework Core
Strategy (2009)

e (CS1: "Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire"

e CS3: "The Settlement Hierarchy"

e (CS10: “Contributions to Infrastructure Requirements”

Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 (2013)
e LP1: “Strategy and Principles for Development”
e LP10: “Development in Small Settlements”
e LP11: “The Relationship between the built-up area and the
countryside”
LP13: “Quality of Design”
LP15: “Ensuring a high standard of Amenity”
LP18: “Parking Provision”
LP26: “Homes in the Countryside”

Huntingdonshire Design Guide SPD 2007

Huntingdonshire Landscape and Townscape SPD 2007

166


https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government

3.7

Developer Contributions SPD 2011

Local policies are viewable at https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk

4,

4.1

51

5.2

6.1

7.1

7.2

PLANNING HISTORY

Extensive planning history the relevant parts of which are:
9900553FUL — retention of use as car repairs and servicing,
permitted October 1999.

0801315FUL — Erection of new workshop and office, refused June
2008,

0803075FUL — Erection of new workshop and office, refused
December 2008

0900112FUL - Erection of new workshop and office, refused October
2009

1100400FUL - construction of a MOT station building, approved May
2011

CONSULTATIONS

Yaxley Parish Council objects to the application — (COPY
ATTACHED)

The Parish Council objects to the proposed development as it lies
outside the defined settlement boundary for the village. The site is
situated on a 60mph road and there is no public footpath on that road
to the village. The proposed development would further erode the soft
fen edge view of the village from the fen and may have an adverse
impact on the Great Fen project.

Officer response:
The above grounds of objection are assessed in the main body of the
report.

County Highways Engineers (CCC) — no objection

The proposed access is indicated onto Leading Drove which is a
private road; the new dwelling replaces an existing business use
which would produce a greater amount of vehicle movements than
that proposed. Given the above CCC would have no objections to
that proposed.

REPRESENTATIONS
No third party representations have been received
ASSESSMENT

The application has been submitted in outline with access only to be
considered.

The main issues to consider here are the principle of the
development, the visual impact of the proposed development, and
highway safety.

Assessment:

167


https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

The site is located outside the built-up framework of Yaxley village,
and is in the open countryside for the purposes of adopted and
emerging planning guidance and policies. The relevant adopted and
emerging policies are generally restrictive when it comes to new
development outside the built-up framework of settlements/village,
and will only permit new residential development where this is
essential for the proper functioning of a rural enterprise. Any such
proposals should be accompanied by specific justification, without
which it cannot be supported by the Local Planning Authority. Policy
CS3 states that new residential development in the countryside "will
be strictly limited to that which has an essential need to be located in
the countryside".

Paragraph 55 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) also
states that Local planning authorities should avoid new isolated
homes in the countryside unless there are special circumstances
which include the essential need for a rural worker to live permanently
at or near their place of work in the countryside.

The Draft Local Plan to 2036 provides further guidance on the
relationship of the built-up area and the countryside. Policy LP11
provides guidance with regards to 'the relationship between the built-
up area and the countryside', advising that 'The countryside includes
all land outside built-up areas and those hamlets, groups of buildings
and individual buildings that are clearly detached from the continuous
built-up area of a defined settlement that are not themselves defined
settlements'. This policy sets out that 'New homes in the countryside
will require special justification for planning permission to be granted'.

Paragraph 215 of the NPPF requires that '...due weight should be
given to relevant policies in existing plans according to their degree of
consistency with this framework (the closer the policies in the plan to
the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may be
given).

Paragraph 216 states that '...decision-takers may also give weight to
relevant policies in emerging plans according to:

*the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced
the preparation, the greater the weight that may be given);

*the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant
policies (the less significant the unresolved objections, the greater the
weight that may be given); and

*the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging
plan to the policies in this Framework (the closer the policies in the
emerging plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the
weight that may be given)

This site has a long and extensive planning history relating to the
business use since 1999. Currently there are a collection of
temporary buildings serving the existing business use. In 2011
planning permission was granted for a relatively large MOT testing
building, which has been implemented by the laying of foundations.

One of the Core twelve Planning principles contained in the NPPF

encourages the effective use of land by reusing land that has been
previously developed land. The key objective in achieving sustainable

168



7.10

7.11

7.12

forms of development in the Adopted Core Strategy is the use of land
that has been developed. Paragraph 111 defines previously
developed land as ‘brownfield land’, and makes it clear that the
effective use of land by re-using land that has been previously
developed (brownfield land), providing it is not of high environmental
value, should be encouraged. In paragraph 89 (of the NPPF), one of
the exceptions to the preservation and protection of the countryside is
limited infill developments or the redevelopment of previously
developed sites, providing the proposed development does not have
a greater impact. The application site, based on its lawful use is
considered to fall within the definition of a brownfield site for the
purposes of the NPPF and the adopted Core Strategy. The NPPF in
Paragraph 49 also states that ‘housing applications should be
considered in the context of the presumption in favour of sustainable
development'. Paragraph 50 of the NPPF states 'to deliver a wide
choice of high quality homes, widen opportunities for home ownership
and create sustainable, inclusive and mixed communities, local
planning authorities should plan for a mix of housing.

The site is considered to be brownfield land, albeit outside the built-up
framework, and the principle of the development is partly accepted.
The development should, in the true spirt of aims of planning policy,
meet the aims of sustainable development. Sustainability has three
strands, environmental, economic, and social issues. The site is
located approximately 1/3 of mile from the historic centre of Yaxley
village, which is identified in the Core Strategy as a Key Service
centre, providing a mix of services and employment opportunities.
The County highways engineer has confirmed the current use of the
site as a MOT station is likely to generate more vehicles to the site
than the proposed residential use, therefore it is considered that the
environmental impacts would be reduced by allowing the re-
development of the site for a single family dwelling. As such, the re-
development of this site is considered to be a more sustainable form
of development compared to the approved MOT station use.

With regards to the comments from Yaxley Parish Council relating to
the lack of public pathway provision into the village, the County
Highways engineer has not objected to the proposal on grounds of
pedestrian or vehicle safety, and the footpath situation remains
unchanged following the recommendation of approval from the Parish
Council for the MOT station building. The Parish Council have also
raised concern about the erosion of the soft fen edge to the view of
the village. Initial indicative plans should the new dwelling would be
setback from the road, deep into the site. In addition, Members
should be reminded that the Parish Council did not object to the scale
and mass of the approved MOT station building, in terms of visual
amenity issues.

Notwithstanding the above, this application has been submitted in
Outline to assess the principle of the development, and the access
arrangements only. The design, scale and mass, if this application is
approved, will be assessed in the submission of a reserved matters
application. It is expected however that any dwelling approved
through the planning process in the future should be of a simple,
restrained form, and subservient in nature to May Cottage, to ensure
the building sits sympathetically within the site and reflects the rural
character of the area.

169



7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

The existing MOT station site lies to the south east of an existing
group of three dwellings; a new dwelling in this location is considered
to be more compatible with the existing uses in terms of visual
appearance and the living environment of those in close vicinity to the
site.

The existing MOT station access point is taken from the track to the
north of May Cottage, it is considered that the amount of vehicles
using this access would be significantly reduced with the introduction
of a residential use (in the form of a single family dwelling), therefore
the impacts in terms of vehicle generation, and noise and disturbance
from such vehicles is considered to be a significant improvement over
the existing situation.

Ultimately, there are no objections raised to the existing site access
being used for residential purposes, on the grounds of highway
safety.

Conclusion

Given the site can be defined as a site that has previously been
developed (i.e. a brownfield site), which is relatively sustainable when
compared to the authorized use, and a more compatible use go the
existing developments, and based on the assessment above, on
balance the proposal is considered to be acceptable in principle in
this instance.

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVAL subject to
conditions to include the following

Time limit

Approve plans
Materials
Contamination
Remove PD Rights

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Linda Walker Development Management
Officer 01480 388411

170



Huntingdonshire DC Public Access

From: developmentcontrol@huntsdc.gov.uk

Sent: 27 January 2016 09:42

To: DevelopmentControl

Subject: Comments for Planning Application 15/02405/0UT

Planning Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is provided below.

Comments were submitted at 9:42 AM on 27 Jan 2016 from Mrs Helen Taylor.

Application Summary

Address: May Cottage Holme Road Yaxley PE7 3NA
Proposal: chc)zgsed erection of detached home with independant

Case Officer: Linda Walker
Click for further information

Customer Details
Name: Mrs Helen Taylor
Email: clerk@yaxleypc.org.uk

Yaxley Parish Council, The Amenity Centre, Main Street,

Address: Yaxley pe7 3lu

Comments Details

Commenter Town or Parish Council
Type:
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Reasons for
comment:

Comments: The Parish Council objects to the proposed development
as it lies outside the defined settlement boundary for the
village. The site is situated on a 60mph road and there is
no public footpath on that road to the village. The
proposed development would further erode the soft fen
edge view of the village from the fen and may have an
adverse impact on the Great Fen project.

171



Development Management Panel

@ Scale =1:1,250 Application Ref:15/02405/0UT

Date Created: 04/04/2016 Location: Yaxley

Huntingdonshire

BlSTRIEGCT €CouUNETlL

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016
Ordnance Survey HDC 100022322

Allotment

Gardens

pe

Gravel Bridge

The Bun

Trundlemere

Key

"] The Site

B Listed Building
@ Conservation Area




Leading Drove, Yaxley

Ordnance Su Crown Copyright 2015. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432,
Getmapping 5. Plotted Scale - 1:1250

Vi Promap

BARKER STOREY MATTHEWS
37 Priestgate, Peterborough PE1 JL

173




GREEN PAPERS FOLLOW

174



QLT

. _52e02 o N
=) v 79200 Seeo \ 7500
r(_ N 1\ ; ’I
‘I'T' Opc_{u;m.qm% U CLE
__i . i ] =L N T e '( — ._.__..l.u g A >,
: 0
0
BISTVe, SB(. Drlptet {%
CEMMEAXL DG TD B f
: SDGALMEJ\L,I"aoa;O : X :
| M/ (185 el | A
= = HGYHT D N Lieut </ 1
: 0
0
ol
Z 1 21l @
2 4 4
e s ZI |
i T = !
Ler+1d ﬁleHq _ _%_

£

/

sbus .
CIUCU‘TM‘C&(
T leoco
‘ |- 29
kﬁ A
£
HoLnEe TRoas
O {=%

1100400

JC. CENTRE

24 MAR 2011

142137 |
Proposed Vehicle
Service Building
With MOT Test
Bay At Rear Of
May Cottage
Holme Road
Yaxley

Cambs

Site Plan

Drg. No 4251 /S
Date Feb 2011
Scale 1:50

B. Shemeld

264 Eastfield Rd
Peterborough
Cambs

PE14BE

Tel 01733 891771




Vg 7=

EToa

j A I
o A— T
1 - ) ' s—
S i . 1o
PRSI : S, ) ; 10
S - . N
- I . N
= M et .
o £m.
i N | —
1

" ENVIRONMENTAL & COMMUNITY

SERVICES -

]

PLANNING SERVICES
19 MAY 2011

RECEIVED _

@
\

176

IZIQQ

-3 1-%-

Rev A. May 2011

West elevation
amended

Proposed Vehicle Service
Bidg With MOT Test Bay
At Rear Of

May Coftage

Holme Road

Yaxley

Efevations

Dr No
Date
Scale

4251/1 A
Feb 2011
1:100

B. Shemeld

264 Eastfieid Rd
Peterborough
Cambs

PE1 4BE _
Tel 01733 891771



Agenda Iltem 4e

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 18 APRIL 2016

Case No: 16/00162/0UT (OUTLINE APPLICATION)

Proposal: DETACHED ECO CONSTRUCTED LODGE TO CREATE
THREE BED DETACHED DWELLING

Location: LAND AT 34 CHURCH END CATWORTH PE28 0PB

Applicant: MRS R WHITE

Grid Ref: 509103 273279

Date of Registration: 26.01.2016

Parish: CATWORTH

RECOMMENDATION - REFUSE

This application is referred to the Development Management Panel as
Catworth Parish Council's recommendation of approval is contrary to the
Officer's recommendation of refusal.

1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

11 This application relates to a parcel of land adjacent to 34 Church End,
Catworth.

1.2 The proposal is for the erection of a detached dwelling. The

application is for outline permission, with approval being sought for
appearance, layout and scale. Access and landscaping would be
considered in a subsequent Reserved Matters application.

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE

2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (2012), with particular
reference to paragraphs 17, 56, 58, 59 and 60.

For full details visit the government website
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-
and-local-government

3. PLANNING POLICIES

3.1 Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995)

o H23: Housing development outside environmental limits
H31: Residential Amenity and Privacy Standards
H32: Sub-division of Large Curtilages
T18: Access Requirements for New Development
EN17: Development in the Countryside
ENZ25: General Design Criteria

177


https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations
(2002)

o HL5: Quality and Density of Development

o HL10: Housing Provision

Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework Core
Strategy (2009)

e  (CS1: Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire.

e  (CS3: The Settlement Hierarchy

e  (CS10: Contributions to Infrastructure Requirements

Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 (2013)
LP1: Strategy and Principles for Development
LP2: Contributing to Infrastructure Delivery
LP10: Development in Small Settlements
LP11: The Relationship Between the Built-up Area and the

Countryside
LP13: Quality of Design
LP15: Ensuring a High Standard of Amenity
LP17: Sustainable Travel
LP18: Parking Provision
LP24: Housing Mix
LP26: Homes in the Countryside

Supplementary Planning Documents:
e  Huntingdonshire Design Guide Supplementary Planning
Document 2007

Local policies are viewable at https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk

4.

PLANNING HISTORY

02/00850/0QUT - Erection of dwelling - Refused for the following
reasons:

1. The proposed development would result in an unacceptable
extension of the built-form of the settlement of Catworth into the open
land adjoining and abutting the established edges of the village,
therefore causing harm to the rural character of the area generally
and that of the designated Area of Best Landscape and the frontage
for protection in particular, and would undermine the settlement
strategy in the Cambridgeshire Structure Plan 1995, Huntingdonshire
Local Plan 1995 and the Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alteration and
be contrary to the provisions of the Cambridgeshire Structure Plan
1995, Policies SP1, SP3/3, SP12/2 and SP12/6, the Huntingdonshire
Local Plan 1995, Policies H18, Enl4, En16 and En21, and the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alteration, Policies STR2 and HL7.

2. The juxtaposition of the proposed dwelling with the existing
property at 34 Church End would result in the loss of privacy and
amenity to the potential future occupiers of the proposed dwelling.
The existing dwelling at 34 Church End has been designed with a
major aspect towards the application site. The proposed dwelling
would therefore suffer serious problems from overlooking. The
proposal would therefore be contrary to the provisions of Policy H31
of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995.

178


https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/

5.

5.1

87009060UT - Erection of one cottage - Refused - Appeal dismissed
The Inspector made the following conclusions:

o] "l found the site to be rural in character, lying beyond the
physical limit of buildings along this part of the road..."

o] "a dwelling on the site...would in my opinion intrude in its
impact beyond the present built-up limit of the village..."

o] "could not amount to infilling but rather it would extend the
built form of Catworth in a demonstrably harmful way"

85015100UT - Bungalow and access - Refused

84009940UT - Erection of Bungalow - Refused - Appeal dismissed

CONSULTATIONS

Catworth Parish Council - "Recommend approval. The proposed

development has no adverse impact on existing residential properties and
their occupants, no issue for overlooking, no impact on noise and disturbance.
The property is of the mass and scale which fits in the local environment.
Parish Council can see no negative effect on the quality of life of existing
residents. The property has an adequate parking and there is no change in
highway access. It is in line with good design, National Planning Policy
Framework Section 7, Paragraph 56. The design has retained certain of the
existing natural environment, - the pond".

6.1

7.1

7.2

REPRESENTATIONS

None.

ASSESSMENT

The main issues to consider are:

o] The principle of development;

o] The design of the proposal in relation to the street scene and
the character/appearance of the area as a whole;

o] The impact on the amenity of neighbours;

o] Parking and the impact upon highway safety; and

o] Developer Contributions

The principle of development:

The presumption in favour of sustainable development is clearly
outlined within the NPPF, with the goal of creating positive
improvements in the quality of the built, natural and historic
environment, which includes widening the choice of high quality
homes. Policy CS3 (The Settlement Hierarchy) of the Core Strategy
identifies Catworth as a 'Smaller Settlement', where proposals must
demonstrate that development will secure the most sustainable option
for the site. The site lies on the far eastern edge of Catworth and is
considered to be situated outside of the built up area, within the
countryside, as per the definition provided by paragraph 5.15 of the
Core Strategy (2009), which excludes "gardens and other
undeveloped land within the curtilage of buildings at the edge of the

179



7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

settlement, where these relate more to the surrounding countryside
than they do to the built-up parts of the village".

Policy LP11 of the Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3
states that the built-up area excludes gardens in the curtilage of
buildings on the edge of the settlement where the land relates more
to the surrounding countryside. Due regard to both EN17 of the Local
Plan (1995) and LP26 of the Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to
2036: Stage 3 must be given. Paragraph 55 of the NPPF and the
aforementioned policies state that new homes in the countryside will
only be supported where there is an essential need for a rural worker
to live in the vicinity; the new home will meet an established need for
affordable housing; the proposal would reuse an existing building or
optimise a heritage asset; or the design of the home is exceptional
and truly innovative. It is noted that the applicant has described the
dwelling as an "eco lodge". However, no further details have been
provided to explain if the dwelling is intended to fall under the
exception of 'exceptional and truly innovative'. That said, it is not
considered that the proposed development would be of sufficient
guality to meet this exception.

The proposed dwelling does not meet any of the exception criteria set
out in the NPPF and local policies regarding development in the
countryside and is therefore unacceptable in principle.

The design of the proposal in relation to the street scene and the
character/appearance of the area as a whole:

The proposed development would entail the subdivision of the
curtilage of the existing dwelling at 34 Church End. Policy H32 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995) states that the sub-division of
large curtilages will only be allowed where the resultant dwelling and
its curtilage will be of a size and form sympathetic to the locality.
However, the site and location plan (1:500) clearly indicates that the
resultant curtilage of the proposed dwelling would be significantly
smaller than the majority of the plots in the vicinity. Furthermore, the
dwelling would have one of the largest footprints in the immediate
area. The combination of the small plot size, and the large dwelling,
positioned in very close proximity to its front and two side boundaries
would result in the dwelling appearing cramped on its plot. As such,
the proposed development would conflict with the prevailing pattern of
development to the detriment of the character of the area.

It is noted that the application refers to an "eco-lodge" and any
scheme which seeks to minimise a carbon footprint is considered to
be positive. The immediate locality is not considered to be typified by
a predominant architectural form, as a mix of designs, details and
finishing materials are evident, with a number of single storey
dwellings noted along the south side of Church End. As such, whilst
the proposed development would represent a unique addition to the
street scene, the design would be largely in-keeping with the majority
of dwellings. Therefore, no objections to the appearance of the
proposed development are raised; however this does not overcome
the in-principle objection to the overall development for the
aforementioned reasons.

180



7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

Whilst it is noted that the screening provided by the existing boundary
treatments to the front and side of the application site (which may
reduce the impact of the proposed development from views from the
street scene to the north) will be retained, the impact of the proposed
development from views from the public right of way to the east and
south of the application site must also be taken into account. It is
considered that despite the retained natural screening around the
site, the addition of a dwelling in this location would be visually
prominent from a number of easily accessible public viewpoints,
especially from Church End, when the site is approached from the
east, and indeed from the west. The addition of the proposed built
form would be conspicuous and is considered to sit uneasily within
the interpretation of the wider countryside setting.

The impact on the amenity of neighbours:

The position and single storey scale of the proposed dwelling is such
that the amenity of neighbours to the west is not considered to be
detrimentally impacted to an unacceptable level by way of being
overbearing, or in terms of a loss of light/overshadowing. Similarly,
the ground floor positioning of fenestration, coupled with the
separation distance between the proposed dwelling and neighbouring
properties is considered to be acceptable in terms of overlooking/a
loss of privacy.

The orientation and positioning of the fenestration upon the east
elevation of 34 Church End would result in approximately four first
floor windows overlooking the application site. Despite the screening
provided by the existing trees, concerns were raised regarding the
level of privacy afforded to the occupants of the proposed dwelling.
However given the orientation of and the separation distance
(approximately 19m) between the existing and proposed dwellings,
this arrangement is considered to be acceptable.

Parking and the impact upon highway safety:

The level of parking provision for the proposed dwelling would be
acceptable and adequate turning space is available for vehicles to
access/egress the site in a forward gear. As such, the proposal is not
considered to create a negative impact upon highway safety and the
development is considered to be acceptable in this regard. Whilst full
details regarding the access to the site would be considered at a later
stage as a 'Reserved Matter', an indicative location was provided by
the Location and Site plan (ATK/16/RW/TP3). The location of the
access is considered to be acceptable. Despite this, the principle of
the erection of a dwelling in this location cannot be supported.

Developer Contributions:
New residential development requires the provision of wheeled bins
in accordance with the Developer Contributions SPD. The application

includes a completed a Wheeled Bin Unilateral Undertaking and
therefore accords with the requirements of the SPD.

181



7.12

Conclusion:

Having regard for applicable national and local policies and having
taken all relevant material considerations into account, it is
recommended that planning permission should be refused in this
instance.

RECOMMENDATION — REFUSE for the following reasons:

1. The proposed development would be located on land which
relates more to the open countryside than the built-up area of
Catworth and as such, would result in unacceptable harm to the rural
character and appearance of the wider area. Furthermore, by virtue of
its significant footprint, with built form in close proximity to the front
and side boundaries of the uncharacteristically small plot, the
development would appear cramped and out of character with the
more spacious form of development in the area. The proposal is
contrary to the guidance of the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF) (specifically paragraphs 55, 56, 57 and 60), policies EN17,
EN25 and H32 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995); policy CS1
of the Adopted Core Strategy (2009) and policies LP11, LP15 and
LP26 of the Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 (2013).

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Mr James Lloyd Assistant Development
Management Officer 01480 388389

182



Huntingdonshire

DISTRICT COUNCIL
Pathfinder House ~ St Mary s;Street  Huntingdon  PE29 3TN

Head of Planning.Services
Pathfinder House

St. Mary’s Street
Huntingdon
Cambridgeshire-PE 29 3TN

APPLICATION NUMBER: | 16/00162/0UT CASE OFFICER: Mr James Loyd
PROPOSAL: Detached eco constructed lodge to create three bed detached dwelling
LOCATION: Land at 34 Church End, Catworth

OBSERVATIONS OF CATWORTH PARISH COUNCIL

\/ APPROVE

Recommend approval:

The proposed development has no adverse impact on existing residential properties and their
occupants, no issue for overlooking, no impact on noise and disturbance. The property is of the
mass and scale which fits in the local environment. Parish Council can see no negative effect on the
quality of life of existing residents. The property has an adequate parking and there is no change in
highway access. It is in line with good design, National Planning Policy Framework Section 7,

Paragraph 56. The design has retained certain of the existing natural environment, - the pond.

Ms Ramune Mimiene, Clerk to Catworth Parish Council.
Date: 10 March 2016

Failure to return this form within the time indicated will be taken as an indication that the Town or
Parish Council do not express any opinion either for or against the application.

PLANNING SERVICES dcparish.rtf

Tel 01480 388388 Fax 01480 388099 mail@huntsdc.gov.uk  www.huntsdc.gov.uk

183



Development Management Panel " S,
Huntingdonshire

Scale =1:1,250 Application Ref:16/00162/OUT DI STRICT ¢ G0 Ne
Date Created: 24/03/2016 Location: Catworth © Crown copyright and database rights 2016
Yo \

Church End

i tworth

“tittle /|
CatworthHsT

Key

"] The Site

I Listed Building
@ Conservation Area

184




G8T

SITE PLAN 1:500

Data Centre 0 20m

I
Scale: 1:1250

JWOE0ENG
JWOOLEDS

AWOELEDS
JWLELEDS

\ \\?
N \\/ i
N\ Dy
LN
> SN
AN s
NN
kS \\
Y
N
PN Z
~
~ ~
T /\"‘ - \

273387

—
I ~ -~
-
~ . -
-~ -~
- -
-~ -
y
-

273350

EXISTING ENTRANCE

273300

LOCATION PLAN |:1250

SITE FRONTAGE. TO REMAN
LNToUCUED

CXISTING POND To BE RETAINED

SITE AREA
bo—— 95/M2

OSCALE BAR

CATABLISLUED
VILLAGE. BOUNDARY
No. Revision/Issue Date
ATK. DESIGNS
ARCUTECTURAL DESIGN
PLANNING CONSLLTANTS

16 5CHOOL LANE, OFFLEY, N2, LT
UCRTFORD SLIRE, 565 2A7

TCL 01462 769222

MOBILL. 07595293528

E-MAIL MAIL @ATK.DESIGNSEFHIE (

\

client

MRS R WUITE
2/ clurcU END
CATWORTU

project
PROPOSED DETACUED
ECo LOoDGE

PROPOSED SITE. AND
LOCATION PLAN

Sheet

Project
AT 16/RW/TP>

“isN2015 | AD

Scale
1:500 1:1250



Keith Atkinson
PolyLine

Keith Atkinson_1
PolyLine

Keith Atkinson_2
PolyLine

Keith Atkinson_3
PolyLine


[ L4

LS ayd

RCAR CLEVATION

|'|

» !||||H| ==

T T |'|'|'| T
LARGE GLAZED S0UTH FACING ELEMENT L« SUSTANABLE TIMBER. FRAME.

CONTRASTING WITH TIMBER. CLADDING
STAINED FEATUER EDGE.
TO GARAGE. AND UTILITY
O 7
| o s ; |Om
I N I
scale bar
Side Elevation

AT DESIGNS
16 5CHooL

LANC

OFFLEY

NR. LiITcUN

HERTS

5G5 A

TEL 07595292528
MAIL@ATK DESIGNS coLK.

client
MRS R WUITE
24 cHURcH END
CATWORTU

project
PROPOSED DETACHED
ECo LobgE

PROPOSED
FRONT AND REAR.
ELEVATIONS

drawing no

AT/ 16/RW/TPI

% AN 2016 A3

scale

l:100




EXISTING POND To REMAIN

AT DESIGNS
16 5CHooL

LANC

= i OFFLEY

NR. LiITcUN

HERTS

5G5 A

TEL 07595292528
MAIL@ATK DESIGNS coLK.

640?72 mm

2450.0 mm

client
MRS R WUITE
24 cHURcH END

SIDE ELEVATION CTwoRT

project
PROPOSED DETACHED
ECo LobgE

O % 0 PROPOSED
m SIDE ELEVATIONS

e JAN 2016 A3

scale 1.100




88T

Scale Par

R

170m

EXISTING POND To REMAIN
JE
WAL WAY OVER. 1;9':(

Do not scale,use fiqured dims,only Al dims to be checked on site by builder before work commences,

If any discrepancies are found, ATK Desians to be notified for amendments Al work to be carried out to
relevant Pritish Standards codes of practice & current P Regs Where structural alterations take place
great care must be taken by the buider to afford restraint to all affected areas,during & after the
building work.If during excavation any basements,cellars wells etc.are fand ATK Designs must be made
aware for desian amendments before contiuing, Where new loads are imposed on existing lintels they
must be checked by Builder for adequacy & to L Aapproval If faund not to be adequate,lintels must

be replaced Where applicable this Dwamust be read in conunction with Structural Calaulations If Dwas.
conflick with calculations, calculations must take preference.

6944

7

I

|
|

KITCHEN

[1O

/10O D

ol

N

\

\

N

\

N

\

SSSES\SSSSSSSSw

N
N

T T N

234
LI

Y
o

J
777777 77

1

=

N

N

N —
AR RN

7
V)

7
Z
.
|
.
2

7
V7l

No. Revision/Issue Date

AT DESIGNS

ARCUTECTURAL DESIGN

PLANNING CONSLILTANTS

16 5CUOAL LANC, OFFLLY, NR UTCUIN
HERTFORD SURE. 565 2AZ

TEL 01462 769222

N
Y]

VAR
N

s

6444

| ]
3592

7

clien
M?Zé R WUTE
3/ clurcH END
CATWORTU

project

/

8665

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR. PLAN

FLOOR. 5PACE. 1 A4M2

GARAGE. 33 M2

PROPOSLD DETACLIED
Cco LopGL

PROPOSED LAYOUT PLAN

Project
AT 16/RW/TPA

“iaN2016 | AD
“1.100




Agenda Item 4f

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 18 APRIL 2016
Case No: 15/02226/FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)
Proposal: CHANGE OF USE OF LAND FROM AGRICULTURE TO

RESIDENTIAL CURTILAGE, ERECTION OF STABLE
BUILDING AND ADDITIONAL WORKSHOP UNITS (PART

RETROSPECTIVE)
Location: GAULT HILL FARM COOKS LANE SAWTRY PE28 5XQ
Applicant: MR AND MRS J VELLA
Grid Ref: 519571 284558

Date of Registration: 27.11.2015

Parish: CONINGTON

RECOMMENDATION - REFUSE

This application is referred to the Development Management Panel as
Parish Council’s recommendation of approval is contrary to the Officer's
recommendation of refusal.

1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 This application relates to an existing dwelling and workshops that
are situated in an isolated position in the open countryside. The
property is sited approximately 2 miles  to the east of the nearest
settlement, of Sawtry, and 1 %2 miles to the east of the Al trunk road.
The site is accessed via a track from the Old Great North Road.

1.2 The existing building has a rural courtyard appearance. The curtilage
of the site wraps around the north and east of the building, with some
open amenity space to the west. The central parts of the courtyard
are used for parking. There is an existing farm access point close to
the eastern side of the existing building.

1.3 Since 1997 the building received planning permission for alterations
to facilitate a mix of a residential use, and workshops, with associated
offices. The building has since been extended and now has a
permitted use as a dwelling, and a mix of B1 business uses.

1.4 The application seeks permission to change the use of the land to the
west into a paddock, to erect stables in the north east corner of the
site, and the land directly to the north is proposed to be included in
the residential curtilage. A new building is also proposed to facilitate a
new workshop/business use on the eastern side of the existing
courtyard building. The building is proposed to be single storey. A
new access point to the far eastern side of the site would be
constructed to give access to a parking area to the rear of the
proposed building.

189



2.1

NATIONAL GUIDANCE

The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development - an economic role, a social
role and an environmental role - and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government's
planning policies for : building a strong, competitive economy;
ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural
economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high
guality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of
climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and
enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

For full details visit the government website
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-

and-local-government

3.

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

PLANNING POLICIES

Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995)
o E7: “Expansion of small businesses”

E11: “Expansion of Existing Firms”

Enl7: “Development in the countryside”

En25: “General Design Criteria”

R2: “Recreation”

Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations
(2002)
e  None relevant

Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework Core
Strategy (2009)

e (CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire”

e CS7:“Employment Land”

Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 (2013)
o LP1: “Strategy and Principles for Development”
LP11: “The Relationship between the built-up area and the
countryside”
LP13: “Quality of Design”
LP15: “Ensuring a high standard of Amenity”
LP17: “Sustainable Travel”
LP18: “Parking Provision”
LP19: “Supporting a strong local economy”
LP21: “Rural economy”
LP22: “Tourism, sport and leisure development”
LP26: “Homes in the Countryside”

Landscape and Townscape Assessment (2007)

Local policies are viewable at https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk

190


https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government
https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/

4.1

5.1

5.2

6.1

7.1

7.2

PLANNING HISTORY
This site has an extensive planning history.

0702888FUL erection of garage and workshop following the
demolition of a former wagon shed — approved 11.1.07

0303305FUL change of use of part of building from business (B1)
office to unit 2 — approved 16.12.04

0301594FUL variation of condition of 97800821 to permit use to unit
1 — approved 5.8.03

9700821FUL for alterations and part change of use to dwelling with
workshops & associated offices — approved 16.7.97

9500115FUL change of use to 2 industrial units — approved 16.6.95

9301124FUL conversion of farm buildings to dwelling — refused
16.1.93, a subsequent appeal was dismissed.

CONSULTATIONS

Sawtry Parish Council recommends the application is approved —
good use of a brown fill site/no visual impacts/in keeping with existing
buildings/small business use.

The officer response can be found in the main body of the report

County Highways Authority — no objections are raised, however
further information required about the existing and proposed use of
the buildings/units in particular vehicle movements

Officer response - Members will be fully updated prior to the meeting
once the information from the planning agent has been received and
the highways engineers have been re-consulted.

REPRESENTATIONS

Due to the isolated nature of the site, no consultation letters were
generated or posted. There have been no third party responses
received to the site notice posted close to the site.

ASSESSMENT

The main issues to consider are the principle of the development, the
impacts upon visual amenity and highway safety.

Extension to the business use —

One of the core principles of the National Planning Policy Framework
is to protect the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside
whilst aiming to support rural communities within it, in creating a
prosperous rural economy. Policy Enl7 of the Local Plan restricts
new development in the countryside unless it is essential for the
efficient operation of local agriculture. The adopted Core Strategy

191



7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

(2009) accepts that rural areas are important contributors to the local
economy in terms of providing tourism and leisure activities, with the
prime aim of supporting sustainable development. Policy CS7
promotes employment uses on brownfields sites or in sustainable
locations. The Local Plan — 2036 also supports sustainable growth,
subject to certain criteria. Policy LP21 gives support for employment
uses falling within the B classes in the countryside, subject to the site
being in (a) defined established employment area, (b) or the reuse of
buildings or land, (c) for the expansion of an established business
within its existing operational site; and (d) where office floorspace is
limited to a maximum of 600 square metres. The site lies in the Fen
Margin Landscape character area of the Landscape and Townscape
Assessment (2007), which is generally characterised by a low lying
gentle slopes, with sparsely populated landscape.

The historic plans submitted with previous planning applications
dating back from 1997 marks out the application site close to the
eastern and northern side of the building with amenity green space to
the west. The site operations have, until recently, been contained
within the bounds of the site. The applicants/owners of the site have
now purchased the land around the site, which has historically been
used for agricultural purposes. Two of units (unit 1 and 2) have
business uses operating within the premises independent of the site
owners. The other parts of the building are used for a mix of a
residential use and workshop.

The proposal seeks, amongst other things to erect a new building for
business purposes.

The site is situated in an isolated area, and in the open countryside.
The NPPF advises that for developments to meet the aims of
sustainable development, the need to travel should be minimised.
Policy LP17 of the Local Plan — 2036 reflects this advice in terms of
promoting sustainable forms of travel. The new proposed building is
not contained within the existing site area where a number of
business uses exist. The new parking layout indicates provision is
made for a larger expansion of the business uses at the site, which in
turn would result in further use of vehicles visiting the site.

The current building contributes to the character of the countryside
due to its shape and form, and continued containment within the site
area, which forms a courtyard style building reflecting the former
agricultural uses. The new proposed building, whilst being attached
to the existing building, does not sit within the original application site,
and extends into land associated with agriculture. This part of the
development therefore does not represent the re-use of land, as a
brownfield site, as defined in Policy CS7 of the Core Strategy or the
NPPF.

The proposed new building is not consistent with existing courtyard
shape or form, and would create an awkward juxtaposition with the
existing building, eroding the appearance of the site when viewed
from the open countryside. The amount of hardstanding required to
provide the new parking area and access point, would further
formalise the site, which is contrary to the expectations of planning
policy which seeks to preserve the intrinsic value and beauty of the
countryside.

192



7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

It is for these reasons that the principle of the expansion of the
business use is not acceptable, as it does not fulfil the requirements
of local or national planning policy in terms of sustainable
development and impacts upon the countryside.

This part of the proposal is therefore contrary to Planning Policies E7,
E11l and En25 of the Local Plan 1995, Policy CS1 and CS7 of the
Adopted Core Strategy, and policies LP13, LP17 and LP21 of the
Local Plan — 2036.

Stables, paddock and amenity space -

The proposal also includes the erection of stables, the use of the land
to the west of the building as a paddock for private use, and for the
land to rear (north of the building) to be used for residential purposes
as amenity space.

The proposed stable building would be used for leisure/private
purposes by the applicants/owners of the site. National and Local
planning policy promotes the use of the countryside for leisure
purposes.

Planning policies broadly aim to restrict non-essential development in
the countryside to protect it for its own sake. Policy Enl7 restricts
non-essential development in the countryside. However, this policy
also refers to outdoor recreation as being one of the exceptions to the
normal policies of restraint, and emerging policy LP21 of the Draft
Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 (Stage 3, 2013) supports
operational development within the countryside where (amongst other
exceptions) it relates to equine development. In addition, the National
Planning Policy Framework (2012) does not specifically refer to
private 'domestic’ equestrian uses but supports sustainable rural
leisure developments that benefit businesses, communities and
visitors in rural areas and which respect the character of the
countryside.

Given the general conformity of the local policies with the aim of the
NPPF in this regard, it is considered that these policies can be
accorded substantial weight as referred to in paragraphs 215 and 216
of the NPPF.

In this case, the proposal is not 'essential' development but would
support a private outdoor recreation activity; the keeping of horses;
promoting a healthy, active lifestyle by enhancing sport and
recreation facilities and, the fact that the proposal would not result in
the loss of the highest grade agricultural land, have all being taken
into account. The principle of this part of the proposal is therefore
considered to be justified and has no significant traffic implications as
the proposal is for a private, non-commercial use.

Emerging policy LP26 of the Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to
2036: Stage 3 (2013) advises that a proposal for the erection of an
outbuilding which is ancillary to an existing home in the countryside
will be supported where it is well related to the home, of a scale
consistent with it and where it remains ancillary to the home.

193



7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

The proposed stable has been designed to reflect the rural nature of
the site. The proposed design and materials of the stable block are
considered acceptable and the siting of the stables close to the
associated dwelling ensures that when viewed in context, the
proposed stables would appear as part of the amenity land proposed
with this application. Such developments are not unusual in the
countryside and given the design and materials of the proposed
building, the development would appear typical within its context.

It is therefore considered the proposed stable would not have an
unduly harmful impact upon the character and appearance of the
countryside, in accordance with the aims of the National Planning
Policy Framework (2012) and saved policies En25 and R2 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995), policy CS1 of the Adopted
Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework Core Strategy 2009,
policies LP1, LP13, LP22 and LP26 of the Draft Huntingdonshire
Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 (2013) and the guidance of the
Huntingdonshire Design Guide Supplementary Planning Document
2007 and the Huntingdonshire Landscape and Townscape
Assessment Supplementary Planning Document 2007.

There is no objection to the use of the land to the west as paddock as
this is permitted as a countryside activity.

Highway safety:

The site is served by the existing access from Cooks Lane. There
have been no objections raised on highway safety grounds, as the
site is not served from a classified road. However, further information
has been requested with regards to the proposed vehicle movements
associated with the extension to the business use at the site.
Members will be fully updated prior to the meeting once the
information from the planning agent has been received and the
highways engineers have been re-consulted.

Conclusion:

The proposal to expand the existing business use outside the
containment of the existing built envelope would result in an erosion
of the rural appearance of the existing site and building, having an
unnecessary impact on the wider countryside; In addition the further
development of site for business purposes would result in
unnecessary further vehicle movements to the site. The proposal is
therefore contrary to planning policies that seek to protect the
character of the open countryside, and meet the aims of sustainable
development, such as policies E7, E11 and En25 of the Local Plan
1995, and policies CS1 and CS7 of the Adopted Core Strategy, and
policies LP1, LP13, LP17 and LP21 of the Local Plan — 2036, and the
NPPF.

Having regard to applicable national and local planning policies, and

having taken all relevant material considerations into account, it is
therefore recommended that planning permission be refused.

194



8.

RECOMMENDATION — REFUSE for the following reasons:

1. The proposal to expand the existing business use outside

the containment of the existing built envelope would result
in an erosion of the rural appearance of the existing site and
building, having an unnecessary impact on the wider
countryside. The further development of site for business
purposes would result in unnecessary further vehicle
movements to the site. The proposal is therefore contrary to
planning policies that seek to protect the character of the
open countryside, and meet the aims of sustainable
development, such as policies E7, E11 and En25 of the
Local Plan 1995, and policies CS1 and CS7 of the Adopted
Core Strategy, and policies LP1, LP13, LP17 and LP21 of
the Local Plan — 2036, and the NPPF.

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate

your needs.

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Linda Walker Development Management
Officer 01480 388411

195



Huntingdonshire DC Public Access

From: caroline bradley <coningtonpc@gmail.com>

Sent: 23 December 2015 14:32

To: DevelopmentControl

Subject: Application ref: 15/02226/FUL Gault Hill Farm Cooks Lane Sawtry

With reference to the above application. The Parish Council met on the 21st December and unanimously
agreed, to recommend APPROVAL based on the following:

No visual impact from the road as the build will be behind existing buildings

Good use of brown fill site

In-keeping with existing buildings

Workshop will have no impact on road use, etc. as the space is intended for small artisan business only

Yours faithfully

Caroline Bradley
Clerk to the Parish of Conington

196



Development Management Panel

N

P

Scale =1:2,500 Application Ref:15/02226/FUL
Date Created: 04/04/2016 Location: Connington

Huntingdonshire

BlSTRIEGCT €CouUNETlL

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016
Ordnance Survey HDC 100022322

I Higney
Grange

J g r
3 anghs 7

Key

/] The Site
B Listed Building
@ Conservation Area

197




\\\ 4 \ /
/ / ¥
4 3 rd A1
3 P 73
. V4
s s 1
4 v
—_— i
—
e ,Il.ll.'rla".' — *. T .
e — i
.l!lvl.l-lr‘ll nl-[.l.llll _ A\ A {
N 2 V4
S

A

' e \\\\H I

TION

gL

al
. I 8

L\ —————

ST

g be .

. \‘
stable

LAAAY
(TR

\_'Lj €
“ﬂ-“:

2o b
oad

i

4

boad Adwg lecoked

L peaa et

Ol st Ao LB
|

! |
e
Bl SR e
j
B

building.

y shownon .. ‘[
no. ASC .15°594 prepared by

Associated Surveying Consultants.

be read in conjunction with
hical surve

pograp
drawin

10

|
~NOTE-
;
d

/
\
/

mw\ \
v\\ ,
|

LAY SN Aol il
Ve i \\ 4 ’ / ! \ s 4 ’ \
e xv\\\ \\ V' / \

i Vil \ y
AN Y o \\ N
— 0.5 A,

\\\\\\\ /

) yay Y
y ) S
S S \\\ S S
T pe \ S \
e
/ ;
\.\\ \\ \ Ay \
a4 VA A A A A A
A AR ARy AR Ay A A A A Ay 4
<y ST
o,

y s

/ \\\\\\\ \\\ \\
\. v rd i v 5 4 \\\ 7
Ao / / / V4

/ \w\\\.\ / \\\
\\ : \ A
\\\\ o m\\x
i \ ...\\\. \\ y
Ll A / 3 4
fhd K . 5

. g . 4 / 4 \\ Pd / 3 \.\.
TS S \ - S A BV S R \ \ A
L ) \...‘\ \\\ \\ \\\ \ ..\.\\.\\\ H.\\\.\\. \N&e\\\\\\\ .\\\\\\\\\.\ \ \\ \\
i i /7 y . \\\. \\,... ..\. Yy \\ ) ,\\.
\ \\ ey \\ 7 S
A 7 ; ‘\ : S \ p \\\\\
/ / 5 { A 4 p P p K\\ .
1 \\\ A \\\\\ . :

5
; 7 rd y \\- \x\
/ / P
.\\ \\\ . \\\\
/ 2 >4
il

\\\“ g \\ \\\. 4 \\\\\n i 7 \ 7
“m\\\\ \\\\ g \_\ g4

.
7/

\\\\\\\\\x\\

\\\\\\\

45 A 4
p A A /s
e \\\ \\\.\ \ .\\ \\\\\\\\ \\\\ \\\\ P
5 AR A

\
;S

P

p

:

\\
/

7

\ 7

/ P4 o g [
i L
i 4 ) 1 . §
/ / A 7 > \\ /
/ / 4
i
g

\
000
oo

‘s

b Bl e e

qU,Q.-U
X (VELZEE]

* ; .fmm;.wa_m.___._ sl

|
| |
|
|

bk bio xd.He ‘
MM.PM.&“;% apaxed,

iwo_rk.shop

unit.

Noeg

v

/

S N 5

\ Y\\\\\
“

>

7

7

///,. N\

B 00

T g 5
yd

A

\\‘ .\\\\\. \\\ , e / .\.\. .. \.. \.\\ \\ \ . g \ \\

/ 7 & g £ £

7 A \ Vi ) “ ) \ ; S \\ \\\ / v S/
/ sy P / / VA4

\\\.\ ) \\ \\ .\x \\\ \\ : s rd \\.. \\.\\\.

7

t—f qu-L K vsod .
|

O
// ,/./ ~

N

NN
\ ,,,//
N
AN
AN

N,
i

3
N\

/ /
i 7 -
/ y, Y
/
\ s \ s
Vd 4 /
e . g \.H
/ y

g

y /

\\\ B A

v o Y,
IS

4 /

v

vd

7 mmwwww\\\\

/ 7
- \\ s 4
\ \\ rd
- )

/-

/
\\
/
/

Vs
\\\\\\\\

. ; \.x\ S ot e = g o : ; s . \ \ - 7 \..\\ 
pa P Ve \\ 7 u.\ \x\ o \\\ \\\. = ‘\\\ \\\ \\ \\\\\\\ \\ s \\\ \\ : y > / \ \\
; \\\\\\\ \\ \\\\\ . \ \\\ .\\ \\\.\\ - e .\\\ \\\ 7} \ \ x\\ \\\a \ / & \ P -
\\\\\ \\\\\\ \\X\\\\\\\\\.C\
o /
P . I SISy
\\ \.x / 7 \ / \.\ \\
\\\\ # i o v — —= -

e \ 4 / /
\\ W\ 4 o \w \ 4 n\.\

198

. NS ////,_,
N ) /mmmmw,nmmw -
N / //// i
O ~ N / \

/
/
/
/
/
/
f

/
/
/

A

s

|
|

?ct.t :

SRR R MRS S R

L 20 las
and

i . fudslecn
IRSERRAN SR ) A al i

e
0

e

rw 6!“"”"'” :

|
|
: iw(;hu. y

AN R TR PCREb il

15 Febwiman dotlgis = == -

1S iCstfi——— M

|

DATE

SCALE

DRAWN

‘:na.h.u'\-% S

_exak
QLLRAN

REVISIONS

OAD,

TON

DON,
AMBS

RAVELEY
WOODWA
HUNTIN

JOHN HUGGINS




4-60m.0DN
. los existing).

FEL -

o
E
U
RE

TN
E
vath
N
!
RI

NA
O
P

T

-

V
worksho
ared .

}5 Fdwumw\j ot = .

: i L
{
|
‘ : : “ S
” W
# _—* : | - 18 — SR A —

m ~ aln.m .q_l =3

. oo~

=
L
workshop
area
o
\
|
|

O
L

, . | e i
| (A .
/ﬂ :“ HA | I,
. X i W B _ . :
\u8 __ | T _ | | | -
{ — i ; . =

\_

overpd

\\\ \

199

ELEVATION

—ERS




.[Ta;h.ﬁa‘uw E.W,FWL.M'.EE :

!
|
{
|

A 230005 Doy added i Shove

revisions -

3 blo

i i
EB.W.

oHA

o

;’?;-U::

Sy

sfable.

PLAN.

~ FEL-4-60m . 0.DN.

7

I EN B

=3l

{8 s e i S

e Neass loss | 7

DATE
SCALE
DRAWN

CAMBS

"CHERIASH",
RAVELEY ROAD,
WOODWALTON,
HUNTINGDON,

Y.
A .

200

BIY2LT/6186




Agenda Item 4g

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 18 APRIL 2016

Case No: 16/00218/FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)

Proposal: CHANGE OF USE FROM VACANT OFFICES USED AS
STORE TO VETERINARY SURGERY

Location: HUNTINGDON WYEVALE GARDEN CENTRE BANKS
END WYTON PE28 2AA

Applicant: BEST FRIENDS GROUP

Grid Ref: 527037 272784

Date of Registration: 15.02.2016

Parish: HOUGHTON AND WYTON

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE

This application is referred to the Development Management Panel as
Parish Council recommendation of refusal is contrary to the Officer's
recommendation of approval.

1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

11 The site is a modern garden centre on the north side of the A1123 to
the east of Huntingdon. The wider complex of approx. 9.6ha consists
of an extensive building, outdoor areas, office building fronting the
wider complex, and car park. There is also an existing mobile building
used for the veterinary surgery located to the rear of the main building
— this has been in situ since 2013.

1.2 There is an existing access off the A1123. The site is within Flood
Zone 3.
1.3 The application as submitted relates to a smaller area within the red

line of approx. 0.063ha, of the wider complex, and is for:

- the change of use from vacant offices (Use Class B1) used as store
to veterinary surgery (Use Class D1) and includes an area for staff
parking and visitor parking. The existing access off the A1123 will be
used.

1.4 The hours proposed are Monday to Saturday 0900-1800hrs, and
Sundays and Bank Holidays 1030-1600hrs. It is proposed that there
will be 3 full-time and 4 part-time employees (5 full-time equivalent).

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE
2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (2012)
For full details visit the government website

https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-
and-local-government

201


https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

PLANNING POLICIES

Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995)
o E10: “Reuse of buildings in rural areas”
o E11: “Expansion of Existing Firms”

Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations
(2002)
e None relevant.

Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework Core
Strategy (2009)
e  (CS1: "Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire"

Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 (2013)
o LP1: 'Strategy and principles for development'

LP11: “The Relationship between the built-up area and the
countryside”

LP15: 'Ensuring a High Standard of Amenity'

LP17: “Sustainable Travel”

LP18: “Parking Provision”

LP21: “Rural economy”

Local policies are viewable at https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk

4.

4.1

4.2

PLANNING HISTORY
Application site:

0100988FUL Change of use of bungalow to offices ancillary to
garden centre. Granted Jun 2001.

Wider complex:

15/01059/FUL Change of use to car wash and valet; installation of
two canopies, wash screens, and cabins for customer
waiting/office/rest room and secure storage, and pergola. Under
consideration.

1400120FUL Erection of two entrance canopies, elevational changes
and provision of hardstanding and railings. Granted Jul 2014.

0901289FUL Erection of covers over walkways within existing
external sales area. Granted Dec 2009.

0001331FUL Erection of garden centre and provision of car parking.
(Amended design and siting). Granted Oct 2000

9900197FUL Erection of garden centre & provision of car parking
Tacchis Garden Centre Banks End, Huntingdon Road Wyton.
Granted Dec 1999

9301227FUL Vary condition no. 2 of planning permission ref:
91/0769. Granted Dec 1993

202


https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/

51

5.2

5.3

6.1

7.1

7.2

9100769FUL Change of use to nursery garden centre, erection of
storage & sales building and access & parking area. Granted Jul
1991

CONSULTATIONS

Houghton and Wpyton Parish Council: recommend REFUSED
(attached) for the following reasons:

» The Planning Officer informed us this would be a Change of Use to
D1 Non Residential Institutions. If this is the case the application
should state the precise change of use.

* We believe this is an inappropriate expansion of the business
activities already carried out on this site.

* We believe that Wyevale already have an extensive list of products
and services retailed here; well beyond that expected of a Garden
Centre; and we see no reason why this should be added to.

* We believe this Change of Use will increase the uses on site and
lead to the site being opened up for other purposes.

» We request that the original permission and conditions for this site
be examined in relation to this application and its nature.

» We are concerned about the possible increase in traffic that will use
the site, and resulting effect on this already dangerous junction.

* We believe the continued expansion of this site will have a
detrimental effect on the vitality of the market towns of Huntingdon
and St Ives.

» The Parish Council will be requesting a meeting with HDC officers to
examine the use and development of this site and the lack of
enforcement to reported breaches of Planning Permissions.

» We expect to be kept informed of updates as this application passes
through your system and any further decisions that may affect this
Parish

Environment Agency — No objection - There is no change in the
flood risk vulnerability of this development.

CCC Highways as LHA — No objection- Although the vehicle
movements associated with the proposed use would be higher than
the existing use they are not at a level that could be objected to, given
this | have no objections to that proposed.

REPRESENTATIONS

In addition to the site notice, eight neighbours were consulted. There
have been no third party representations received.

ASSESSMENT

The issues in this case are the principle of the use in this location,
highways issues, flooding, and the impact on neighbouring properties.

Principle

There is an existing mobile unit used by the veterinary surgery
located to the rear of the main complex building. This mobile unit has
been in situ since 2013, although no formal consent had been applied
for. In respect of the veterinary mobile unit, there have been no
complaints made to the LPA Enforcement Team.

203



7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

The agent has advised that the existing mobile unit would be
removed from the site, if Members are minded to approve the
application. This can be conditioned.

In respect of the proposed change of use of an existing building to a
veterinary surgery, there is support in the NPPF and Local Plan for
the re-use of existing buildings in the countryside for business
purposes. The NPPF guides Local Planning Authorities to do
everything it can to support sustainable economic growth (para.19)
and economic growth expansion of all types of business and
enterprise in rural areas (para.28). In giving due weight to the NPPF,
this proposal achieves some economic benefit without bringing
significantly harmful effects with it.

It is considered that the site is not situated in an especially isolated
location in the countryside, bearing in mind the nearby settlement of
Houghton and Wyton, and slightly further afield St Ives and
Huntingdon. The A1123 is a local bus route. The change of use
requires no major adaptation to the land and building.

The conclusion reached is that the proposed change of use will allow
for an existing business to re-locate to a more prominent location,
utilising an existing building in the countryside, whilst still retaining the
existing client base and potentially enabling the client base to grow
that will help contribute to the economy and create employment.

Highways Issues

The NPPF para. 32 states that, in considering all proposals, safe and
suitable access to the site can be achieved by all people’. Policy E10
of the Local Plan 1995 supports proposals in rural areas, subject to
no overriding objection on traffic or environmental grounds. Draft
policies LP17 and LP18 of the Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 2013
support proposals where volumes of traffic can be accommodated
and any adverse effects from traffic movements are minimised; and
that sufficient parking can be accommodated.

The existing access off the A1123 will be used. Although the vehicle
movements associated with the proposed use would be higher than
the existing use as an office/store, they are not at a level that could
be objected to, and as such this would not be a substantive reason
for refusal. On this basis, it is considered that the proposal is
acceptable in terms of highway/parking issues.

Flooding

Although the site is within the Environment Agency’s Flood Zone 3,
there is no change in the flood risk vulnerability of this development.

Impact on neighbouring properties

The existing building, subject to the proposed change of use is
located a distance of 30m with staff parking located 15m away from
the nearest residential property ‘Redcroft’. As such it is considered
that the proposed change of use will have no adverse effects and
complies with policy LP15.

204



7.11

7.12

7.13

Other matters

The Parish Council’'s concern about the wider complex is noted. The
matter is not a relevant consideration for the determination of this
application.

Conclusion

The proposed development is considered to be compliant with
relevant national and local planning policy as:

* It is an example of enterprise that will make a contribution to the
economy

* The scale and location of the development is not considered to have
an overly detrimental impact upon the surrounding area.

* 1t would not have a significant detrimental impact on the amenity of
neighbours.

* |t is acceptable in terms of highway safety

* There is no change to the vulnerability category of the building in
terms of flooding.

* There are no other material planning considerations which lead to
the conclusion that the proposal is unacceptable.

Having regard to applicable national and local planning policies, and
having taken all relevant material considerations into account, it is
therefore recommended that planning permission should be granted.

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVAL subject to
conditions to include the following

Time limit

Hours of opening as per application form

Removal of existing mobile unit

Restricting the use to use Class D1 - Veterinary Surgery

A full report is available on the Council’'s website www.huntsdc.gov.uk

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Ms Dallas Owen Development Management
Officer 01480 388468

205


http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk/

Huntingdonshire DC Public Access

From: developmentcontrol@huntsdc.gov.uk

Sent: 09 March 2016 14:46

To: DevelopmentControl

Subject: Comments for Planning Application 16/00218/FUL

Planning Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is provided below.

Comments were submitted at 2:45 PM on 09 Mar 2016 from Miss Lois Dale.

Application Summary

Huntingdon Wyevale Garden Centre Banks End Wyton
Huntingdon PE28 2AA

Change of use from vacant offices used as store to
veterinary surgery

Address:

Proposal:

Case Officer: Ms Dallas Owen
Click for further information

Customer Details

Name: Miss Lois Dale
Email: clerk@houghtonwytonpc.co.uk
Address: 46 St Margarets Road, Wyton, Huntingdon PE28 2AN

Comments Details

Commenter
Type:
Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Town or Parish Council

Reasons for
comment:

Comments: Houghton and Wyton Parish Council recommend that this
application is REFUSED for the following reasons: e The
Planning Officer informed us this would be a Change of
Use to D1 Non Residential Institutions. If this is the case
the application should state the precise change of use. e
We believe this is an inappropriate expansion of the
business activities already carried out on this site. « We
believe that Wyevale already have an extensive list of
products and services retailed here; well beyond that
expected of a Garden Centre; and we see no reason why
this should be added to. e We believe this Change of Use
will increase the uses on site and lead to the site being
opened up for other purposes. ¢ We request that the
original permission and conditions for this site be
examined in relation to this application and its nature. e
We are concerned about the possible increase in traffic
that will use the site, and resulting effect on this already
dangerous junction. « We believe the continued
expansion of this site will have a detrimental effect on
the vitality of the market towns of Huntingdon and St
Ives. e The Parish Council will be requesting a meeting

206



with HDC officers to examine the use and development
of this site and the lack of enforcement to reported
breaches of Planning Permissions. ¢ We expect to be
kept informed of updates as this application passes
through your system and any further decisions that may
affect this Parish

2
207



Development Management Panel

@ Scale =1:1,250 Application Ref:15/00682/FUL
Date Created: 05/04/2016 Location: St Ives

Huntingdonshire

BlSTRIEGCT €CouUNETlL

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016
Ordnance Survey HDC 100022322

/ Hartford Jh
|
N < \ \2})% % .: .
33D - ~ J
) Oﬁa tfu{g% AN o hs 3
7 g%{ — q H,g"’ghton/ \
N j ari\njo '; ’ %ﬂ%ﬁ Pq 4 Cem‘g)/nh
. . TG Wytenrgis gy RS
h\&ﬁ T DC )‘ Weirs tb(;ﬂﬁ) / ?5{\0
Short Acre 3 ! = | RN = - 5
. b 18] \wEr e 1
O e Black Br (1.:
; s P "/ ROy .-—-?“‘L
<. w7 Sand & ?g Wi Tt
2 'v N . Gbravd Pit k i-emmgi?ar? J :
> =D T ewage ¥ & 1
. 7 WO¢4{-M Workg Homi i §®
b 2g/s | 2 Z]
o /@9 o 2
< ) RS
= =0 f E ﬂ 0 [77 | ElISub Sta
ey 3
£/ 3 ﬁ
U Redcroft
D’ain
Pond
Willow Walk
Pond Park Homes
Key
] The Site
I Listed Building
@ Conservation Area




Huntingdon Garden Centre

? .
69 70 7 F
2 3000m 23080
29 ﬁ_,‘f"a’,'-.e,z,t,‘ 29
| WA
v 254
. N 28
27 ~ | Change of use of Bungalow
from offices to veterinary unit
52600 260w
F 69 70 71 ?

Site Location Plan 1:2500 Proposed change of use to Veterinary Surgery,
Huntingdon Garden and Leisure, Banks End, Wyton PE28 2AA

For Best Friends Group s

Piits Architects 12 the Walts St lves Cambs PE27 5BY  drg no. 1356.01/({‘,
Rev A 10.02.2016 site location plan amended to 1:2500 to show whole site

Rev B 12.02.2016 site boundary amended to immediate area for application in red, total site in blue

RNC Ltk oty EXVoA™ MO HBA W) WA adhe A

209



i H_qpft_i__ngdon_ Garden__(}gntre

| wogges |
o g5 |

213 0com 2730c0m

29 29

28

Change of use of Bungalow
from offices to veterinary unit

27

372609«1 2?261.‘@!‘.}

69 70 71 R,

4

Site Location Plan 1:2500 Proposed change of use to Veterinary Surgery,
Huntingdon Garden and Leisure, Banks End, Wyton PE28 2AA

For Best Friends Group

Pitts Architects 12 the Waits St lves Cambs PE27 5BY  drg no. 1356.01A

Rev A 10.02.2016 site location plan amended to 1:2500 to show whole site

Rev B 12.02.2016 site boundary amended to immediate area for application in red, total site in blue

210



e

———

i

H Existing car park to garden centre
o

Bungalow to be converted to Veterinary
Surgery

1 St

.

Part Block Plan 1:500 proposed change of use to Veterinary Surgery,
Huntingdon Garden and Leisure, Banks End, Wyton PE28 2AA
Fitiz Architects 12 the Waits St lves Cambs PE27 5BY drg no. 1356.02

Rev A 12.02.2016 Boundaries amended. Parking noted

- A
b SO0 ol

T T T T

|

211



Ground Floor

Of fice E

<—|lb-<-—>

=

Tollet

Hallway

Washroom

——

L=

Kitchen Meeting
Room

~[f 7

A

Bungalow Floor Plan, Huntingdon Garden Centre, proposed Veterinary Practice for Best Friends Group

A ———h
3

PITTS ARCHITECTS, 12 THE WAITS, ST IVES, CAMBS, PE27 5BY NTS DRG NO. 1354.4

212



P 1 ' r_,, -‘.
v ¥ '4" %

Vetermary Sur Gery
'-‘.. : - ': ;Vaccinm"_ s = e P

Please Ask 2Veryday Pet Care z*:;::.:::ﬂ::fi?’w i

About Our o= wAvalIable | e

Discounteq -~ I San-11am .4 ! i

Neutering - 1IN

_____

-

l I W

G | o . - . : F
| £ | ' | naasas IH I iln\'il lb‘ - __
'-I-wn it : = m _

k\‘milﬂi L



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4h

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 18 APRIL 2016

Case No: 15/01353/FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)

Proposal: NEW DWELLING AND DEMOLITION OF SINGLE STOREY
SIDE LEAN TO ADJACENT DWELLING.

Location: 2 WEST STREET HUNTINGDON PE29 1WT

Applicant: MR & MRS TRAN & NGUYEN

Grid Ref: 524505 272023

Date of Registration: 01.10.2015

Parish: HUNTINGDON

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE

This application is referred to the Development Management Panel as
Huntingdon Town Council's recommendation of refusal is contrary to the
Officer's recommendation of approval.

1. DESCRIPTION

1.1 This application relates to the site of a two storey, semi-detached
dwellinghouse of brick and tile construction in an established
residential area of Huntingdon. The property benefits from a side and
rear garden.

1.2 The site lies within the Huntingdon Conservation Area.

13 The proposal is for the erection of a new, detached dwelling (to be
located in the side garden area), following the demolition of an
existing single storey extension.

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE

2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) (NPPF), with
particular reference to paragraphs 17, 56, 58, 59 and 60.

For full details visit the government website
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-
and-local-government

3. PLANNING POLICIES

3.1 Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995)
o EN5: Development within Conservation Areas

ENG6: Conservation Areas: Design

EN9: Conservation Areas

EN25: General Design Criteria

H31: Residential Amenity and Privacy Standards

H32: Sub-division of Large Curtilages

T18: Access requirements for new development

215


https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations
(2002)

o HL5: Quality and Density of Development

o HL10: Housing Provision

Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework Core
Strategy (2009)

e  (CS1: Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire.

e  (CS3: The Settlement Hierarchy

e  (CS10: Contributions to Infrastructure Requirements

Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3 (2013)
o LP1: Strategy and Principles for Development

LP2: Contributing to Infrastructure Delivery

LP8: Development in the Spatial Planning Areas

LP13: Quality of Design

LP15: Ensuring a High Standard of Amenity

LP17: Sustainable Travel

LP18: Parking Provision

LP24: Housing Mix

LP31: Heritage Assets and their Settings

Supplementary Planning Documents:
e  Huntingdonshire Design Guide Supplementary Planning
Document 2007

Local policies are viewable at https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk

4,

4.1

5.

51

5.2

6.1

6.2

PLANNING HISTORY
None relevant to the determination of this application.
CONSULTATIONS

Huntingdon Town Council: "Recommend refusal. Members
considered this overdevelopment of the site."

Cambridgeshire County Council Highways: "No objection in
principle”.

REPRESENTATIONS

Two representations objecting to the proposal have been received,
highlighting concerns relating to:

e Overlooking/loss of privacy;
Overcrowding/cramped form of development;
Loss of green space and detrimental impact on biodiversity;
Parking;
Detrimental impact on aesthetic quality of the street scene.

One representation in support of the proposal has been received,
however the letter of support highlighted:
¢ A need to ensure suitable provision for access/maintenance of
electricity supply which runs adjacent to the existing dwelling
(2 West St).

216


https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/

6.3

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

The comment received from the neighbouring occupants regarding
the importance of access/maintenance for the electricity supply cable
which runs along 2 West Street is understood. It must be noted that
planning permission does not override any legal covenants and that
confirmation as to the acceptability of the arrangement with regard to
access/maintenance should be sought from the owner of the
electricity supply cable before the commencement of any
development.

ASSESSMENT

The main issues to consider are:
e The principle of development;
¢ The impact on the amenity of neighbours;
e The design of the proposal in relation to the street scene and
the character/appearance of the area as a whole; and
e Parking and the impact upon highway safety.

The principle of development:

The presumption in favour of sustainable development is clearly
outlined within the NPPF, with the goal of creating positive
improvements in the quality of the built, natural and historic
environment, which includes widening the choice of high quality
homes. Policy CS3 (The Settlement Hierarchy) of the Core Strategy
identifies Huntingdon as a 'Market Town', in which development
schemes of all scales may be appropriate within the built-up area.
Policy LP8 of the Draft Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: Stage 3
(2013) defines Huntingdon as a Spatial Planning Area, where a
proposal which includes housing will be supported where it is
appropriately located within the built-up area.

Whilst numerous national and local policies offer support for the
principle of the development as proposed, the remainder of this report
will provide an assessment of the overall suitability of the site.

The impact on the amenity of neighbours:

The proposed development is not considered to create an
unacceptable impact in terms of overshadowing/a loss of light or by
way of being overbearing due to the scale, orientation and positioning
of the proposed dwelling in relation to the existing built form in the
vicinity of the application site.

The proposed dwelling will result in five additional windows at first
floor level, two on the front (northeast) elevation, two on the rear
(southwest) elevation and one on the side (northwest) elevation
(facing the host property). The proposed window on the side elevation
is to serve a stairway and will be finished with obscure glazing - this
will be controlled by condition. The two windows on the front elevation
will face towards the public highway. As such, this fenestration is
considered to be acceptable.

It is understood that the introduction of fenestration can create or
reinforce a perception of overlooking and the objections from 2
Primrose Lane regarding the rear facing windows in the new dwelling
are noted. However, due to the separation distance (approximately

217



7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

7.12

50m) between the proposed dwelling and the existing dwellings to the
southwest, including the layout of the existing built form (which
incorporates a degree of mutual overlooking across rear amenity
spaces), the fenestration upon the rear elevation of the proposed
development is considered to be acceptable.

The scale and positioning of the proposed dwelling, coupled with a
design which omits fenestration on the southeast elevation, is such
that the development is not considered to detrimentally impact the
existing dwellings to the south of the application site to an
unacceptable level.

The design of the proposal in relation to the street scene and the
character/appearance of the area as a whole:

West Street is characterised by the arrangement of two different
architectural forms upon either side of the road. To the northwest,
terraced properties with long, narrow footprints are arranged in
groups of four/five, whereas the southwest of West St hosts much
wider, but shallower semi-detached properties which are set back
further from the road and benefit from larger curtilages. A similar
development to the proposed is located approximately 75m to the
northwest (14a West St). This scheme also utilised space to the side
of a dwelling to accommodate a detached dwelling.

Whilst the development will be immediately visible from views within
the street scene, the scale and overall design of the proposed
dwelling is considered to be appropriate within the context of the
wider street scene and construction/finishing materials can be
secured by way of condition.

The points raised regarding overcrowding/a cramped form of
development are noted, however the resultant curtilage following the
subdivision of the plot is considered to comply with policy H32 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995) and the application site is
considered to afford sufficient private amenity space. It is noted that
the separation distance between the existing and proposed dwelling
is limited to 1.17m. However as the proposed dwelling is set back
from the road by approximately 7.1m and the proposed dwelling and
76 Hartford Road to the southeast are separated by approximately
15m, the spaciousness which is characteristic of the southwest side
of West St is retained. A landscaping plan was submitted alongside
the application and these details were considered to be acceptable.

Views into, out of and across the Conservation Area are considered
to be acceptable, given the backdrop of residential units upon which
the proposed dwelling will be viewed and the screening qualities of
the existing boundary treatments.

Parking and the impact upon highway safety:
The existing curtilage of 2 West Street affords space for two vehicles
to be parked on a gravelled area to the southeast of the dwelling. The

proposal will reduce parking provision to the front of 2 West Street to
one vehicle.

218



7.13 The proposed dwelling would have two parking spaces (including an
internal parking space) along with the external arrangement to the
front of the dwelling.

7.14 The revised site layout plan (21515/51a) represents a layout which
delivers independently workable, effective off-street parking spaces
for both the existing and proposed dwelling. HDC Highways team
raised no objection to the revised scheme; however a condition which
removes Permitted Development rights in order to ensure the integral
parking area of the proposed dwelling is necessary. As such, given
the proximity of the application site to the town centre and numerous
public transport links, with the addition of a condition as outlined
above the proposal would have an acceptable impact upon highway
safety.

Conclusion:

7.15 Taking national and local planning policies into account and having
regard for all relevant material considerations, it is recommended that
planning permission be granted for the development as proposed.

8. RECOMMENDATION - APPROVAL subject to
conditions to include the following
e  Time limit
In accordance with plans
Materials
PD rights removed (Classes A, B and E)
Garage to be retained for car parking
Side facing landing window to be obscure glazed
Landscaping to be implemented as per approved plans

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

CONTACT OFFICER:

Enquiries about this report to Mr James Lloyd Assistant Development
Management Officer 01480 388389

219



PAP/M12
HUNTINGDON TOWN COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMENTS : 29" October 2015

15/01117/REM

Approval of appearance, layout, landscaping and scale in respect of the construction of
128 dwellings, pocket park, associated highways, landscaping, and ancillary works.
Alconbury Weald, Ermine Street, Little Stukeley.

Members noted this with thanks.

15/01353/FUL
Mr and Mrs Tran and Nguyen, 2 West Street, Huntingdon, PE29 1WT

New dwelling and demolition of single storey side lean to adjacent dwelling.

Recommend REFUSAL. Members considered this overdevelopment of the site.

15/01485/HHFUL
Mr John Gibson, 52 Wertheim Way, Huntingdon, PE29 6UX

First Floor Extension over existing accomodation. 52 Wertheim Way, Huntingdon, PE29
6UX

Recommend APPROVE

The District Council has received further information in connection with the planning
application that has been made for the development of the site.

Recommend REFUSAL. Members considered this to be overdevelopment of the
site, and that it could cause damage to the environment. Members questioned if
Huntingdonshire District Council had received letters of objection.

15/01669/FUL
Huntingdonshire Society for the Blind, 8 St Marys Street, Huntingdon, PE29 3PE

Alterations and extension (single storey) to existing building. 8 St Marys Street,
Huntingdon, PE29 3PE

Recommend APPROVAL

220




Development Management Panel

N

P

Scale =1:1,250
Date Created: 05/04/2016

Application Ref:15/01353/FUL
Location: Huntingdon

Huntingdonshire

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016
Ordnance Survey HDC 100022322

Y

Y

Key

/] The Site
I Listed Building
@ Conservation Area

MW

A .
X A% b
AR Y S
NBusiness 3| a ' P
Y -;@ R, LT Q% 44\’ V‘
1 IS N g _ A ,
i Z SN = e Y
3 ol , Hattgrd: <
i AW
JO? ’ O ’0 4, # r - — | —
2 2l % NPT Ep A
3 @ N =
a_w v
u@
N,
Sand & ?g
Gravel Pit

A Z
10444 | Works
§ N
a1 # 6
Harcourt
A ™
SwsiER A




¢cc

7
) Q
neighbouring T6
single storey
flat roof garage Q
grass lawn
grass lawn
single storey
flat roof
T 1| T ]
I 1 I 1
fence
— —
=
I No.2West st No.4 Weet st
T1 (tree
o (tree) |
|
—-——" I I
| |
| |
| |
: car park space :
\
\ | ! : 1l 1M |
\
\\ : : concrete path
\ | |
! I ! 5
\\ L ___ | D
\
\ grass
\ -
-7
gravel
driveway H1 (hedge) H2

aVaVaY
NAVAYAY.

VAYAYAVAYAYAVAY,

pavement

west street (on street parking)

shared access to rear gardens

—— demolish existing single storey leanto wc

single storey

flat roof

T7
HO

L}

& position of temporary fence
during construction to protect
trees

neighbouring o
single storey | new soakaway Sm frO[n buildings
flat roof garage / ‘\/ and 2m from boundaries
{
! \
] 1}
5\ S new 1.8m closeboarded fence
S
lr’ o “\\
ll ‘\
V4 AN
s
/ \
’ | I ossvu—"
4 N, I 1
g A | '
/l Y i '
J “‘ | IO J
l‘l “
’ ‘\
l' .
s ~
A \
ll ‘\
ll’ “\
/ .
I’ ‘\
/ \,
% N
I' \‘
ll \‘
/
ll “‘
I" ‘\
665 / “,
# \
e \
l’ \‘
ll “
2 ]
]
i
]
i | —
]
]
i
:
:
]
]
-/
| '
1
1
|
|
T
T
H
|
|
|
C____}————

car park quce/{

No.2 West st

: %

No.f West st

1
7425 L T Y pep—
7 + = * r A concrete path
1 1 concrete path 1
1 1
bins behind — 1 : 1 :
gate I | I I o
w : : new foul water connection to : :
existing system before joining -
| I | public sewer in road 1 | |position of\tempgrary
I | I I tree protc_ec n during
)< I | I " construction
IS A e N e
)< 1 I I |
driveway : : H1 (hedge) : : H2 (hedge)
q I
I 1 1
L _car park_snace L 5% pork space |
3500 5600 3500 3000

pavement

new 3.5m accesses
with drop kerbs

=

A

west street (on street parking)

X
i/

[ — 1 I 1 |
0051 2 3 4 5

Rev A 10/02,/2016 parking

CAMPBELL NMCCRAE
LIMITED
ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES
CHAPEL HOUSE 5 THE STLES PIFOLD LANE,

H
GODMANCHESTER HUNTINGDO BS, PE29 2JF.
TEL 01480 433073 EMAIL chris@campbel—mccrae.co.uk

2 West Street, Huntingdon

New dweling

Site plan as existing and proposed

“Hoo a2 |
e 21515/51a
28/07/2015

Registered number: 7830594, Regstered in England and Wales.
Regktered address 88 Hgh S, Ramsey, Cambs, PE26 BS
Use figured dimensions only, do not scde.

Campbel McCrae Ltd can accept no responsbiity for the inferpretation of this
drawing when the practice is n:tp named as cmoct omhm:;ge h the buldng contract.




Location plan 1:1250

1l ; o
< ol lB o
RSmmm g I
O 8gglc| |2 w
) =2 =) D 'O
o &38| Ol © 2
MDES ol o| 8l
wiiEecl 5| S
ISP 5 T| o S
WEQ sl £
ele 1210 | 8
s 35515855
< ¥lI=|z|0|2|a
) “leul| Z | D 8 3

Engiand and Wes

Ramsey, Cambs, PE26 BS

not scde,

no responsbitty for the inferprefation of this
e ﬁcehnoiepfnmeducmlmd udmm;thgsh the g.ﬂlgcmm.

.

address: 88 Hgh 81,

Registered number. 7830594, Regstered

Regstered

Use figured dmensions

meCraslecmucc
when the prac

]

NEW

Block plan 1:500

O,

C

77

o
£

ww
ol N
l/
N
N
N

Vi

7

Landing

Bed 3

SONNANNNNG

:

N N A N AN SONSONENS

= 1
= U

— —
= —

|

Bed 1

L — —

N
N
N
N

2

LU

Proposed first floor plan at 1:50

o I
2

Ry e

28 o 0.9
o5 7

=9y

%/////////////////////////////////

1 Ll /LHk;kkITIIIIHIMIMNMK

Ll

e

Lounge

Dining

IS SSSSSSSS

N — 4+ *
N ==
\f \
\[ \
\ \
\ \
NI

1
A\

wC

4%%%%%%%}y

O
o© O

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

LA | el

2 3 4 S

N i s |
T WREEER  Seoanupmeem ¥

0 0.51

||||||||||||||||||||||||

Existing elevations at 1:100

O Proposed elevations at 1:100

N
N

o

Proposed ground planat1:50 () (). 5




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

Agenda Item No.
Development Management Panel 18 April 2016
APPEAL DECISIONS

(Report by Planning Services Manager (Development Management))

1. Site: Land Cranbrook Plants, Colne Road, Somersham

Development: Conversion and part re-build of disused agricultural building into two
residential dwellings

Application ref: 15/01181/PMBPA

Appellant: Cranbrook Plants

Parish: Somersham

Original Decision: Delegated Refusal — 23/09/2015

Appeal Decision (and date): DISMISSED, 17/03/2016

Cost: NA

Key Paragraphs in Appeal Decision:

Paras 10 & 11: ‘it is evident that at 15%, a greater than ancillary proportion of sales
come from on site retailing of plants. Moreover, the site contains a small café (which
was undergoing refurbishment at the time of my visit), a florist, an arts and crafts
shop as well as caravan storage. As a result, | find that the wider site is in use as a
mixed horticultural and retailing business’.

‘Consequently, on the basis of the evidence before me, | cannot be certain that the
buildings were solely in agricultural use as part of an established agricultural unit on
20 March 2013 or when it was last used. The proposal would therefore fail to accord
with the limitations at paragraph Q.1(a).’

And

Para 12: ‘As a result, there is no need to consider whether or not the proposal would
comprise permitted development in respect of Class Q(b) or indeed whether or not it
would require prior approval in respect of the accompanying conditions set out in
paragraph Q.2.”

2. Site: 8 Heron Court, St Neots, PE19 1TH

Development: Extension to existing garage to frontage.
Application Ref: 15/01575/HHFUL

Appellant: Mr D Griffiths

Parish: St Neots

225



Original Decision: Delegated Refusal — 05/11/2015

Appeal Decision (and date): DISMISSED, 17/03/2016

Cost: NA

Key Paragraphs in Appeal Decision:

Para 4: ‘ Elsewhere within the surrounding area there are limited examples of front
extensions including porches and canopies extending across the full width of
dwellings. Within the immediate area there is a front extension to a garage but this
property also includes another front addition. The detailed planning circumstances of
these dwellings are unavailable and, for this reason, these other schemes can only be
given limited weight in the determination of this appeal.’

Para 6:” by reason of both the extent of the proposed extension’s projection into the
front garden and it being wider than the existing garage, the appeal scheme would
be a dominant addition to the host property which would disrupt the character and
appearance of the host property. The extent of the proposed projection from the host
property would result in the loss of part of the open front garden and this would be
detrimental to the open character of the streetscene. Overall, the appeal scheme
would be an incongruous addition to the property and the streetscene.’

para 7 the Inspector concluded that ‘it is concluded that the proposed development
would cause unacceptable harm to the character and appearance of the host
property and the streetscene’

Site: 15 Crow Tree Street, Great Gransden, Sandy, SG19 3AZ

Development: Conversion of Existing Detached Garage and Dormer Extension
App Ref: 15/01355/HHFUL

Appellant: Dr N Johnson

Parish: Great Gransden

Original Decision: Delegated refusal — 21/10/2015

Appeal Decision (and date): DISMISSED, 18/03/2016

Cost: NA

Key Paragraphs in Appeal Decision:

Para 6: ‘the materials used to construct the balcony and frames of the openings
would be of contemporary appearance. Further, the size of the proposed windows
and doors would be of a larger and of an uncharacteristic size when compared to the
openings of the adjacent Listed Buildings. Although limited, there would be views of
the altered property’s roof by the vehicle entrance.’

And

Para 7: ‘The simple design and gabled roof form of the property would be lost
because of the proposed dormer and balcony addition to the roofslope. This change
to the roof would increase the prominence of the property from the available
viewpoint and, as such, the appeal scheme would fail to preserve the property’s
current neutral contribution to the character and appearance of the Conservation

226



Area. By reason of the design, fenestration and the contemporary materials of the
appeal scheme, the resulting property would fail to respect the character of the
neighbouring Listed Buildings and its appearance would be detrimental to their
settings, specifically No. 15. By reason of the statutory requirements associated with
the heritage assets, this is not a case where the Council is seeking to impose
architectural styles or innovation without any justification.’

227



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	3a Hail Weston
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL               18 APRIL 2016
	FDF01E257C5311E4BE6E002324663E0A.pdf
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL        15thDecember 2014
	ADP24E8.tmp
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL        15thDecember 2014

	ADP58D5.tmp
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL        15thDecember 2014


	1401104FULa.pdf
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL               18 APRIL 2016


	3b Buckden
	Final LTPO381.pdf
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL               18 APRIL 2016
	Objection to Tree Preservation Order L/TPO/381, 15 Hunts End, Buckden
	1. PURPOSE OF REPORT
	2. DESCRIPTION
	3. REASON FOR TPO
	4. OUTLINE OF OBJECTION
	5. RESPONSE TO OBJECTION
	6. CONSLUSION
	7. RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND PAPERS
	CONTACT OFFICER


	TPO Photos.pdf
	Page 1

	TPO Photos Page 2.pdf
	Page 2


	4a St Ives
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL               18 APRIL 2016
	Previous report.pdf
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL      15 FEBRUARY 2016
	1500682FUL.pdf
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL        19 OCTOBER 2015

	Town Council comment 13 Jan.pdf
	APPLICATIONS FOR PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT
	Date Reg



	4b St Neots
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL               18 APRIL 2016
	ADPE7D6.tmp
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL               18 APRIL 2016


	4c St Neots
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL               18 APRIL 2016

	4d Yaxley
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL               18 APRIL 2016

	4e Catworth
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL               18 APRIL 2016
	Proposed Site and Block Plan.pdf
	outline tp.dwg
	BR2


	Proposed Floor Plan.pdf
	outline tp.dwg
	BR4


	ADPCC2C.tmp
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL               18 APRIL 2016


	4f Conington
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL               18 APRIL 2016

	4g Houghton and Wyton
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL               18 APRIL 2016
	Site location of existing mobile vet unit.pdf
	page1

	Location Plan.pdf
	page1

	Block Plan.pdf
	page1

	ADP33C2.tmp
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL               18 APRIL 2016


	4h Huntingdon
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL               18 APRIL 2016

	5 APPEAL DECISIONS



